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10.

11.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSIORN

SEC FORM 17 - A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 47
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPRINES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
SEC Identification No. 13951

BIR Tax Identification No. 000-6849-197

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter -~ VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY
CLUB, INC.

Province, Country or other j urisdidtion of incorporation or organization - Antipolo,
City, Philippines.

] i (SEC Use only) Industry Classification Code

Address of principal office - Don Celso S.-Tuason Ave. Victoria Valley, Antipolo,
City

Issuer’s telephone number - 658-4901 to 03, 658-4920, 658-0079 {0 89

Former name, former address, and former fiscal

year, if changed since last report
- Not Applicable.

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 & 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of
the RSA

Title of each class Number of Shares of Ordinary Shares
Outstanding and Subscribed

Common Shares 1,583 shares outstanding
Are any or all of these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange.

Yes No X ,




12.

Check whether the issuer

(a) has filed all reports to be filad by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1

there under or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 there under and Sections
26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports);

13.

14.

Yes X No

(b) has been subject o such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes No X

The market value of the shares of stock of Valley Golf as of June 30, 2017 is
P312,000.00 plus transfer fee of P67,200 (promo period for transfer fee) or
P112,000.00 (regular transfer fee rate) and for June 30, 2016 and 2015 is at
P250,000.00 plus fransfer fee of P56,000 (promo period for transfer fee) or
P112,000.00 (regular transfer fee rate). For the years 2003 to 2014 market price
is at P 400,000.00 to P 500,000.00 for Cluyb subscription and P332,000 to
P292,000 for third parly market. Market prices include the transfer fee of P

112,000.00. Market prices were based on subscription rates and fransactions
processed in the club. ‘

The aggregate market value therefore of the volting stock is 1,593 issued and
outstanding shares @ P379,200.00 is equivalent to P804,065,600.00

Valley Golf is not involved in insolvency/suspension of payments proceeding
during the preceding five years; this is not applicable io us.

DOGUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

A, Annual report to security holders

The Annual Report to stockholders contains the Prasident's and
Treasurer's Report, the Financial Report of the Independent Auditors, the
accomplishments of the present Board of Directors, the pictures of the
present Board of Directors, the roster of Commitiee members and various
pictures of the events of the preceding year. The financial report and its
discussion are incorporated in Part N — Operational and Financial
Information, whereas the information on the Directors is included in Part
Il — Control and Compensation Information. :

B. Proxy Farm

The proxy form attached is the form sent to gl stockholders in
connection with the stockholders’ meeting and included therein are the
matters o be voted upon by the stockholders. This is incorporated in Part

— Business and General Information.

T T O




PROXY
No. 1593  $.2017-0457

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the undersigned, ZOSA, ELBERT WM., a STOCKHOLDER/CORPORATE
REPRESENTATIVE of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc., a Philippine Corporation, do hereby name,
nominate, constitute and appoint:

-~ as my PROXY to represent me at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Valley Golf & Country Club, inc., to be
held on 24 September 2017, and/or any postponements or adjournments thereof, for me and in my stead, as
fully to all intents and purposes as | might or could do if present and acting in person; hereby revoking any and

all proxies issued prior hereto; ratifying and confirming all that my PROXY may do or cause to be dona in said
meeting by virtue of this presents, as follows:

1. Vote for Quorum purposes only(__);

2. Vote for Approval of the Minutes of the 2016 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting(_);

3. Vote for the Approval of the Company's 2017 Annual Report and Audited Finangial Statements(_ );

4. Vote for the Ratification/Confirmation of the Acts and Resolutions of the Board of Directors &
Management (July 1, 2076 to June 30, 2077 inclusive)(_ ):

5. Vote for the Appointment of External Auditors(_);

8. Vote on all matters arising from the agenda (except the sale or disposition, total or partial, of the

corporate assets)(_ }; and
7. Vote for Candidates to the Board of Directors*(__).
{Y}=Yes; {N}=No; (A)=Abstain.

In case of absence and/or non-attendance of my PROXY at such meefing, | hereby authorize and duly empower
the Chairman of the said Stockholders’ Meeting fo fepresent the undersigned on all matters related to above,
EXCEPT TO VOTE FOR CANDIDATES to the Board of Directors.

*CANDIDATES FOR DIREGTOR Number of Votes cast  Put {X) to withhold authority
to vote for the foliowing
Candidates.

WILFREDC G. MANAHAN
JEREWMY Z. PARULAN
ALBERT DG. SAN GABRIEL

, 2017, Antipole City, Philippines.
ZOSA, ELBERT M.

Name of Stockholder/Corporate Representative
Member's Account No. 8457

(N.B.: Each Proxy is entitled to cast a single vote to as many position being voted upon. Accordinmy’ P
Proxy may opt to voie singly or collectively in favor of one or more candidates.)




PART 1 - BUSINESS AND GENFRAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Al)

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS.
1.) Business Davelopment

Valley Golf & Gouniry Club, Inc. is situated at the rolling hills of Antipolo,
City, a private and non-profit club organized in 1958 by a group of golfers, well-
known and influential businessmen headed by the late Don Celso S. Tuason.
The property is about nine kilomsters from EDSA and about seven kilometers
from Antipolo. The site formerly owned by Hacienda Benito measurss almost
210 hectares when it was originally purchased. On May 14, 1958 the original
Articles of Incorporation was approved by SEC. At present the Club has an

authorized capital stock of 1,800 shares at P 9,000 par value and 1,593 shares
are issued and outstanding.

The building of this dream course has taken all of three years from the
planning of the lay-out, the grading and the sculpturing of its contoured fairways
and formidable greens, fo the final touches on the key-shaped clubhouse
Architect Gabriel Formoso designed in the Malayan motif. To get the best
playing possibiliies from the saucer-shaped course, the Valley authorities
brought in not one but two reputable golf course architects, an Engiishman
hamed Fred Smith and an Australian named Jas H. Scott. It is a tribute to their
artistry, skill and thoroughness that, with the exception of two holes, their plans

coincided almost exactly. It was Scott’s lay-out which was tinally accepted.

The original seven ( 7 ) Board of Directors were Celso S, Tuason, Aurelio
Montinola, Sr., Emest Kahn, Henry Belden, J. Antonio Araneta, Francisco
Ortigas, Jr. and Jaime Velasquez. The course was opened for play on
November 1961 and attracted & great traffic of players and aficionados. With this
encouraging trend, the Club was expanded to accommodate another par-69, 18-
hole course on the north in addition to its original south course in 1994.

The South Course is a par-72 championship layout, sits on 90 hectares of
rolling hills and meandering brooks. It played host to the famed Philippine Open
in 1975, 1983, 1991 and 2011. It was during the 1983 Philippine Open that
American Jeif Lewis established the course record of 65.

On November 1991, Valley Golf for the first time, became the venue of
XVl Southeast Asian Games Golf Championship.

Valley’s green are meticulously designed so that the golfer is challenged
to use most, if not all, of his clubs in the bag. The terrain provides the confour
which assures that no two shots will ever be alike. Some notable holes: the tight
first, the picturesque Nos 4 and 10, the intriguing No. 16 and the short but tricky
No. 18.
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When play traffic increased at Valley, a nine hole all-weather course with
a par 36 layout spread over 50 hectares was added. Valley acquired from the
adjoining property owners through barter arrangements several parcels of land,
enabling it to expand the nine holes into an 18-hole complex now known as the
North Course (formerly Executive Course). This is open to non-members and
tourists who wish to play at Valley. It exemplifies the finest the Philippinas have
to offer in international championship golf courses. Some notable holes: Hole
No. 15 with its tee overlooking the entire golf course and a man-made terrace:
and Hole No. 6 best known for its island green.

The North Clubhouse has besn completed and was inaugurated last Nov.
1998. 1t is now fast becoming the favorite venue for tournaments and parties.
We have a new Food & Beverage concessionaire in the North Clubhouse
offering a variety of new menus and accepis catering for special events. A
Sports Clubhouse equipped with modern sports facilities and other amenities that
will suit every man's needs are still in the planning stages. The Main Clubhouse
was renovated while preserving the original aesthetic design and concept of the
architect as a reminder of the historical past of one of the oldest golf club in the
country. The latest renovation is the Men’s Locker Rooms which was completed
and inaugurated last April 10, 2013, The new tocker room is spacious and
accommaodating to the neads of the goffing public. The amenities include the air-
conditioned locker rooms, newly rehahilitated wood lockers, sauna bath, clean
bathrooms and a scenic pocket garden.

The South Course was rehabilitated into a world class golf course. The
plans for the course upgrading and engineering studies were prepared by
Planning Resources and Operations Systems, Inc. The Club hired the services
of Eco-Turf and Turf Care Systems, Inc. as the Construction Manager and
Golforce, Incorporated as the Contractor. Works started on the back 9 holes in
August 2002 and was completed last October 2003 and it was playable in
November 2003. As per approved plans the layout will not ba changed only the
drainage system will be improved and the course will be all weather. Funding
came from the shares sold on installment basis and loan from members.

Rehabilitation works of the first nine south course started last November
2003 and works were completed and the first nine south course was inaugurated
last Nov. 20, 2004. Contract for labor for the rehabilitation was awarded to
bidder Philgolf Development & Equip, Inc. in the amount of P 20,000,000.00.
Materials were purchased in-house with an initial budget of P 31,500,000 and
additional budget of P 4,000,000.00 for the bunker sand and P 1,552,000.00 for
herring bone instaliation. As of June 30, 2005 total cost of the renovation is P
130,000,000 (gross of vat) or P 125,000,000.00 (net of vat)

During the fiscal year 2009 the Board approved the renovation plans of
the Main Clubhouse. Phase 1 shall include the Executive Offices, Board room,
function rooms, upper and lower veranda and main lobby. The fotal estimated
cost thereof amounts to P 9 Million, the Board awarded the contract 1o Reyes
Interiors in the amount of P 4.5 Million excluding the cost of plumbing fixtures,
electrical fixtures, grillwork on veranda, gutter works, glass and aluminum paneis,




floor and wall tiles and ceramic tiles on base columns. Works started last July
15, 2008 and was finished on September 2009,

For the fiscal year 2010, restoration works done to repair the damage
caused by the typhoon Ondoy amounts to P 4,504,509.00, which was taken out
of the special assessinent to members with a total billing of P 4,886,000.00. the
balance of the funds was used to continus the riprap works in the South Course.
Capital expenditures during the year includes extension of Hole # 14 of the Narth
Course, riprap of waterways in the South and North courses, concreting of the
DCTA, purchase of varifold for the Founders’ hall and purchase of grounds
eduipment.

For the fiscal year ending June 2011, the projects undertaken include the
concreting of the Don Celso Tuason Avenue from the bridge gate up to
Sumulong gate which is already 100% complete and total payment as of June
2011 amounts to P 5 Million. . Other projects during the year include riprap of
slope protection at the South and North courses, repair of the Caddie house and
construction of new gasoline station. We alsa purchased 3 units Flymowers, 3
units Backpack blowers and 3 units Rotary mowers. By July we shall resume the
Renovation of the Main Clubhouse which includes Phase 2 — Construciion of
Office Basement and the Coffee Bar with a budget of P 3.7 Million and P 450k
respectivety. Another project to be undertaken will be the Construction of the
Golf car parking shed amounting to P 1.5 Mitlion ‘

For the fiscal year ending June 2012, the projects undertaken include
Phase 2 of the Renovation of the Main Clubhouse -~ Construction/Renovation of
the Office Basement — P 4.31 Million, Golf cart parking shed — P 1.08 Million, Air
conditioning units for basement office — P1.21 Million, Coffee bar — P 512k and
Valley Golf cart shed — P 478k. The ongoing projects are the improvements of
motorpool area and Riprap/slope protection at Hole # 17 of the South Course,
The equipment purchased during the year includes the following: Fairway
asrator, Flymowers, Rotary mowers, bush cutters, walk behind fertilizer spreader,
backpack blowers, sound system, ID card maker and PARX telephone system.

For the fiscal year ending June 2013, the projects undertaken include the
Phase 3 of the Renovation of the Main clubhouse — the Renovation of the Men's
locker room with a total contract price of P5,000,000.00, materials supplied by
the Club amount to P1,000,000.00, the pocket garden is P 600k, cost of air con
units is P430k and the double panel solar water heater iz P75k which was paid
with golf shares, The men’s locker room in the Nerth Clubhouse was likewise
renovated at a cost of P535k and was used by members and guests from Jan. {o
Apr. 2013 during the renovation period of the locker room in the Main clubhouse.,
At present it is being used by the Korean guests and other regutar players and
tournament participants in the North Course. Other projects undertaken were the
construction of the Wall oh Honor — P88k, Satellite kitchen ~ P184k, Construction
of guard house at Hole # 12 South course - P201k, Rehabilitation of the Koi
pond - P435k, Reblocking and asphalt overlay of DCTA — P 4 Million and riprap
works in the South course — P19tk while the Members’ gym and lounge,
renovation of the clinic and Tee house in the North course are still on-going.
Equipment purchased includes the Greens mower with groomer — P615k and
danfoss variable spead pump control — P250k.
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For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 the on-going projects from the
previous year that were completed include — the Men's l.ounge and Gym -
P419K, Tee house in the North Course Hole # 4 - P467k and Renovation of the
clinic ~ P247k. Other projects completed during the year are — Phase 2 of the
Reblocking and Asphalt overlay of DCTA - P3.83 Million, Installation of roofing
for the Golf cart area ~ P773k, Kitchen exhaust system — P217k and Kitchen
hood fire suppression system — P150k. On-going projects are the sanding of
fairways and improvement of bridges in the North Course. Various eguipment
were purchased during the year which include - 10 units Golf carts — P 2.65
Million, 1 unit greens mower with groomer — P840k, 2 units walk behind rotary

mower - P150k, 2 units flymower — P110k, 1 unit Truck mounted man lifter —
P690k and 1 server and computers.

Other projects of the Club include the Streamlining of Operations and the
Outsourcing of the Grounds Maintenance for both the South and North Courses.
The Board of Directors approved last Aug. 8, 2014 the engagement of the
services of MJ Carr Golf Menagement, Inc. for the maintenance of both courses
for a monthly service fee of P 2.7 Million inclusive of Vat for a period of three
years. Likewise, a voluntary early retirement program for the employeas was

approved with payment of 125% and 150% of the basic pay for every year of
service.

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, the following projelcts were
completed:

1. Purchase of one (1) unit back hoe P 3,303,571.43
2. Purchase of ten (10) units golf carts 2,800,000.00
3. Purchase of 4 units desk top computers 160,000.00
4. Purchase of 2 units 2 way radio 23,000.00
5. Repair of controller pump of the South course 180,714.2%
6. Renovation of satellite kitchen 45,471.00
7. Driving range shot area 81,194.10
8. Additional golf cart storage 70,058.94
9. Purchase of copying machine 243,000.00
10. Purchase of 17 units Samsung Galaxy tablets 407,830.00
11. Purchase of 7 units transformer book 156,100.00
12. Purchase of 3 units brush cutters 37,500.00
13. Purchase of projector 33,900.00
14. Purchase of 2 units tru cut edger 40,850.00
15. Purchase of steel lockers 62,400.00
16. Improvament of bridges 226,555,098
17. Improvement of drainage ir Hole # 5 South course 535,714.28
18. Improvernent of driving range facilities 48,901.79
19. Renovation of Bag drop area 038,178.97
9,364,940.78




The following are the projects for Fiscal year 2016

PARTICULARS AMOUNT DISBURSED
1. Controller for vertical turbine pump P 621,012.58
2. Rehabilitation of bunker sand P 2,817,418.14
3. Repair of pump in the North Course P 186,000.00
4. Sound system for the Founders’ Hall P 363,248.45
5. Purchase of tablets, Laptop and printers P 144,830.00
6. Purchase of Riso digita! duplicator P 125,000.00
7. Rehabilitation of the South course P 5,454 400.38
The following are the projects for Fiscal year 2017
PARTICULARS AMOUNT DISBURSED
1. Repair of South Course pump P 1,348,277.66
(total project cost is P3.25 Million) 1,385,843.28
2. Irrigation system
3. Gonstruction of Expansion of Men’s Locker room 225,000.00
4. Renovation of Secondary & Sumulong gates 199,988.00
5. Purchase of 20 units golf carts 5,880,000.00
6. Purchase of 8 units desktop computers 187,500.00
7. Rehabilitation of bunker sand 3,035,840.85
8. Repair of Bag drop area Phase 2 600,317.38
9. Repair of Pump North Course 245,000.00
10. Rehabilitation of South Course 5,379,464.16
11. Purchase of Suzuki carry for water dafivery 160,000.00

12. Purchase of 2 units projectors 64,000.00
P 18,719,231.33

For the fiscal year 2016, the Club engaged the senices of Cafirma, Ong & Co.,
CPAs, represented by Mr. James A. Cafirma as the Internal Auditor of Valley Golf &
Gountry Club, Inc. effective Jan. 12, 2018. This is the first time that the Club outsourced
the Internal Audit services of the Club. The Club also entered into 2 Build Operate and
Transfer Arrangement with Freeport Elite Resort Ihc. for the operation of the Driving
Range for a pertod of 15 years. Another food and beverage concessionaire, Jay-J's
Food Management, Inc. was engaged by Valley Golf for the North Ciubhouse for g
period of 3 years. Last January 20, 2017 the Club entered into a three year coniract with
Anix's House of Kare Kare as the F & B Concessicnaire for the Main Clubhouse.




THE PROJECTS FOR IMPLEMENTATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 ARE AS
FOLLOWS:

FISCAL YEAR 2018

PRIORITY
LEVEL

1 GOLF COURSES
North Course

Rehabilitation of bunker sand 1 8,000,000.00

2 1 6,000,000.00 -
VLC Pumps ' To replace the existing pumps in the

North Course
South Course

(. 1 1,000,000.00
Filter for pumps
2 1
Desilting 250,000.00
2 CLUBHOUSES AND FACILITIES
1 . ( 500,000.00 .
Upgrading of Tee houses fmprovement fo include tables & chairs,
mini kitchen, stockroom & landscaping.
2 Replace the railings in the veranda to 1 504,000.00
wood. . The steel bars are out dated.
3 1 500,000.00

Repainting of roof and repair of gutters

& ventilation panels of Main Clubhouse

4 _ _ 1 1,800,000.00 o

Renovation of swimming pool To replace old stained tiles ang
upgrade its design

5 — . 1 500,0400.00 , .
Improvement of Function room in the Upgrade the interior design and
North Clubhouse Tacilities.

( 1,000,000.00 .

Reblocking of DCTA : To repair dilapidated road,

PURCHASE OF MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT, VEHICLES & OTHER
3 EQUIPMENT

1 2 445,000.00
Eteven (11) units Desk top computers

at P40,000 {10 units) and P45,000 (1 unit)
each. Controllers, MIS, Golf Cart area, Clinic

For Accounting, Credit & Collection,

MIS- TV Ads, Internal Audit, Membership
and Sports & Games.
2 Three (3) units POS Printers at P15,000 2 45,000.00

each For Registration area.

3 . ' . 2 77,500.00
Eleven (1) units M5 Office License

1 License MS Office Pro at P22,508 each
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10 License Open License at P5,500/year
4 M5 Office and windows License for 2
Laptop '

° Sysiem Enhancement 2

8 2
Payroll System
7 . . 1
One (1) unit Welding Generator
1
8 Ten (10) units Afrcooler at P17,000 each
9 1

Sophos Firewal|

TOTAL PRIORITY 1
TOTAL PRIORITY 2

"CAPEX OF PREVIOUS FISCAL YEAR

FISCAL YEAR 2017

LEVEL

1 GOLF COURSES
South Course

L Construction of drainage at cartpath # 5

2 Irrigation - Additional sprinklers

(100 pcs. X P14,300.00)

20,000.00

300,000.00

160,000.00

52,000.00
170,000.00
160,000.00

18,479,500.00

17,432,000.00
1,047,500.00

18,479,500.00

PRIORITY

85,000.00

1,430,000.00

ror Membership & Exec. Sacretary
Modifications of Program for BIR
Compliance

Official Receipts to include QWT
Automatic computation of VAT for Other
paymenis '

Amount to Limii to 2 dectmal points
Members consumable report

Aging Report for Other Receivables
To replace obsolete system to comply
with government requirements.

For projects

For the Clubhouge

For the computerized system.

To prevent water ponding during raips.




Morth Course
Irrigation system

Part 1 - F 3,500,000.00
Part 2 - P 3,500,000.00
Part 3 - P 3,338,750.00
Total - P10,338,750.00

NS

Renovafion of pump room

2 CLUBHOUSES AND FACILITIES

PURCHASE OF MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT, VEHICLES & OTHER

Replacement of Roof of Maforpool area

Painting of roof of Motarpool Fabrication
area.

Concreting of road from Diriving ranga
going io cart path of fairway #10 North
course

Repair of Drainage along DCT Avenue

3 EQUIPMENT

1

One (1) unit Desktop computer
@ 40,000 each
One (1) unit Lapiop

Timekeeping Software

Biometric machine

Davelopment of Passcard system

and SOA Enhancement

Aircon for room on upper level of North
Clubhouse

One (1) unit Electronic Defribilator

TOTAL FISCAL YEAR 2017

-

2

By B

=

230,000.G60

460,000.00
75,000.00

150,080.00

1,360,000.00

40,000.00

25,000.00
75,000.00

35,000.00
167,003.00

35,000.00

175,000.00

A4,342,000.00

Sprinklers, satellite

conirollers and pipes.

To provide better facility for pump

maintenance and repair.

To replace old and broken roofing sheets
to prevent leaks during rainy season.

To prevent rusting and protect [ifaspan
of roofing sheets.

To provide road accessibility

Engineering

For Admin/HR for committee migs.
Improve warkforce productivity by
reducing manua! and timely
administrative tasks, fresing staff for
more value-added activities.

To replace the old unit.

For the new passcard system
Maltunciion of the present unit.

For emergency purposes.

10




3,447 000.00
895 000.00
4342,600.00

TOTAL PRIORITY 4
TOTAL PRIORITY 2

FISCAL YEAR 2016
PRIORITY
LEVEL
T GOLF COURSES
South Course
1 improvement of Manhole - Hole # 5 1 850,000.00 To prevent overfiowing of garbage

during heavy rains.

Installation of fights at Hole Nos. 8, 9, Subject to sponsorship from members.
& 16 (cost P675,000.00)

2

2 CLUBHOUSES AND FAGILITIES
T Main Clubhouse/North Clubhouse

Annual impl‘ovemeﬂ’[ of Club facilities 2 500,00000 Includes pain’[ll’lg of Clubhouse,
replacement of broken filss,
repak of esiiings and others

2 Phase 2 - Renovation of bag drop area 1 2,000,000.00 To improve the area for bag drop
(Includes the enfrance right and left side, storage.
 Interior of bagdrop and Caddie area)
Phase 3 for FY 2017 - P 3,000,000 .
(Includes the Restaurant area)
- Fhase 3 for FY 2018 - P 5,000,000
| (Includes Grill room restarurant)
3 Construction of parking area beside the 2 400,000.00 To provide parking for guests at
gasoline station including riprap wall Motorpoo! Area.

PURCHASE OF MAINTENANCE EQUIPRMENT, VEHICLES & OTHER
3 EQUIPMENT

1 Aircon for the North Clibhouse (5 toner) 2 145,000.00 Additional unit because existing aicon

is not enough for the function room
To be used for hauling silts.

Existing units purchased in 2008, 2008
and
2009
3 1 1,300,000.00 Existing unit L-300 second hand o be
Service Vehicle sold

2 One (1) unit dumptruck 8 cum capacity 1 450,000.00

due to high maintenance costs.

11




Second hand unit purchased in 2003.
4 CLUB PROJECTS

1 Country Club activities such as Sunday 1 500,000.00 To provide activities for
mass, weekend barbecue, Easter egy members and their families
hunt, Halloween party, Summer arts & other than golf, for bonding and
crait, dance studic, Christmas party, to increase customers in the
reciprocity with other golf clubs, ete. Club.

2 Clubhouse Projects 1 500,000.00 To provide house projects for

improvement of services and facilities
in the Clubhouses, lockers, function

rooms, etc.
5 CALAMITY FUND 2 5,000,000.00 Provision for repair of the golf
courses in case of calamities

11,645,000.00
TOTAL FISCAL YEAR 2018 _

TOTAL PRIORITY 1 6,600,000.00

TOTAL PRIORITY 2 6,045,000.00
11,645,000.00

The Board of Directors last July 3, 2013 approved the 3 year development plan for the
Fiscal years 2014 — 2016. The 3 year development plan of Valley Golf is as follows:

A. GOLF COURSES

1. Sand capping in the South course 3,500,000.00
2. tmprovement of bridges in the North Course 7,500,000.00
3. Improvement of Landscape 450,000.00
4. Installation of led flood lights at Hole #18 & 9 South Course 150,000.00
5. Installation of liners on all manmade lakes o
B. CLUBHOUSES AND AMENITIES
1. Improvement of Parking ares 2,750,000.00
2. Installation of non skid tloor tites in the swimming pool area 850,000.00
3. Improvement of Driving range facilities 2,800,000.00
4. Construction of Bar and Grill Restaurant on existing bag drop area 2,600,000.00
5. Installation of roof on parking area of equipment 3,000,000.00
6. Construction of sports amenities in replacement of housing units 1,800000.00
7. Asphalt overlay on main roads inside the Club 2,400 000.00
8. Installation of collapsible fent in the [ower veranda 4,200000.00
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9. Installation of roofing at golf cart open area §00,000.00
10. Gonstruction of game room from portion of Ladies' locker 700,000.00
11. Purchase of F & B equipment & renovation of kitchen 8,000,000.00
11. Installation of roll up doors in all Tee houses 400,000.00
12 Construction of Hatel Suites (BOT)
13. Computerization of F & B and tee houses 857,000.00
14. Computerization of Main Clubhouse F & B 110,000.00
31,367,000.00
TOTAL 42,967,000.00

Valley Golf does not have any bankruptey, receivership or similar
proceedings.

Valley Golf does not have any material reclassification, merger,
consolidation, or purchase or sale of a significant amount of assets not in the
ordinary course of business.

2.) Business of Issuer

The main business of Vallsy Golf is golf and country club operations. Our
main sources of income are monthly dues from the members and green fees
- from guests; they comprise 48% and 16% respectively of the gross income.

Valley Golf does not have foreign sales, distribution methods of products
nor publicly announced new product.

International Opporiunities - Being a member of Valley Golf & Country
Club, Inc. allows the members the privilege of playing in foreign golf clubs like the
Kelab Golf Negara Subang in Selangor, Malaysia; Singapore island Golf and
Country Club; and Royal Selangor Golf and Country Club in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia. In the year 2002 we were able to establish reciprocal rights with Klub
Golf Bogor Raya of Indonesia and Royal Palm Springs Golf Club of Malaysia. In
2017 the Club have reciprocity rights from the largest golf course in the world
Mission Hills Golf Club in China

The principal competitors in our area are two private golf courses Forest
Hills Golf and Country Club located in Cogeo, Andipolo City and Eastridge Golf &
Country Club in Binangonan and one public course Sun Valley Golf Course.
These golf courses are relatively new and are still building up their membership
whereas Valley Golf being 59 years old is aleady proud of its roster of
respectable membership. Valley Golf's luscious greens and fairways are still the
best in the area and very well maintained. The rainforest trees in our courses
that have matured through the years have provided a canopy on the fairways and
its majestic beauty is somsthing that other golf courses cannot duplicate. The
friendly atmosphere and the camaraderie of the entire membership and
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employees are what make our golf course unigue. Eastridge have an 18-holes
golf course and Forest Hills have & 36-holes golf course but Valley Golf's greens,
falrways, trees, sandtraps and rivers witl always make the difference. Golf
courses may have the different number of holes but Valley Goif's design and
intriguing south course is something that has always attracted the enthusiasm of
golfers. The challenging contour of the courses will always make your round of
golf an enjoyable and unforgettable experiance. Valley Golf's ali weather South
Course already made its impact to the members,

Our competitors are marketing their new facilities and in anticipation of
these Valley Golf rehabilitated the South Course into an aill-weather golf course.
YWe have completed phases 1 and 2 of the renovation of our Main Clubhouse
including the Men’s locker room, the restaurantiveranda area and the offices fo

keep up with the modern trends in interior designs while still maintaining the

unique architecture of our clubhouse. Financially Valley Golf is more stable than
our competitors because our focus is maintenance and improvements since our
Stockholders' Equity has long been built up unlike our competitors who are still
selling their shares of stock to finance their capital,

Valtey Golf has o branch or subsidiaries 50 we do not have transactions
with related parties. The other parties we usually transact with are the suppliers
of office, grounds and motorpool supplies. In Dec. 2015 the club entered into an
3-year golf course maintenance agreement with MJ Carr Golf Management. We
have concessionaires for golf supplies, restaurant and driving range but these
are not part of the major sources of income of the Club. We do not have patents,
trademarks, copyrights etc. :

Valley Golf had already secured an approved registration from BIR of the
Club’s VAT and NON VAT activities. The annual Muricipal Business ang

Sanitary Permit had already been approved by the City Government of Antipoto.

A governmental regulation which affected the Club was the
implementation of the CTRP. Before the CTRP the Club was included amongst
the corporations exempted from the Payment of income tax as per Sec. 27 of the
NIRC, but as per CTRP we are now subject to 32 % income tax effective Jan.
1998.

The newly issued 26 International Financial Reporting Standards and
revised International Accounting Standards by the Accounting Standards Council
effective January 2005 had started to affect the financial reports of the Club for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008. The significant effects are on the
recognition of income tax expense and derecognition of deferrad tax assets in
the absence of definite plans that operations for the coming years shall result fo
net income after depreciation. Other minor effects were in the recording of
interest income, capital gains, property plant and equipment and depreciation
and lease-finance expenses.

In August 2012, the BIR issued Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 35-
2012 — Clarifying the Taxability of Clubs Organized and Operated Exclusively for
Pleasure, Recreation and Other Non-profit purposes, Under Revenue
Memorandum Circutar No. 35-2012, membership dues which were previously
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exempted from VAT and income tax by virtue of BIR Rulings issued by the then
Commissioner Chato and Asst. Commissioner Roldan in 1996 and 2008
respectively are now subject to VAT and income tax. Said Revenue Memo had
significant impact in our finances and adverse effects in our cash flow, thus the
Board of Directors on Sept. 15, 2012 resolved to increase the membership duss
effective Oct. 2012. The Club complied under protest with the mandate of
Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 35-2012

For fiscal year 2014 the Clup applied certain accounting standards that
require restatement of previous year's financig| staternents, particularly Revised
PAS 19, Employees Benefits which requires all actuarial gains and losses to bs
recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income and unvested past service costs
previously recognized over the average vesting period, fo be recognized
immediately in income or loss when incurred.

minimat.

The Club strictly adheres to all snvironmenial Taws. Sources of water are
from the running creeks along the fairways and fertilizers used are alf
environmental friendly and not hazardous to health. The Board signed a mutual
environmental protection project and tree planting and seedling propagation with
the DENR. Organic materials are being used for the maintenance of the greens
and fairways. During the year 2001 the Club had undertaken the planting of

creeks and fairways. In 2010 we constructed a green house for seedlings of
various trees and several tree saplings were planted in the courses or given to
members. In our locker Tooms we had eliminated the use of plastics and
styropor.  Instead we made use of cloth bags and paper cups. We alsg
eliminated the use of plastic cups in the fairways and clubhouse instead we are

Total number of employees is 83. All are full time employees. We have
16 Depariment Managers and Supervisors and 67 rank and file employees, The

Supplemental bensfits includes free meals during overtime ang holidays and
special events in the Club, free coffee during break time and varioys aift items
during Chrisimas seasons.

There is no major risk involved in the business of Valley Golf & Country
Club.
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The club’'s members’ squity as of June 30, 2017 is P 243 Miltion. We do
not issue unsecured honds. Valley Golf has been in business for 59 years.

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Seen from the air, the clubhouse, which was designed by noted Filipino
Architect Gabriel Formoso, takes on the unmistakable shape of g golf ball
perched on a tee. The “golf hall “ houses the Men’s Locker Room. The * tee ©

houses the upper veranda, the golfers’ lounge and a viewing deck where one can
enjoy the action on the 9th or 18th green,

Adjacent to the clubhouse are two swimming pools with cabanas for men
and women. The state-of-the-art fully lighted for night use driving range with two-
level driving bays, all equipped with convex mirrors and the upper-level bays
feature the revolutionary TMAX-GOLF motor less dispensers with amenities such
as coffee shop and restaurant, sports bar, members' founge, pro-shop and
shower rooms is now tha envy of other golf clubs. Adequate parking near the
Main Clubhouse is assured for as many as 200 cars.

The North Clubhouse is furnished with modern facilities, complete with
restaurant, function rooms, locker rooms and offices. The restaurant is now
being managed by 2 concessionaire as part of innovations being introduced fo

the membership.
a.) Location and area of the properties.

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. is located along Don Celso S, Tuason
Ave., with enfry and exit on Ortigas Ave., Extn. and Sumulong Highway. Total
area is 1,222,971 sq. meters, part of the land is in Antipolo Cify and part in
Cainta, Rizal.
b.) Description and condition of the propariies.

All properties are registered in the name of Valley Golf Club, inc. and
none of the properties are mortgaged nor encumbered. The Club does not laase

any of its land.

Valley Golf does not intend to acquire any properties in the next twelve
(12) months.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All pending legal cases are enumerated and discussed as per attached
report of the Legal Counsel.

16




TAY o

L o

173 ?—'Q
o [
< ™

¢ 5
T o

Tromeo C. Anko

AMADO Danio G, Tavag

BERNADRITE G, Juannz

Resioa-Ross T, Rosario

Ronaloo L. Sanros, J 2 8 }une 2017
Parsick Joseen M, Quivio

ARLENE B, FiRaNDD

SYCIP, GORRES, VELAYO & 0.
6760 Ayala Avenue, Makati City

Attn: MR, ALEX]S BENIAMIN C, ZARAGOZA 111
Partner—ln-Charge

MR. FLLOYD P. DE LA CRUZ
Associate Director

Gentlemen:

Further to the letter request of our client Valley Gol

fand Country Club,
Inc., we are submitting a report on the cases handled for ou

r client,

1. Heirs of Victor Reves ys, Valley Golf and Counirv Club. Inc.

{SC GR No. 190641; CA-G.R Civil Case No. 80378; RTC-Makati City,
Branch 138: Civil Case No, 01-528; SEC Case No, 01-97-5522

This is a complaint by a former stockholder of VGCCI for reinstatement of
playing rights and/or issuance of new shares of stocks, The complainant claims

uction sale in 1986 of his share for delinquency of his accounts was void
for lack of notice to him. He is also claiming the amount of PhP20,000.00 as
attorney’s fees as well as costs of suit against the Club. In its Answer, the Club
claims that the complainant's action is already barred by the statute of
limitation and there was proper notice to him of his delinquency and the
auction sale. As counterclaim, the Club is claiming PhP50,000.00 as moral
damages, PhP50,000.00 as exernplary damages and PhP25,000.00 as attorney’s
fees. The Regional Trial Court has rendered judgment dismissing the complaint
as there was no infirmity in the auction sale of complainant’s share. Mr. Reyes
has filed an Appeal with the Court of Appeals where the case of now pending,
During the pendency of this appeal, the plaintiff passed away and the court,
upon motion of his heirs, ordered their substitution as the plaintiffs.

i i 2 eet, Mandaluyong City, 1550 Philippines
4/F Copylandia Bullding Annex 1, No. 720 Bumatay Street, Mind :
Tel (6/32] 906!?759 11 0 (632) 95g6~5196 @ Mohile: +63%17- 8113052  +63598-5039103 » Telefax (632) £31 28 63 p 1ofE
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On August 5, 2008, the Court of Appeals rendered a Decision reversing
the decision of the Regional Trial Court a

nd declared the plaintiff {as
substituted by his heirs) to be entitled to ¢

he reinstatement of his playing
rights and/or the re-issuance of a new share of stock from Valley. The

Court of Appeals said that the notice issued to the plaintiff as to the auction sale
was defective as the registry receipt was not sufficiently authenticated and that
cven assuming there was notice of delinquency sent to the plaintiff, the
payment of dues was the responsibility at the time of the playing guest to whom
the playing rights of the share was assigned. The Club filed a Motion for
Reconsideration on August 26, 2008 which was denied by the Court of Appeals
in its Resolution dated November 25, 2009. On December 18, 2009, the Club
filed a Petition for Review with the supreme Court. The heirs of Victor Reyes

already filed their Comment to which Valley Golf filed its Reply on 03 January
2011.

On 10 November 2015, the Su
the Club’s petition for review and affi
February 2016, Valley Golf filed its
was denied by the Supreme Court i

preme Court rendered its decision denying
rming the Court of Appeals decision. On 16
Mation for Reconsideration. However, this

n its Notice dated 16 March 2016 which we
received on 25 May 2016. An Entry of Judgment has been issued and hence, the

decision has become final and executory. Plaintiff already filed a Motion for
Issuance of Writ of Execution. However, the hearing did not push through and to
date, there has been no rescheduling of the hearing or resolution of the motion,
We expect the plaintiff to pursue the execution of the Decision. On the other
hand, the legal effect of the invalidation of the auction sale is to revive the

previous indebtedness of the late Dr. Reyes for unpaid monthly dues, which can
also be claimed from the heirs of Dr. Reyes.

2. Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. vs. Gabing Maestre, et al.,

(Civil Case No. 09-8769, Branch 71 of the Regional Trial Court of
Antipolo City)

This is a complaint for accion publiciana to recover possession of real
property belonging to the Club under TCT No. 518354 currently being occupied
by several squatters. The Club is. seeking a decision from the Regional Trial
Court ordering the defendants (about 37 in number), together with their
families/households, and any and all persons claiming rights from them, at
present and in the future, to vacate the subject properties in question and to
restore the possession of the same to the Club. The Club is also seeking the
payment of the attorney’s fees in the amount of PHP50,000.00 acceptance fee -
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the property back o the
ation. Ag counterclaim,
Mages and PHP20,000.00

public once it ig no lenger used for railway oper.
defendants are claiming PHP500,000.00 ag moral da
attorney’s fees for each of them,

represented by counsel to file their Pre-Trig] Brief, the court allowed Valley Golf
to present its evidence €x-parte.  These defendants filed a Motion for
Reconsideration which Valley opposed ang the court denied this motion. Valley
Golf presented itg evidence ex-parte and filed its Formal Offer of Evidence, The
other defendants filed another Manifestation with Mot

allowed to present their own evidence which wag denied by the court after
Valley Golf filed its Opposition.

On 02 September 2015, Valley Golf through its counsels received the
Decision of the Regional Trial Court which declareqd Valley Golf as the lawful
owner of the broperty and ordered it to be placed in possession of it and the

Golf. Some of the defendants filed a Motion for Reconsideration to which Valley
Golf filed itg Comment/@pposition on 27 October 2015.

In the interval, Valley Golf signed in 2015 a Memorandum of Agreement
with Malaya Valley Homeowners’ Association, Inc, which, though not a party,
claims to represent all the informal settlers on the subject property, some of
which are already defendants in this case, Upon the instructions of the Board
and management, Valley Golf's counsels filed a Motion for Approval of
Compromise Agreement or the terms of the MOA. However, some of the
individual defendants filed g Manifestation claiming that they did not sign ang
are vehemently opposing the Compromise Agreement (MOA).
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litigation, and that it wil] now be virtually im

On 24 October 2016, the RTC of Antipolo rendered an Order denying the
Motion for Reconsideration of some of the defendants and approving the

Compromise Agreement insofar as the defendants who were not opposing it,
The defendants who filed th i

Appeal. On the other hand, upon the
filed on 21 December 2016 a Motion for Partia)

objecting to it thereby putting to naught the objective of the MOA to end the

possible to implement the MOA

based on its original terms and premises. The Motion for Partial

Reconsideration is stil] pending resolution,

3. Valley Golf Hills Homeown
Country Club, Inc.

(HLURB Case No, NCRHOA~05101;6-2436, HLURB Expanded National
Capital Region Field Office, Quezon City}

ers Asseciation, Inc vs, Valley Golf and

This a complaint filed by Vall
against Valley Golf and Country Cl
security, and maintenance of the

ey Golf Hills Homeowners Association, Inc,
ub, Inc. praying that the control, management,

(d) of RA. 9904, otherwise known as the "Magna Carta for Hom
Homeowners’ Associations” which provides that homeowners associ
the right to regulate management of common areas, as well as to regulate access
to, or passage through subdivision/village roads fer purposes of preserving
privacy, tranquility, internal security, and safety and traffic order.

On 10 june 2015, Valley Golf, through counsel, filed its Answer (with
Counterclaim). In the Answer, it was argued that the complaint ought to be
dismissed on the ground of lack of jurisdiction considering that it does not fal]
under any of the disputes or controversies under the jurisdiction of the HLURB,
as provided for under Section 2, Rule 1 of the Revised Rules of Procedure of the
HLURB. In any case, it was likewise argued that the complaint ought to be
dismissed for utter lack of merit. At the outset, it was pointed out that the
Supreme Court had already ruled with finality that the property (Don Celso
Tuason Avenue) is private property solely owned by Valley Golf, Furthermore,
the faw sought to be enforced by the Complainant, in particular, Section 10 of
R.A. No. 9904, does not apply in the present case, Lastly, it was stressed that to
turn over the management of the gates and roads on property owned by Valley
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Golf would he tantamount to

a taking without due Process and without payment
of just compensation in vig}

ation of the Respondent's property rights.

their respective Position Papers. Thereafter, the case will be submitted for
decision. On 02 August 2016, we filed Valley Golf's Position Paper. Later, after
receiving a copy of the Position Paper of the plaintiff, we filed a Motjon to Strike
Out Position Paper of Plaintiff on the ground that it was filed out of time,
Plaintiff filed its Upposition thereto but this incident has yet to be resolved.

On 24 May 2017, Valley Golf received through undersigned counsel g
Mation for Issuance of Writ of Preliminary Injunction and/or Cease and Desist
Order filed by plaintiffs new counsel. Valley Golf filed its Comment/Opposition
to this Motion to which plaintiff filed its Reply. On 28 june 20 17, Valley Golf filed
its Rejoinder and hence, this Motion shall be deemed submitted for resolution,

The Club has a monthly retainer agreement with the Firm. Valley Golf
and Country Club, Inc. has no unpaid accounts with our Firm as of june 30,
2017. We trust that we have been of assistance.

7

Very truly yours,

O DANILO G. TAY
For the Firm

CC: MR. ISAURO G. SAN PEDRO, JR.
President
VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
Antipolo City
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ITERM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the Annua!l Stockholders' Mesting was
held on Sept. 25, 2016. Out of the 1,593 issued and subscribed shares, 874 shares

were represented by proxy or present in person, therefore, the President, as presiding
chairman, declared a quorum.

On the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on Sept. 25, 2016, the following were
elected as Directors:

1. Virgilio C. Bucst - 641 votes
2. Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. - 627 votes
3. Jaime Victor J. Santos - 831 voies

The other directors whose term of office continued are Messrs. Alexander S.
Marguez, Lakan Fonacier, Isauro San Pedro, Abraham C. dela Cruz, Luis Quiogue and
Luis Manusl 3. Polintan,.

Matters discusssed during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting include the
ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 20186,
approval of the minutes of the annual meeting held on Septsmber 27, 2015 and the
election of the external auditor. On the election of the External Auditor, the stockholders
resolved to elect Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. as the Club's External Auditor for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2017.

The details of the discussion are as follows:

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS® MEETING
OF VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, INC,
Held at the Main Clubhouse, Valley Golf and Couniry Club
Antipolo Gity on 25 September 2016

L. Call to Ordey

Valley Golf and Country Club’s Chairman, Jaime F. Panganiban (Chairman
Panganiban), called the meeting to order at 4:10 p.im., and presided over the same. The
Corporate Secretary, Aity. Ronald O. Solis (Atty. Solis), recorded the minutes of the
mesting.

It. Determination of Quorum
Chairman Panganiban inquired from the Secretary of the Meeting whether g
quorum was present. Alty. Solis replied in the affirmative. According to Atty. Solis, the

total attendance was Eight Hundred Seventy Four (874) members/shares, which were
either personally present or represented by valid proxies. Hence, g quorum existed
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since the number already exceeded Seven Hundred Ninsty Five (795) shares, which
was only needed for purposes of having a quorum.

Upon inquiry as to how many shares were represented by proxies vis a vis the
members who were personally present it was determined that Eight Hundred Thirty Nine

(839) shares were represented by proxies, and Thity Five (35) members were
personally present.

HI. Proof of Due Notice of the Mesting

Chairman Panganiban asked whether there was proof of due notice of the
meeting. Atty. Solis replied in the affimative. The pertinent registry return cards and/or
delivery receipts are on file with the Club’s secretariat as evidence of transmission and
recelpt of the said notices and other necessary documents to all stockholders of record.

The said documents are present and available for inspection by any member who might
wish to do so.

. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting Held on 27 September
2015

Chairman Panganiban proceeded with the next item on the agenda, which was
the approval of the previous year's minutes. The stockholders were also provided with
copies of the minutes of the previous years annual stockholders’ meeting and were
given sufficient time to read the same. Jose B. Tayawa moved for the approval of the
minutes of the annual stockholders’ meeting held on 27 September 2015, which motion
was duly seconded by Jose Ferlu O. Sudario. There were no objections. Hence:

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the annual
stockholders’ meeting held on 27 September 2015 are
hereby approved and adopted.

V. Matters Arising From the Minutes

Chairman Panganiban opened the floor for any inquiries relative 1o the previous
year's minutes. After a moment, considering that there were no questions relative
thereto, the Chairman proceeded with the next item on the agenda.

V. Chairman’s and Treasurer's Report

Chairman Panganiban manifested that all stockholders were provided copies of
the Club’s Annual Report. He inquired whether there were any questions relative thereto.
Considering that there were no questions, Nr. Tayawa moved for the approval of the
Chairman’s and Treasurer's Report for the fiscal year 20152016, which motion was duly
seconded by Mr. Sudario. There were no objections. Hence:
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RESOLVED, that the Chairman’s Report, as well
as the Treasurer's Report, for the fiscal year 2015 to
2018, as presented, are both hereby approved and
adopted.

Likewise, Mr. Sudario commended the Board of Directors especially the President for
the positive results of the Financial Statement as compared to last year.

VI, Ratification of Prior Acis of the Board of Directors and Management

Chairman Panganiban stated that all stockhoiders were similarly furnished with
copies of all the resolutions of the Board of Directors, and had more than sufficient time
to peruse the same. Thus, Mr. Tayawa moved for the ratification of the prior acts of the
Board of Directors. and Managsment for the period 01 July 2015 to 30 June 2016,
including the disposal of non-performing assets and settlement of cases which involve
disposal of some properties of the Club, which motion was duly seconded to by Mr.
Marcelo. There were no objections. Hence:

) RESOLVED, that the acts of the Board of
Directors and Management for the period 01 July 2015
up to 30 June 2016, including the disposal of non-
performing asseis and settlement of cases which
involve disposal of some properties of the Club, are
hereby ratified.

Viil.  Appointment of External Auditor

Chairman Panganiban opened the floor for the election of the Club’s external
auditor. Mr. Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. moved to retain the services of Sycip Gorres Velayo &
Co. as the Club’s external auditor, which motion was duly seconded to by Mr. Sudario.
There were no objections. Heshce:

RESOLVED, that Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. is
hereby retained as the independent external auditor of
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

IX. Election of Directors

Chairman Panganiban called on the Chairman of the Commission on Elections
(Comelec), Atty. Plaridel J. Bohol ll, to preside over the election of the new Directors and
the canvassing of votes for the amendment of the By-Laws. The other members of the
Comelec were Atty. Francisco B. Figura and Afty. Ben A. Delos Reyes. The foflowing
were the official nominees:
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Virgilio C. Bucat
Augusio A. Cruz, Jr.
Gerardo B. Marcelo
Jaime Victor J. Santos

GM Antonio Cartos S. Ocampo then proceeded with the canvassing of the votes,
After the canvassing, Atty. Boho! announced the resulis of the elections:

Candidates for Election:

Virgilio G. Bucat — 19 in person / 822 by proxy, total of 641 votes
Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. — 15 in person / 612 by proxy, total of 627 votes
Gerardo B. Marcelo 53 in person / 538 by proxy, total of 591 votes
Jaime Victor J. Santos - 24 in person / 607 by proxy, total of 631 votes

As regards the referendum on the amendment of Article 111, Sec. 1, Articie iV
Sec. 1, Article Il Sec. 5, the following are the resulis of the voting:

Amendment to By-Laws:

Article Ill, Sec. 1 - not approved

in Favor - 524
Not In Favor - 216
Abstain - 119
Article 1V, Sec. 1 — not approved
In Favor - 522
Not In Favor - 217
Abstain - 120
Article llf, Sec. 5 — not approved
In Favor - 462
Not In Favor - 273
Abstain - 124

For failure to reach the two-thirds vote required by the Corporation Code for

amendment of the By-Laws, proposed amendment of Article ill, Sec. 1, Article IV Sec. 1
and Article H Sec. 5 are not approved.

Thereafter, Atty. Bohol, together with the members of the Comelec, proclaimed
the foliowing as the newly elected Directors of Vallsy Golf & Country Club:

Virgilio C. Bucat
Augusto A, Cruz, Jr.
Jaime Victor J. Santos

Messrs. Bucat, Cruz and Santos were called upon, and all of them gave a short
acceptance message to their fellow members.

Chairman Panganiban thereafter congratulated the winning Directors.
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X Adjourniment

There being no other matters to be discussed, upon motion by Mr. Tayawa and
duly seconded by Mr. Sudario the meeting was adjourned at 6:05 p.m.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANGIAL INFORMATION

ITEWM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDERS' MATTERS

1.) Market Information

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. does not market its shares in the siock
exchange and all stockholders have pre-emptive rights on the sale of ¢lub shares. Total
number of authorized capital stock is 1,800 at P 9,000.00 par value. Vallsy Golf is a
non-profit club and does not issue any stock or cash dividends.

The Board of Directors on their Special Meeting fast June 22, 2009 approved the
sale of 26 shares of stock with the following conditions: .

1. The conditions of the sale are as follows:
1.1 Cash basis

1.1.1. Outright sale of shares at Php380,000.00 each (minimum price for
the first batch). Transfer Fee shall not be applicable.

1.1.2. For non-members, membership is subject to compliance o the
Membership processing requirements and approval of the
Membership Commitiee.

1.1.3. All shares must be activated within 30 days pursuant to Article VII,

Section 3, of the By-Laws and Section 7 of the Arficles of
Incorporation.

1.2.  Shares of stock will be sold in batches and prices as follows:
Daie
of Sale

1.2.1. First batch - 3 shares of stock P 380,000.00 June 26 — 30
1.2.2. Second batch - 3 shares of stock P 400,000.00 Jul. 1 —Jul. 7

or after 1% batch is sold whichever is earlier
1.2.3. Third batch -3 shares of stock P 425,000.00 Jul. 8 - Jul.14

or after 2™ batch is sold whichever is earlier
1.2.4. Fourth batch -3 shares of stock P 450,000.00 Jul. 15- Jul, 22

or after 3" batch is sold whichever is earlier
1.2.5. Fifth batch -3 shares of stock P 475,000.00 Jul 23 -Jul.31

or after 4" baich is sold whichever is earlier
Note: Prices are subject to change without prior nofice.
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2. Sale will be as foliows:

2.1 From June 26 — July 7, 2009, only to proprietary members on record as of
May 31, 2006. Proprietary members who are interested to buy shares
after July 7, 2009 will be given priority,

2.2 Assuming that shares are stil available, Playing guests, Corporate
Representatives, children and Spouses of proprietary members will be
aliowed to buy shares beginning July 8, 2000.

2.3 Assuming that shares are stil available, Non-members will be aliowed to
buy beginning July 15, 2009.

3. The mechanics of the sale are as follows:

3.1 Sales inquiry must be coursed through the Cffice of the President
beginning June 26, 2000,

3.2 Sale will be on a first come, first serve basis.

3.3 If there are more than three (3) interested buyers at the same time, the
winner will be selecied by raffle.

3.4 Noreservations will be entertained.

4. Utilization of the proceeds of the sale:
41, Payment of outstanding loans.
4.2, Tofund the 3-year development program

As of June 30, 2013, there were fifteen (15) shares sold from this issuance.

The Board of Directors in their regular meeting last Nov. 15, 2014 approved the
following:

1. INSTALLMENT SALE OF SHARES OF STOCK

a.) Deferred payment of the share of stock and transfer fee.

b.) “Allin selling price” of P 350k.

c.) Payable in 12 monthly instaliments,

d.) Membership of the buyers is subject to compliance with the Membershi
processing requirements.and approval of the Membership Committes. :

As of June 30, 2015, there were five (5) shares sold from this issuance.

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. does not market its shares in the stock
exchange. Frequency of trading is sporadic. For the fiscal years 2000 and 2001, the
market price ranges from the club subscription rate of P 625,000.00 io P 500,000.00.
For the year 2002 market price is from P 500,000.00 to P 450,000.00. For the years
2003 to 2014 markst price is at P 400,000.00 to P 500,000.00 for Club subscription and
P332,000 to P292,000 for third party market. Market prices include the transfer fee of P
112,000.00. For the fiscal year 2015 and 2016 the market price is P250,000.00 plus
56,000 transfer fee during the promo period or 112,000 after the promo. Faor the
fiscal year 2017 the market price is P312,000.00 plus P67.2000 transfer fee during the
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promo period or P112,000 after the promo. Market prices were based on subscription
rates and transactions vrocessed in the club.

2.) Holders

Total number of shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2017 is 1,593
shares. There is no individual or corporate stockholder who is the beneficial owner of at
least five percent (6 %) of the total shares outstanding. The top twenty (20}
shareholders are as follows:

NAME OF STOCKHOLDER NO. OF SHARES PERCENTAGE
OWNED ' .
1. PAE Ventures, Inc. 8 0.38 %
2. TDR, Incorporated 5 0.31 %
3. Manila Electric Co. 5 0.31 %
4, Solia State Mulii Products Corp. 5 0.31 %
5. Sguires Bingham Co., Inc. 5 0.31 %
6. First Phillippine Holdings Coporation 4 0.25 %
7. Vicente and Gerardo Madrigal 4 0.25 %
8. Metropolitan Bank and Trust Co. 4 0.25 %
9. Mitsubishi Motors Phils., Corp. 4 0.25 %
10. Phil. National Bank 4 0.25 %
11. Reliable Electric Co., Inc. 4 0.25 %
12. Edward Cheok 3 0.19 %
13. Des C. Chuan & Sons, Inc. 3 0.19 %
14. Jalandoni, Johnny 3 0.19 %
15. Savero A. Tuason & Co. 3 0.18 %
16. Severo Josa Tuason 3 0.12 %
i7. Perry Y. Uy 2 0.13 %
18. Anna’s Catering, Inc. 2 0.13 %
19. Meatropolitan Insurance Company 2 013 %
20. Tuason, Demetrio R. 2 0.13 %

There is no acquisition, business combination or other reorganization that shall
affect the amount and percentage of present holdings of the equity owned by each
director and nomines, all directors and officers as a group or any present commitments
to such persons with respect to the issuance of shares.

3.) Dividends

Valley Goff is a non-profit club and does not declare any form of dividends.
Income earnings are being used for maintenance of the golf courses and to improve the
services to the members.

4 Recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities.

Valley Golf has not sold any unregistered or exempt securities during the present
and previous fiscal years. :
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ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND AMALYSIS OR PLAN OF
OPERATION.

1. PLAN OF OPERATION

OBJECTIVES:

a. To have a timely scheduled improvement of Club facilities and services. -

b. Profitability and financial liquidity for operations and to fund various
projects.

ACTION PLAN:

1. To ensure that all bunker sand in the North Course will be completely
rehabilitated by Oct. 2017.

To ensure that all fairways will be zoysia by December 2017.
To increase monthly dues by Jan. 2017,
To develop new country club activities.

B wh

2. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. is a private non-profit club incorporated on May

14, 1958. It has two golf courses composed of 36 holes and a main clubhouse and
north clubhouse.

The rehabilitation of the second 9 south course, which started last August 2002,
was completed last October 2003 and the course was playable last November 2003.
The Club hired the services of Ecoturf Gelf and Turf Care Systems as the Construction
Manager and the Board approved the contract of Golforce, Inc. as the contractor for the
project. To fund the construction, the Board approved the loans from members at P 45
Million, though only P 39.5 Million was actually incurred.

The second phase of the rehabilitation is the first 9 of the south course. To
provide the funding thereof, the Board of Directors on their Regular Mesting on May 31,
2003 resolved to sell the 150 Unissued Shares of Stock subject to pre-emptive rights of
proprietary/corporate members, playing guests, in the order indicated. The proceeds of
the sale shall be exclusively used for the following specific purposes:

1. Rehabilitation of the South Course front nine

2. Payment of outstanding loans used in the rehabiiitation of the golf course.
3. Improvement of the main clubhouse.
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Selling price of the shares on installment basis is at P 500,000.00 per share
payable with a down payment of P 125,000.00 and 23 equal monihly instaliments of P
15,000.00 and the 24" month at P 30,000.00. Cash basis is at P 450,000.00

The Board on their mesting last May 31, 2003 also approved the sale of prime
lots of the Club located along Don Celso Tuason Ave. to augment funds for the projects.

Rehabifitation works of the first nine south course started [ast November 2003
and works were completed and the first nine south course was inaugurated last Nov. 20,
2004.  Contract for labor for the rehabilitation was awarded to bidder Philgolf
Development & Equip, Inc. in the amount of P 20,000,000.00. Materials were purchased
in-house with an initial budget of P 31,500,000 and additional budget of P 4,000,000.00
for the bunker sand and P 1,552,000.00 for herring bone installation. As of June 30,
2005 total cost of the renovation is P 130,000,000 (gross of vaf) or P 125,000,000.00
(net of vat)

On December 2005 Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. entered inio a Coniract of
Lease with Agreement to Buy Green Fee Coupons with Global Golf & Leisure, the. (now
Philippine Golf & Leisure, Inc.). The contract includes rental of the North Clubhouse in
the amount of P 150,000.00 per month with yearly 5% escalation and purchase of green
fee coupons with a minimum amount of 10,000 pieces per year at the rate of P 700.00
per coupon with an escalation rate of 10% per year. This is part of the effort of the
Board of Directors to generate income from the North Clubhouse. The confract was
terminated last January 5, 2008. For the fiscal years 2009 to 2013, the Club entered into
contracts with Korea Golf & Members Leisure, Inc. for sale of green fee coupons for the
North Course. Sale of coupons are as follows P 5 Million, P 2.3 Million, P 1.29 Million,
P3.43 Million and P1.9 Miliion for the fiscal years 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013
respectively. On July 1, 2013, the Club entered info a new contract with Korea Golf to
purchase a minimum of P 4 Million green fee coupons for a period of 5 years.

In line with the revenue generation program of the Club, the Board of Directors
implemented various green fee promotions which include No Frills Monday, Twilight Fee,
Friday Free Lunch, Accompanied guests promo and Sunday Afternoon Delight. These
promos are geared toward increasing the number of accompanied guests and walk-in
players.

Renovation of the Main Clubhouse started in July 15, 2008. The Board of
Directors on their regular meeting last July 12, 2008 approved the contract with Reyes
Interiors in the amount of P 4.5 Million fot the renovation; while Valley Golf will purchase
the other supplies like tiles, aluminum frame and glass. The total cost of the project is
estimated at P 9 Million.

The Board of Directors on their Speciai Meeting last June 22, 2009 approved the
sale of 26 shares of stock with the following conditions:

1. The conditions of the szle are as follows:
1.2 Cash basis

1.2.1. Ouiright sale of shares at Php380,000.00 each (minirnum price for
the first batch). Transfer Fee shall not be applicable.
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1.2.2. For non-members, membarship is subject to compliance to the
Membership processing requirements and approval of the
Membership Committee.

1.2.3. All shares must be activated within 30 days pursuant to Article VI,

Section 3, of the By-Laws and Section 7 of the Articles of
Incorporation.

2. Shares of stock will be sold in batches and prices as follows:

Date
of Sale

2.1, First batch - 3 sharss of stock P 380,000.00 June 26 — 30
2.2.  Second batch - 3 shares of stock P 400,000.00 Jul. 1 — Jul. 7
or after 1% batch is sold whichever is earlier
2.3.  Third batch -3 shares of stock P 425,000.00 Jul. 8 —Jul.14
or after 2™ baich is sold whichever is earlier
2.4.  Fourith batch -3 shares of stock P 450,000.00 Jdul. 15- Jul. 22
or after 3™ batch is sold whichever is earlier
2.5 Fifth baich - 3 shares of stock P 475,000.00 Jul, 23 -Jul.31
or after 4" batch is sold whichever is earlier

Utilization of the proceeds of the sale will be the payment of outstanding loans
and to fund the 3-year development program.

Part of the renovation project of the Main clubhouse is the basement offices. The
contract was awarded to Reyes Interiors and renovation works started on Nov. 2011,
The project was completed on March 2012 with a total cost of P 4.2 Million. The Men's
locker room was likewise renovated with a total cost of P 6.1 Million including the pocket

garden. The project was awarded to Northstar 1bex Construction Corp. and works
started on Jan. 2013 and completed on April 2013.

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, the following projects were complated:

—_—

Improvement of bridges - Noith course

Hole # 1 78,625.01

Hole # 2 35,741.07
2 Installztion of lamp posts at the bridge near the main gate. 65,825.65
3 Phase 2 - Reblocking and asphalt overlay of DCTA 3,880,000.00
4 Renovation of Kid's swimming pool. 67,627.51
5  Maintenance of Golf cart station 158.,980.71
8 Phase 1- CCTV project : - 101,033.72
7 " Installation of roofing for Golf Cart Area 773,420.35
8 Furniture for the Members' lounge/gym 120,000.00
9 Kitchen Exhaust System ( labor & materials ) 217,145.00
10 Kitchen hood fire suppression system 150,000.00
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11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22
23
24
25
26
27
28
28
30
31
32

33
34

CooN®D TR WD~

Server

Two (2) units aircon for gym/lounge
Three (3} units brush cutters

One (1) unit greens mower with groomer

Two units two way radio for Eng'y & Grounds

Organizational Streamlining

1 unit Concrete cutier

1 unit Concrete vibrator

3 units Computer deskiop w/OS & MS office
2 units  Antivirus for.servers

1 unit Laser printer

1 unit Base radio

1 unit Computer desktop w/OS & MS office
1 unit Computer desktop w/OS & MS office
2 units Computer desktop w/OS & MS office
1 unit Laptop

Proposed Gym/ Men's Lounge

Tee House North Course-Hole#t4

Pocket Garden

Golf carts- 10 units

Walk behind rotary mower- 2 units

Fly mower- 2 units

Renovation of Clinic
Purchase of truck mounied man lifter

Purchase of ona (1) unit back hoe
Purchase of ten (10) units go!f carts
Purchase of 4 units desk top computers
Purchase of 2 units 2 way radio

Renovation of satellite kitchen
Driving range shot area
Additional golf cart storage
Purchase of copying machine

10. Purchase of 17 units Samsung Galaxy tablets

11, Purchase of 7 units transformer book
12. Purchase of 3 units brush cutters

13. Purchase of projector

14. Purchase of 2 units tru cut edger

299,500.00
85,000.00
37,500.00

640,000.00
25,000.00

250,000.00
35,000.00
18,000.00

120,000.00
72,900.00
24,900.00
14,500.00
40,000.00
40,000.00
37,000.00
29,750.00

418,663.75
467,001.52
535,714.29

2,650,000.00

150,000.00
110,000.00
247 872.61
690,000.00

Repair of controller pump of the South course

12,697,601.19

FFor the fiscal year snding June 30, 2015, the following projects were completed:

3,303,571.43
2,800,000.00
160,000.00
23,000.00
150,714.29
45,471.00
81,194.10
70,058.94
243,000.00
407,830.00
156,100.00
37,500.00
33,900.00
40,850.00
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15. Purchase of stesl lockers

16. Improvement of bridges

17. improvement of drainage in Hole # 5 South course
18. improvement of driving range facilities

19. Renovation of Bag drop area

The following are the projects for Fiscal year 2016

N oA LN

—_

©O N TS ®N

1

0.

PARTICULARS
Controlier for vertical turbine pump
Rehabilitation of bunker sand
Repair of pump in the North Course
Sound system for the Founders’ Hall
Purchase of tablets, Laptop and printers
Purchase of Riso digital duplicator
Rehabilitation of the South course

The following are the projects for Fiscal year 2017

PARTICULARS

Repair of South Course pump

(total project cost is P3.25 Million)

Irrigation system

Construction of Expansion of Men’s Locker room
Renovation of Secondary & Sumulong gates
Purchase of 20 units golf carts

Purchase of 8 units deskiop computers
Rehabilitation of bunker sand

Repair of Bag drop area Phase 2

Repair of Pump North Course

Rehabilitation of South Course

11. Purchase of Suzuki carry for water delivery
12. Purchase of 2 units projectors

652,400.00
226,555.98
535,714.28

48,201.79
938,1786.97

9,364,940.78

AMOUNT DISBURSED
P 621,012.58
P2817,418.14
P 186,000.00
P 363,248.45
P 144,830.00
P 125,060.00
P 5,454,400.38

ANIOUNT DISBURSED

P 1,346,277.66

1,305,843.28

225.000.00
199,988.00
5,880,000.00
187,500.00
3,035,840.85
600,317.38
245,000.00
5,379,464.16
160,000.00
64,000.00

P 18719,231.33
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THE PROJECTS FOR IMPLEMENTATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 ARE AS

FOLLOWS:

FISCAL YEAR 2018 PRIORITY LEVEL

1 GOLF COURSES
North Course
Rehabilitation of bunker sand

VLG Pumps

Souih Course

Fitter for pumps

1
Desilting
2 CLUBHOUSES AND FACILITIES
1
Upgrading of Tee houses
2  Replace the railings in the veranda to 1
wood. :
3 i

Repainting of roct and repair of gutters
& ventilation panels of Main Clubhouse

Renovation of swimming pool

Improvement of Function room in the
Norih Clubhousa
Reblocking of DCTA

PURCHASE OF MAINTENANCE EQUIPRENT, VEHICLES & OTHER

3 EQUIFMENT

2
! Eleven (11) uniis Desk iop computers

at P40,00G (10 units) and P45,000 (1 unif)
each.

2 Three (3) uniis POS Printers st P15,000 2
sach

3 o p
Elsven (11) units MS Office License

1 License MS Office Pro at P22,500 each

5,002,000.00
6,000,000.00

1,000,000.00
250.000,00

500,000.00

500,000.00

500,000.00

1,800,000.00

500,000.00

1,000,000.00

445,000.00

45,000.00

77,600.00

To replace the existing pumps in the

North Course

Improvement to include tables & chairs,

mini kitchen, stockroom & landscaping.

The steel bars are out datad.

To raplace old stained tiies and
upgrade its design

Upgrade the interior design and
facilities.

To repair dilapidated road.

For Accounting, Cradit & Coliection,

Controllers, MIS, Golf Cart area, Glinic
MIS- TV Ads, Internal Audit, Membership
and Sports & Games.

For Registration area.
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10 License Open License at P5 500/year
4  MS Cffice and windows License for
Laptop

System Enhancement

Payroll System

One (1) unit Welding Generator
Ten {10) units Alrcocler at P17,000 each

Sopbhos Firewall

TOTAL PRIORITY 1
TOTAL PRIORITY 2

CAPEX OF PREVIOUS FISCAL YEAR

FISCAL YEAR 2017

LEVEL

1 GOLF COURSES
South Course _
T Construction of drainage at cartpath # 5
2 rrigation - Additiona! sprinklers
(100 pcs. X P14,300.00)

2,

pid

20,000.00

300,000.00

160,000.00

52,000.00
170,000.00
160,000.00

18,479,500.00

17,432,000.00
1,047,500.00

18,479,500.00

PRIORITY

85,000.00

1,430,000.00

For Membership & Exec. Secretary
Modifications of Program for BIR
Complian'ce

Official Receipts to include CWT
Automatic computation of VAT for Othar
paymanis

Amount to Limit to 2 decimal points
Members consumable report

Aging Report for Other Receivables
Ta replace obsolete system to comply
with government requirements.

For projecis

For the Clubhouse

For the computerized system.

To prevent water ponding during rains.
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North Course

[rrigation system

Part 1 - P 3,500,000.00
Part 2 - P 3,500,000.00
Part 3 - P 3,338,750.00
Total - P10,338,750.00

Renovation of pump room

2 CLUBHOUSES AND FACILITIES

Replacement of Roof of Motorpool area

Painiing of roof of Motorpool Fabrication
ared.

Concrating of road frem Driving range
going to cart path of fairway #10 North
course

Repair of Drainage along DCT Avenue

One (1} unit Deskiop computar
@ 40,000 each
One (1) unit Laptop

Timekeeping Software

Biometric machine

Development of Passcard system

and SOA Enhancement

Aircon for room on upper level of North
Clubhouse

One (1) unit Electronic Defribilator

TOTAL FISCAL YEAR 2017

S

1

2

230,000.00

460,000,00

75,008.00

150,000.00

1,360,000.00

PURCHASE OF MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT, VEHICLES & OTHER
3 EQUIPMIENT

40,030.00

25.000.00
75,000.00

35,000.00
167,000.00

35,000.00

175,000.00

4,342,000.00

Sprinklers, satellite

controllers and pipes.

To provide better facility for pump

mainterance and repair.

To reptace old and broken roofing sheets
to prevent leaks during rainy season.

To prevent rusting and protect lifespan
of roofing sheats.

To provide road accessibility

Engineering

For Admin/HR for committee migs.
Improve workforce productivity by
reducing manual and fimely
administrative tasks, freeing staff for
more value-added activities.

To replace the old unit.

Forthe new passcard system

Malfunction of the present unit,

For emergency purposes.




TOTAL PRIORITY 1
TOTAL PRIGRITY 2

FISCAL YEAR 2016

LEVEL
1 GOLF COURSES
South Course

1 Improvement of Manhole - Hole # 5

2 Installation of lights at Hole Nos. 8, 9,

8 16 (cost P675,000.00)

2 CLUBHOUSES AND FACILITIES
1 Main Clubhouse/North Clubhouse
Annual improvement of Club facilities

2 Phase 2 - Renovation of bag drop area
{Includes the entrance right and left side,

interior of bagdrop and Caddie area)
Phase 3 for FY 2017 - P 3,000,000
(includes the Restaurant area)
Phase 3 for FY 2018 - P 5,000,000
{Includes Grill room restarurant)

3 Construction of parking area beside the

gasofine station including riprap wall

PURCHASE OF MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT, VERICLES & OTHER

3 EQUIPBENT

1 Alrcon for the North Glubhouse {5 toner)

2 One (1) unit dumpiruck 8 cum capacity

Service Vehicle

ha

2

1

1

3,447,000.00
895,000.00

4,342,000.00

PRIGRITY

850,000.00

500,000.00

2,000,000.00

400,000.00

145,000.00

450,000.00

1,300,000.00

Ta prevent overflowing of garbaga
during heavy rains.
Subject to sponsorship from members.

Includes painiing of clubhouse,
replacement of broken tiles,
repair of cailings and others

‘to improve the area for bag drop
storage.

To provide parking for guests at
Motorpoal Area.

Additional unit because existing aircon
is not enough for the function room.
To be used for hauling silts.

Existing units purchased in 2006, 2008
and

2009

Existing unit L-300 second hang to be
sold

due to high maintenance costs.
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Second hand unit purchased in 2003.

4 CLURB PROJECTS

1 Gountry Club activities such as Sunday 1 500,000.00 To provide activities for
mass, weekend barbecue, Easter egg
hunt, Halloween party, Summer aris &
craft, dance studio, Christmas party,

reciprocity with other golf clubs, sfc. Ciub.

members and their families
other than golf, for bonding and
to increase customers in the

2 Clubhouse Projects 1 500,000.00 To provide house projects for

improvemeant of services and facllities
in the Clubhouses, lockers, function

rooms, elc.

5 CALANMITY FUND 2 5,000,000.00 Provision for repair of the golf

TOTAL FISCAL YEAR 2016

11,645,800,00

TOTAL PRIORITY 1 5,660,000.00
TOTAL PRIORITY 2 6,045,000.00

11,645,000.00

courses in case of calamities

The Board of Directors last July 3, 2013 approved the 3 year development plan
for the Fiscal years 2014 — 2016. The 3 year development plan of Valley Golf is as
follows: ‘

A. GOLF COURSES

B. CLUE

No ok N

1. Sand capping in the South course

2. Improvement of bridges in the North Course
3.
4
5

Improvement of Landscape

. Installation of led flood lights at Hole #18 & 9 South Course

Installation of liners on all manmade lakes

HOUSES AND AMENITIES

Improvement of Parking area

Installation of non skid floor tiles in the swimming pool area
Improvement of Driving range facilities

Construction of Bar and Grill Restaurant on existing bag drop area
Installation of roof on parking area of equipment

Construction of sports amenities in replacement of housing units
Asphalt overlay on main roads inside the Club

3,500,000.00
7.500,000.00
45).000.00
150,000.00

11,600,000.00

2,750,000.00

850,000.00
2,800,000.00
2,600,000.00
3,000,000.00
1,800,000.00
2,400,000.[}0
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8. Installation of coliapsible tent in the lower verandza

9. Installation of roofing at golf cart open area

10. Construction of game room from portion of Ladies’ locker
11. Purchase of F & B equipment & renovation of kitchen

11. Installation of roll up doors in all Tee houses

12 Construction of Hotel Suites (BOT)

13. Computerization of F & B and tee housas

14. Computerization of Main Clubhouse F & B

TOTAL

4,200,000.00
900,000.00
700,000.00
8,000,000.00
400,000.00

857,000.00
110,000.00

31,367,000.00

42,567,000.00

The results of our operations for the fiscal year July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 is
refiected in the audited financial report.- Our earnest effort to increase our variable
revenue sources and closely monitor our operating expenses contributed in keeping our
net loss at a minimal level of Php1.66 Million. We do not have non-recurring gain on
sale of lot for this year as compared to last year's gain of Php8.7 Million. :

Revenue from Operations for the year is Php108 Million or an increase of Php3
Million from last year's figure of Php105 Million. However our operating expenses
decreased by Php4.4 Million. Worth noting is the decrease in our Grounds Maintenance
from Php2.7 Milion/month to Php2.5 Milion/month starting March 2017 and the
decrease In our Security services expenses by Php1 Millien thru conscientious review of
our contractual obligations. Strict adherence to the budget for operating expenses is
being monitored by the Treasury and our policy is not to allow re-alignment of savings
but its reversal to the general fund.

In our balance Sheet, Cash and Cash Equivalents are at Php21.97 Million or a
decrease of Phpa8k from last year of Php22.03 Million. As of July 31, 2017 our cash
had risen to Php29 Million because of proceads from sale of lot of Php7.53 Million. At
the end of the fiscal year we are pleased to report that after 22 years our Club had fully
paid our loan from members, this is an accomplishment that we share with the present
and past Board of Directors. The Treasury was able to fund various capex and projects
during the year which include the Rehabilitation of the Pumps and controllers in the
South Course, Rehabilitation of the bunkers in the South Course, additional sprinkler
heads for both courses, expansion of the Men’s locker room and purchase of additional
20 electric golf carts.

The increase in the markst value of our shares of stock is a goal that all our
stockholders are anticipating. We at the treasury had made initial improvement in the
last auction wherein the highest bid price is at Php312k plus transfer fee. We shall
continually devise schemes fo achieve this objective coupled with keeping our golf
courses in tip top condition so we can definitely realize the steady increase in the market
value of our shares.

For the next fiscal year aside from focusing on the financial stability we shall

finance the improvement of our North Course from funds generated from the sale of lots,
The budget includes the Rehabilitation of the bunker sand and replacement of the

34




existing pumps both in the Norih Course. Other forthcoming projects are the Renovation
of the Swimming pool, Reblocking of the Don Celso Tuason Ave., Upgrade of the Tee

houses, lmprovement of the railings in the Main Clubhouse and Improvement of the
function room in the North Clubhouse.

Valley Golf has no liquidity problems on its operations and projects and does not
anticipate any liquidity problems in the future. All interest payments are being paid on
due date and funds are available for the termination of loans when the need arises. All
trade payables are paid based on the credit terms.

There are no seasonal aspecis that had a material effect on the financial
condition or resuits of operation.

There are no events that will irigger direct or contingent financiai obli'gation that is
material to Valley Golf. There is no anticipated defauli or acceleration of obligafion.

There are no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations or other
relationships of the Club with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the
fiscal year.

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures.

There are no other trends, events or unceriaintias that would have a material
favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales or revenuss,

There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from Valley
Golf's continuing operaiions.

The newly issuad 26 International Financial Reporting Standards and revised
International Accounting Siandards by the Accounting Standards Council effective
January 2005 had started to affect the financial reports of the Club for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2005. The significant: effects are on the recognition of income tax
expense and derecognition of deferred tax assets in the absence of definite plans that
operations for the coming years shall result to net income after depreciation. Other
minor effects were in the recording of interest income, capital gains, property plant and
equipment and depreciation and lease-finance expenses.

The imposition of income tax and value added tax on monthly dues as per

- Revenue Memorandum Circular 35-2012 of the BIR effeciive Aug. 3, 2012 is the [atest

revenue regulation that affected our revenues. The said revenue memorandum also
amended the ruling on tax exemption of monthly dues of golf clubs.

The five key performance indicators are as follows:

1. Current Ratio - represents the ratio of current assets against
current liabilities. This ratio represents the liquidity of the Club or the
available current assets to settle the current liabilities. For the year ended
June 30, 2017 the ratio is 1.21 (P40,833,701/P33,857,450) and for the
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year ended June 30, 2016 the ratio ic 1.28 (PSS,BSO,T?S/PS0,075,895).
This indicates a decrease in the liquidity of the Club. The trade and other
recefvables increased by P3.04 Million while the short term loans
decreased by P2.5 Million and trade and other payables increased by
P3.74 Million and Members’ deposits & others increased also by P2.14
Mitlion,

Rate of return on assets - represenis the ratio of net income
against assets. This represents the net earnings and the assets
employed o arrive at the net eamings. For the year ended 2017 it is
(.58%) (net loss of F1,656,800/P284,099,271) and for the year 2016 it is
43% (P1,218,113/P282,228,851). Operations for the year resulted to =z
net loss of P1,656,800 and thus the rate of return on assets decreased to
(.58%).

Debt to total assets ratio - this represents the ratio of total
liabilities to iotal asseis or the assefs available fo setfie ouistanding
liabilities of the Club. For the year ended 2017 it is 14.27% (P40,529,194/
P284,099,271) while in 2016 it is 15% (P42,332,936/P282,228,851).
Liabilities for the current year decreased by P1.80 Million while assets
increased by P1.87 Million thereby decreasing the ratio, therefore the
ratio improved and thus there are more assets available to setile the
liabilities of the Club.

Earnings per share - this represents the net income per share of
stock issued and outstanding and subscribed. For the year ended year
ended June 30, 2017 the net loss per share is P1,040.05 {(net loss of
1,656,800/1,593) while in fiscal year 2016 the net income per share is
P764.67 (P1,218,113/1,593). Net loss for the year is P1,656,800 or g

decrease of P2.87 Million from the net income of P1,218,113in 20186.

Debt to Equity ratio - this represents the ratio of total liabilities
against total Stockholders’ Equity. For the year ended for the year ended
2017 it is 16.64% (P4O,529,’194/’%3243,57[},(}7?) and for the fiscal year
2016 it is 17.65% (P42,332,936/P239,895,915). This shows that in 2017
the ratio decreased and thus the iotal liabiliies comprise a lower
percentage of the total stockholders’ equity. This resulted from the
decrease of the short-term foans and Retirement benefit obligation.

The following are the details of the operations of the Club for the year 2017

A. OPERATING RESULTS

1.

Revenues — revenues decrease from P115,256,576 in 2018 to P109,704,351
in 2017 or a decrease of 5,552,225 or 4.82%. The significant source of the
decrease is the gain on sale of property which decreased by P8.37 Million for
this year. For fiscal year 2016 the gain on sale of property from the sale of
lots is P8.73 Million, whereas for fiscal year 2017 the gain on sale of golf
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carts is P361K. Revenue sources that increased during the year include Golf
cart rental by P233,857, Monthly dues by P158,461, Green Fee coupons by
P684,183, Patronage Fee by P69,890. Concessionaires’ Fee from the MNorth
Clubhouse by P1,000,820, Pro-shop rental by P153,688, Golf cart siorage
fee by P142.655, Road User's Fee by P300,892, Assessment for Road
Maintenance by P1,096,911, Self Insurance Fee by P51,424, Service Fee for
Non-members by P24,593, Tournament Fee by P775,929, Christmas
Assessment Fee by 1,419,647 and Miscellaneous Income by P609,294.

Revenue sources that decreased in fiscal year 2017 include Green fees by
P433,703, Transfer fee by P370,000, Service charge by P402,742. Locker
rental by P164,914 and Concessionaires Fee Main Clubhouse by P736,573.

Golf cart rental increased due to additional 20 units eleciric golf carts that
were purchased during the year. Monthly dues increased bacause on the
adjustment on the payment of one of the members for previous month's
unpaid monthly dues of P81k. Green Fee coupons increased due to the
purchase of the Driving Range Concessionaire-Freeport Elite Resort Inc. of
2,100 pcs. green fee coupons in the amount of P1.47 Milion,
Concessionaires’ Fee from the North Clubhouse increased due to the
engagement of the new F & B concessionaire Jay J's Inasal starting July
2016. Pro-shop rental increased due to increase in the monthly sales. Golf
cart storage increased due to additional golf carts in storage area. Road
Users’ Fee increased due to the imposition of the pass thru fee of P50.00
effective March 15, 2017 with a total collection of P81k Assessment for
Road Maintenance increased due to increase in sales of car stickers.
Miscellaneous income increased due to adjusting entry on the unutilized
funds from the 2016 Don Celso Toumament of P789k.

Green fees decreased due to decrease in Accompanied Guests and
Tournaments by 507 players. Transfer fee decreased due to decrease in
transfers from 84 in 2016 to 52 in 2017. Service charge decreased due to
decrease in the number of renewals from 88 in 2016 o 78 in 2017, whereas
New members increased from 18 in 2016 to 25 in 2017 and Corporate
mermbers from 12 in 2016 to 18 in 2017. Concessionaires Fee Main
Clubhouse decreased due fo decrease in the rate of the concessionaires fee
to 7% starting Jan. 2017 upon the engagement of Anix’s House of Kare kare
up fto Sept. 2017.

Cost and Expenses ~ For the fiscal year 2017 the tofal cost of services and
general and administrative expenses amount to P109,693,415 or a decrease
of I°3.78 Million or 3.34% from previous year’s figure of P 13,488,074

Personnel expenses increased from P27,541,473 in 2016 1o P27,728,449 in
2017 of an increase of P186,977 or .68%. Overtime increasad by P300k,
13" month pay by P133K, Vacation and Sick leave by P50k, Retirement
Benefit Expense by P120k and Training and Seminar by P25k. Salaries and
wages decreased by P50k, Meal Allowance by P158k, SSS, PHIC & ECC by
P15k and Gratuity Pay by P202k.




Supplies increased from F8,781,910 in 2016 to P9,275,087 in 2017 or an
increase of P493,177 or 5.62%. Repairs and Maintenance increased by
P37k and Miscellaneous increased by P224k.  Stationeries and office
supplies decreased by P22k, Gasoline & Oil by P156k, Swimming pool
supplies by P50k, Uniforms by P52k and Linen Supplies by P244k.

Utilities decreased from P8,603,110 in 2016 to 8,875,761 in 2017 or a

decrease of P727,349 or 7.57%. Eleciricity decreased by P307k and Waier
by P392k.

QOuiside Services decreased from 33,580,157 in 2016 to 32,193,841 in
2017 or a decrease of P1,386,316 or 4.13%. Legal Fees decreased by
P135k, Security Services by P1.02 Million, Maintenance Crew by P208k and
Golf Course Maintenance by PB39k. Retainers Fee increased by P201k and
Internal Audit Services by P457k.

Sundries decreased from P17,341,119 in 2016 1o P14,338,311 in 2017 or a
decrease of P3 Million or 17%. Taxes and Licenses decreased by P164k,
Board, Committee & Stockholders’ Meeting by P537K, Ads & Publication by
P80k, Dues & Registration fees by P39k, Promotional & Industrial by P50k
and Loss on write-off by P1.35 Million. Transportation & Travel increased by
P55k, Bank charges by P105k, Self Insurance Expense by P35k and
Provision for inventory Obsolescence by P139k.

B. BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

1. Cash and cash equivalents — decreassd from P22,029,184 in fiscal year
2016 to P21,971,181 in 2017 or a decrease of P58,003 or .26%.
Decrease resulted from Net cash flow from operating activities of P 19.93
Million, significant cash outflow are for payment of loan from members of
P2.5 Million and additions to property and equipment of P17.73 Mitlion.

2. Trade and other receivables — Increased from P10,696,986 in 2016 to
P13,734.849 in 2017 or an increase of P3,037,9683 or 28%. Increase
resulted from increase in Members’ account by P304k and Advances to
Suppliers in the amount of P1.53 Million referring to purchase of sprinkler
heads & lrigation parts and advances on labor for installation of the
sprinkler heads of P300k.

3. Other current assets — decreased from 5,654,608 in 2016 to P5,127,571
in 2017 or a decrease of P527,037 or 9%. Decrease resulted from
decrease in Supplies of P308k and Creditable withholding tax of P148k

4. Property and equipment - increase from P221,472,751 in 2016 to
P225,040,9686 in 2017 or an ircrease of 3,568,235 or 1.6%. Total
additions for the year amount to P17.73 M and disposals are P3.19 M
Accumulated depreciation increased by P14 M.
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10.

11.

12.

Investment properties — decreased from P11,081,280 in 2016 fo
8,322,340 in 2017 or a decrease of P2,758,940 or 25%. Depreciation
for the fy 2017 for the North clubhouse is P2.76 Million.

Deferred tax asset — amount for year ended June 30, 2017 is
2,104,430, this figure is arrived at by adding the deferred income tax
asset on advance payment of membership dues of P1.57M and
Allowance for impairment losses of P538k.

Other non-current assets — Decreased from P3,621,122 in 2016 to
P3,505,764 in 2017 or a decrease of P115,358 or 3.19%. Decrease is

due to adjustment on deferred interest expense of P154k on the deposit
{o MJ Carr.

Trade and other payables — Increased from P9,6842,272 in 2016 fo
13,385,392 or an increase of P3,736,120 or 38.72%. Increase resulted
from increase in Trade payables by P2.8 Million, Accrued Expenses by
P1.45 Million. Significant payables are the balance on purchase of golf
cart of P1.1 Million and Deposit on sale of lot of P1.19.

Short term loans — decrease from P2.5 Milion in 2018 the decrsase
resulted from payment of loan from members of P 2.5 Million.

Membership dues paid in advance — increase from 4,812,886 in 2016 to
5,220,800 in 2017 or an increase of P408K or 8.47%.

Retirement benefit obligation —decreased from P12,222,847 in 2016 to P
5,686,930 in 2017 or a decrease of 126,535,917 or 53% due to decrease
in the present value of benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation.

Members’ Equity —increased from P239,895,915 in 2016 to 243,570,077
in 2017 or an incirease of P3,674,162 or 1.53%.

FISCAL years 2016

A, OPERATING RESULTS

1.

Revenues — revenues increased from P108,420,338 in 2015 fo P115,256,576
in 2018 or an increase of P 6,836,238 or 6.31%. Revenue sources that
increased during the year include Green fees by P161,360, Golf cart rental by
339,465, Monthly dues by P178,380, Patronage fee by P94,128, Service
Charge by P524,524, Locker rental by P160,361, Pro-shop rental by
P44,800, Golf cart storage fee by P113,945, Road users’ fee by P357,819,
Locators’ fee by P409,324, Swimming pool fee by P14,900, Interest Income

by

P14,428 and Gain on sale of Property by P7,852,308. Income sources

that decreased during the year include Green fee coupons by P1,173,757,
Transfer fee by P240,000, Concessionaires’ Fee by P89,305, Assessment for




road maintenance by P50,607, Miscellaneous income by 2,793,689 and
Severance Pay by P4,691,085.

Green fee increased during the year due to increase in Walk in guests by
813, whereas accompanied guests decreased by 1,142 and Tournaments by
32 players. On the service charge, the increase was dus to the 50% discount
promo on the initial service charge and renewal fee. There were 18 new
membars, 88 renewals and 12 new corporate members. Transfer fee
increased due to the promo rate of 50% discount with 53 memmbers who
availed of the promo. There were 12 shares bought in the auction during the
year that contributed also to the increase in transfer fee.

Golf cart rentals increased due to increase in number of rentals by 895 during
the year. Locker rentals increased due fo the promo on sale of permanent
lockers with 8 lockers sold at P20k sach. Golf cart storage also increassd
dus to the promo with 5 slots sold with total proceeds of P163k.

Road users’ fee increased due to increase in number of deliveries for .on-
going construction within Valley Golf and Locators’ Fee increased due to
payment of companies along Don Celso Tuason Ave. .

(zain on sale of property increased during the year because of the sale of two
of the properties of the Club with a gain of P8.73 Million.

Miscellaneous income decreased due to reclassification entries for fiscal year
2015 and thers are none for the fiscal year 2016. The reclassification entries
include Unknown bank payments — P1.2 Million, Unclaimed credit balances —
P783Kk, Unclaimed proceeds of auction — P781k and reclassification of sale of
lot to Homeowners' Association — P458k.

Cost and Expenses — For the fiscal year 2018 the total cost of services and
general and administrative expenses amount to P113,488,074 or a decrease
of P9,207,231 or 7.5% from previous year's figure of P 122,695,305,

Personnel Expenses decreased from P35,678,586 in fiscal year 2015 to
P27,541,473 in fiscal year 2016 or a decrease of P8,137,114 or 22.81%.
Salaries and Wages decrsased by P2,99 Million, Meal allowance by P541k,
8SS & Phithealth by P233k, 13™ month pay by P711 k, Vacation and sick
leave by P478k and Retirement and benefit expensas by P3.5 Million. The
reduction in personnel expenses resuited from the decrease in manpower
from 115.to 89 because of employees that availed of the early retirement
program.

Supplies decreased from P14,957,762 in fiscal year 2015 to P8,781,910 in .
fiscal year 2016 or a decrease of P6,175,853 or 41%. Gasoline and oil
supplies decreased by P1.32 Million, Repairs and maintenance by P3 Million,
Fertilizers, sand and insecticides by P1.11 Million, foilet and cleaning supplies
by P281k, Service supplies by P185k, Uniforms by P173k and Miscsllaneous
by P331%. The significant decrease in supplies resulted from the outsourcing
of the golf course maintenance.
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Utilities increased from P9,528,459 in fiscal year 2015 to P9,603,110 in fiscal
year 2016 of an increase of P 74,651 or 78%. FEleciricity decreased by
P225k while Water increased by P308k.

Outside services increased from P25,847,003 in fiscal year 2015 fto
P33,580,157 in fiscal year 2016 or an increase of P7,633,154 or 29%.
Expense items that increased include Retainers’ Fee by P103k, Legal Fess
by P128k, Security services by P508k, Laundry services by P124k, Golf
course maintenance by P11 Million and Internal Audit Services by P743k.
The increase in outside services resulted from the outsourcing of the golf
course maintenance and Internal Audit Services.

Sundries increased from P14,368,107 in fiscal year 2015 to P17,341,119 in
fiscal year 2016 or an increase of P2,973,012 or 21%. Taxes and Licenses
increased by P87k, Insurance by P30k, Ads and publication by P45k, Dues
and registration fees by P65k, Bank charges by P80k, Loss in write off by
P1.4K and Miscellaneous by P1.5k. Promotional and Industrial decreased by
P41 and Self insurance expenses by P201k.

B. BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

13. Gash and cash equivalents — increased from P13,912,174 in fiscal year
2015 to P22,029,184 in fiscal year 2016 or an increase of P8,117,010 or
58%. Increase resulted from proceeds from sale of property of P9.8
Million and Net cash flow from operating activities of P 11.66 Million.
Significant cash outflow are for payment of loan from members of P3
Million and additions to property and eqguipment of P 9.8 Million.

14. Trade and other receivables — decreased from P13,665,396 in 2015 to
P10,696,986 in 2016 or a decrease of 2,968,410 or 22%. Decrease
resulted from decrease in Members’ account by P442k, decrease in
Subscription receivable of P1.2 Milion and decrease in Other
Receivables of P1.5 Million.

15. Other current assets — increased from P3,592,314 in 2015 to P3,840,807
in 2016 or an increase of P248,493 or 7%. Increase resulted from
increase in Creditable withholding tax of P460k.

16. Property and equipment ~ decrease from P225,247.387 in 2015 to
221,472,751 in 2016 or a decrease of P3,774,636 or 1.7%. Total
‘additions for the year amount to PS.84 M and disposals are P920k
Accumulated depreciation increased by P13.55 M.

17. Investment properties — decreased from P13,840,212 in 2015 to

P11,081,278 in 2016 or a decrease of P2,758,941 or 20%. Depreciation
for the fy 2014 for the North clubhouse is P2.76 Million.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Deferred tax asset — amount for year ended June 30, 2016 is
P3,410,425, this figure is arrived at by adding the deferred income tax
asset on advance payment of membership dues of P1.4M, MCIT of P1 M,

Allowance for impairment iosses of P653k and Accrued provision for
probable claims P306k.

Other non-current assets — Dacreassd from P3,722,018 in 2015 fo
P3,621,122 in 2016 or a decrease of P100,897 or 2.71%. Decrease is
due to decrease in computer software by P199k.

Trade and other payables — Decreased from P11,190,283 in 2015 {o
P9,649,272 in 2016 or a decrease of P1,541,011 or 13.77%. Decrease
resulted from decrease in Trade payables by P2.9 Million.

Short term loans — decrease from P5.5 Million in 2015 to P2.5 Million in

2016 or a decrease of P3 Million or 55%. Decrease resulted from
payment of loan from members of P 3 Million.

Membership dues paid in advance — increase from P4,696,172 in 2015 fo
P4,812,886 in 2016 or an increase of P116k or 2.4%.

Retirement benefit obligation —increased from P10,075,738 in 2015 to
P12,222.847 in 2016 or an increase of P2,147,109 or 21%.

Members’ Equity —increased from P239,052,003 in 2015 to P239,885,915
or an increase of P 843,912 or .35%.

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aitached Reporis :

1.

2.

3.

Statement of Management Responsibility
Audited Financial Statements for 2017 and 2016

Schedules A — | under RSA Rule 68
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ANTIPOLO CITY, PHILIPPINES
P.0.BOX 202 Q. PLAZA, CAINTA
TELS. 658-4801 TO 03, 658-4919 TO 20
FAX NO. 658-4918

“STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS”

The management of Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the Chib’s financial statements for the vears ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, in
accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from rnaterial misstatement, whether due to frand or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Club’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, ag applicable matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to Hquidate the Club or to cease,
or has no realistic alternative to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Club’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the members.

SyCip, Gorres, Velayo & Co., the independent auditors, appointed by the board of directors for the
period ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively have examined the financial statements of the

company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, snd in his report to the board of -

directors, have expressed his opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such
examination. -

A N A ;
Treasurer K\)

TIN: 106-571-989-00
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SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.  Te!: (632) 891 0307 BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001,

6760 Ayala A\.'?nue Fax: (632) 818 0872 December 14, 2015, valid until December 31, 2018
1226 Makati City ey.com/ph SEC Accreditaion No. 0012-FR-4 (Group A),
Philippines

November 10, 2015, valid untll November 9, 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDETOR’S REFPORT

The Members and the Board of Directors
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Siatements

Opinlon

We have audited the fimancial statements of Valley Golf & Country Club, Tnc. (a nonprofit organization),
which comprise the statements of financial position as at June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the statements of
income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in members’ equity and statements
of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2017, and notes to the financial
statements, including & summmary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Club as at June 30, 2017 and 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opiniom

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are farther described in the duditors’ Responsibilities for the dudit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We arc independent of the Club in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that ave relevant to our andit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
Tuifilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Respoensibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governauce for the Financia] Statements

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error

In preparing the financial statements, management 1 responsible for assessing the Club’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and vsing the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends fo liquidate the Club or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Club’s financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit ef the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or-error and are considered material if, individuaily or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence fhat
18 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
risstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fiom error, as frand may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of infernal control.

Chtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the andit in order to design andit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Club’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Chub’s ebility to continue as a going concern. If we
conclade that a material unceriainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ repart to
the related disclosures in the financial staternents or, if such disclosnres are inadequate, to modify our
opmion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of owr audifors’

report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Club to cease to contirme as a going
concera.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, siructure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and everts ing
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We comnmmnicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the andit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciss in intermnzl
contro! that we identify during our audit.
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Repori on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our andits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenme Regulations 15-2010 in Note 29 to
the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not
arequired part of the basic financial stateruents. Such information is the responsibility of the management
of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the basic financial statemenis. Tn our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYC & CO.

Alexis Benjamin C. Zaragoza 11T
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 109217
SEC Accreditation No. 1627-A (Group A),
April 4, 2017, valid vntil April 3, 2020
Tax Identification No. 246-663-780
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-129-2017,
February 9, 2017, valid until February 8, 2020
PTR Ne. 5908782, January 3, 2017, Makati City

Angust 19, 2017




VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A Nomprefit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAT, POSTTION

Jume 30
2617 2016
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) £21,971,181 222,020,184
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) 13,734,249 10,696,986
Gther current assets (Note 6) 5,127,571 5,654,608
Total Current Assets 41,833,701 38,380,778
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equip}nent - net (Note 7) 225,040,985 221472751
Tnvestinent properties (Note 8) 8,322,348 11,081,280
Trust fund (Note 9) 4,292 050 4262495
Deferred tax asset (Note 24) 2,104,430 3,410,425
Other noncurrent assets (Note 10) 3,505,764 3,621,122
Total Noncurrent Assets 243,265,570 243,848,073
TOTAL ASSETS 2284,009,271 2282228851
TIABILITTES AND MEMBERS® EQUITY
Current Liabitities
Trade and other payables (Note 11) 213,385,392 £9,6497272
Members’ deposits and others (Note 12) 4,708,014 7,570,493
Membership dues paid in advance (Note 13) 5,220,800 4,812,886
Payable to a contractor (Note 14) 4,523,504 4,523,504
Accrued provision for probable claims (Note 15) 1,019,740 1,019,740
sShort-term loans (Note 25) - 2,500,000
Total Current Liabilities 33,857,450 36,075,895
Nonewrrent Liabilities 7
Deferred tax liability (Note 24) 984,514 34,194
Retirement benefit obligation (Note 26) 5,686,930 12,222,847
Total Nencurrent Liabilities 6,671,744 12,257 041
Members’ Equity (Note 16)
Capital stock 14,337,600 14,337,000
Contributions in excess of par value 201,403,972 201,403,972
Accumulated excess of revenues over expenses 27,829,105 24,154,047
Total Members® Fquity 243,570,077 239,895,915
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS® BQUITY $284,099.271 P282,228 851

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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YALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

{A Nonproefit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF INCOMRE

Years Ended June 30
2017 2016 2015
REVERUES

Members’ dues $52,357,321  $52.224,200 £52,031,320
Green fees (Note 17) 17,552,394 17,291,914 18,304,311
Assessroent for road maintenance 8,912,059 7,543,541 6,827,005
Rentals (Note 18) 6,201,279 6,822,351 6,312,970
Transfer fess 4,420,600 4,790,000 5,030,000
Patronage fees 4,092,128 4,022,230 3,928,102
Concessionaires” fees (Note 19) 3,262,649 3,123,286 3,146,363
Service charge on playing guests 2,589,669 2,991,810 2,467,287
Golf cart storage 2,456,074 2,313,419 2,198,474
Miscellaneous income (Note 20) 7,161,386 14,133,825 8,173,506
188,704,351 115,256,576 108,420,338

COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of services (Note 21) 91,548,412 96,695,169 103,530,589
General and administrative (Note 22} 18,145,003 16,792,905 19,164,716
109,693,415 113,488,074 122,695,305

EXCESS (DEFICIENY)} OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENSES BEFORE INCOME TAXES 10,936 1,768,502  (14,274,967)
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME
TAXES (Note 24) 1,667,736 550,389 (90,047)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENTES

OVER EXPENSES (PL,656,800)  ®1,218,113 (214,184,920)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Nenprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended June 30

2017

2016 2015

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENSES (21,656,300)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME. (LOSS)
Ttem not to be reclassified o profit or loss in

subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined

benefit obligation (Note 26) 0,315,776
Income tax effect (984.,814)

21,218,113 (R14,184,920)

(2,487,768) 6,668,607
2,113,567 (2,000,582

5,330,962

(374,201) 4,668,025

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) P3,674,162

P843.912 (9,516,895

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements,




VALLEY GOLEF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS® EQUITY

VYears Ended June 30
2017 2016 2015
CAPITAL STOCK (Note 16)
1ssued and outstanding:
Balance at beginning of year P14,337,000 214,292,000 214,193,000

Issuance of shares

— 45,000 99,000
Balance at end of year 14,337,000 14,337,000 14,292,000
Subscribed:
Balance at beginning of year - 45,0600 99,000
Subscriptions - - 45,000
Share issuances - {45,000) (99,000}
Balance at end of year ~ - 45,000
14,337,000 14,337,000 14,337,000
CONTRIBUTIONS IN EXCESS OF PAR
VALUR _
Balance at beginning of year 201,403,972 201,403,972 200,258,972
Preomium on shares issued - ' - 1,145,000
Balance ai end of year 201,403,572 201,403,972 201,403,972
ACCUMULATED EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXFENSES (Note 16)
Balances at beginning of year 24,154,943 23,311,031 32,827,926
Coraprehensive income (loss):
Excess (deficiency) of revemmes over expenses (1,656,00) 1,218,113 (14,184,920
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined
benefit ebligation - net of tax 5,350,962 (374,201) 4,668,025
Total comprehensive income (loss) 3,674,162 843,912 {0,516,895)
Balance at end of year 27,829,105 24,154,943 23,311,031
TOTAL MEMBERS® EQUITY P243,570,077 $239,805.915 £239.052,003

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A Nonprefit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended Jume 30
2017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess (deficiency} of revenues over expenses before
Income taxes 210,936 £1,768,502 {(£14,274,967)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 21 and 22) 17,868,096 16,507,221 16,219,880
Interest expense {Note 22) 213,868 133,083 910,814
Loss on write-off of:
Property and equipment 87,448 17,066 58,729
Inventory 12,734 1,435,341 -
Interest income (147,883) (80,806) (142,797
Gain on sale of property and equipment - net
{(Notes 7 and 20) (361,202) (8,728,634) (418,290
Provision for impairment losses on receivables
{Note 22) - - 393,607
Operating income before working capital changes 16,923,988 11,051,773 2,746,976
Decrease {increase) i
Trade and other receivables (3,847,007 2,968,052 (2,614,083
Other current assets 130,804 (667,783) (2,362,063
increase (decroase) in:
Trade and other payables 3,691,442 (2,600,171) 1,587,385
Members’ deposits and others 2,137,521 1,189,295 (3,206,295)
Membership dues paid in advance 407,914 116,714 (93,452
Retirement benefit obligation (220,141) (340,659) 3,158,688
Net cash generated from (used in) operations 20,024,521 11,717,222 (782,844)
Interest received 117,017 81,164 113,363
Interest paid {213,869) {133,083 {164,062
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities 19,927,669 11,665,303 (833,543
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 417,000 9,827,493 306,000
Additions to:
Property and equipment (Note 7} (17,725,119 (9,836,044) {13,020,592)
Trust fiund - (435,576) -
Jnerease in:
Other noncuirent assets (147,588) (98,436) {2,219,328)
Trust fund (29,555) (5,732) (4,009)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (17,485,672 (548,295) (14,943,927)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES .
Payments of short-tenm loans (Note 25) £2,506,000) {3,000,000) _
Proceeds from:
Short-term loans - - 3,000,000
Issuance of stock — - 1,190,000
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (2,500,000) (3,000,000 4,190,000
NET INCREASE (DECREASK) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (58,063) 8,117,008 (1 1,587,470
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 272,829,184 13,812,176 25,499,645
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR $21,971,181 £22,029,184 £13,912,176

See accompariying Notes to Finoncial Staterents.
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

{A Nomprofit Organization)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. (the Club) was organized in the Philippines and repistered with
the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on May 14, 1958 as a monprofit
organization for a term of 50 years up to 2008. The Club’s corporate life was extended for another
50 years from May 15, 2008 as confirmed and ratified by the stockholders on November 18, 2007
and was subsequently approved by the SEC on April 29, 2008.

The primary purpose of the Club is to foster and promote the game of goif and operate and maintain
a golf course and couniry club and, generally, to do and perform ali such acts and things, and

exercise such powers as are ordinarily done, performed and exercised by social and athletic clubs
and associations.

The registered office of the Club, which is also its principal place of business, is located at
Don Celso 8. Tuason Ave., Antipolo City.

The Club’s Board of Directors (BOD) approved the issuance of the financial statements on
Angust 19, 2017.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policy

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost bagis, The finencial statements
presented in Philippine peso, which is the Club’s functional and presentation currency. All values
are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Club have beer prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting pokicies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that
the Club has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starting July 1, 2016. Adoption
of these pronouncements did not have any significant fmpact on the Club’s financial position or
performance unless otherwise indicated.

o  Amendments to PERS 11, dccounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
o PERS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
e  Amendments to PAS 1, Disclosure Initiative

e Amendmenis to PAS 16 and PAS 38, Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation angd
Amortization

e Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41, Agriculture: Bearer Plants

e Amendmenis to PAS 27, Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
s Anmial Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle
o Amendment to PFRS 5, Changes in Methods of Disposal
e  Amendment to PERS 7, Servicing Contracts




-

Amendment to PERS 7, dpplicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim
Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 19, Discount Rate: Regional Marker Issue

Amendment to PAS 34, Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the Interim Fingncial
Report’

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective

The following are the new standards, amendment and improvements to PFRSs that were issued but
are not yet effective as at June 30, 2017. Unless otherwise indicated, the Club does not expect that
the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant impact on its financial
statements. The Club intends to adopt the following pronouncements when they become effective.

Effective beginning on or after July 1, 2017

[=3

Amendment to PFRS 12, Clarification of the Scope of the Standard (Part of Anmual
Improvements fo PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relafing
to summarized financial information, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture
or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is classified
{or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.

The amendments do not have any impact on the Club’s financial position and results of
operation.

Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that ensble users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including boik
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or
losses). On initial application of the amendments, entities are not required to provide
comparative information for preceding periods. Barly application of the amendments i
permitted.

Application of amendments wiil result in additional disclosures in the 2017 financial
statemenis of the Club.

Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets Jor Umnrealized
Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tex law restricts the sources of
taxable profits againgt which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide gnidance on how an entity shoulg
determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit mmay

- include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.

Fntities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial applicatiop
of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be
recognized in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate),
without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components ¢f
equity. Bntities applying this relief must disclose that fact. Early application of the aimnendmey
is permitted.

These amendmenis are not expected to have any impact on the Club.




Effective beginning on or after Jamuary 1, 2018

e Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payvment Transactions
The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net seftlement features for withholding tax obligations; and the
acconnting where a medification to the terms and conditions of a’ shars-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settied,

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
relrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other eriteria are
met. Barly application of the amendments is permitted.

The amendment does not apply to the Club as it has no share-based payment.

o Amendments to P¥RS 4, Insurance Coniracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with
PERS 4 .
The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard before implemexnting the forthcoming insurance contracts standard. They
allow entitics to choose between the overlay approach and the deferral approach to deal with
the transitional challenges. The overlay approach gives all entities that issue insurance contracis
the option to recognize in other comprehensive income, rather than profit or loss, the volatility
that could arise when PFRS 9 is applied before the new insurance coniracis standard is issued.
On the other hand, the deferral approach gives entities whose activities are predominantly
connected with insurance an optional temporary exemption from applying PFRS 9 until the
earlier of application of the forthcoming insurance contracts standard or January 1, 2021.

The overlay epproach and the deferral approach will only-be available to an entity if it has not
previously applied PERS 9.

The amendments are not apphicable to the Club since the Club does not have activities that are
predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance contracts.

e PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
PTRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revemne arising from contracts
with customers. Under PFRS 15, revemue is recogunized at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for fransferring goods o
services to a customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach 1o
measuring and recognizing revenue,

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recopnition requirements under PFRSs. Hither a full or modified refrospective application i
required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018,

The revised, amended and additional disclosures or accounting changes provided by the
standards and interpretations will be included in the financial statements in the year of adoption,
if applicable.




PERS 8, Financial Instruments

PFRS 9 refiects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard
introduces mew tequirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge
accounting. PFRS 9 1s effective for anuual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with
early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but providing comparative
information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied
prospectively, with some limited exceptions.

The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Club’s
fimancial assets and impairment methodology for financial assets, but will have no impact on
the classification and measurement of the Ciub’s financial labilities. The adoption will also
have an effect on the Club’s application of hedge accounting and on the amount of its credit
losses. The Club is curreatly assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its
mvestments mn assoclates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. They also clarify
that if an entity thai is not itself an investinent entity hes an interest in an associate or joint
venture that is an mvestment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to
retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to
the investment entity assoclate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This siection is made
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which
(a) the investment entity associate or joiant venture is initiaily recognized; (b) the associate or
joint venture becomes an investment entity; and {c) the investment enfity associate or joint
venture first becomes a parent. The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with earlier
application permitted.

Amendments to PAS 40, Invesiment Property, Transfers of Invesiment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, inciuding property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. Ths amendments shouid
be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. Retrospective application is
only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The interpretetion clarifics that in determining the spot exchange rate fo use on init]
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or past of it) on the derecognition of 2 noy.
monetary asset or non-wonetary liability relating to advance comsideration, the date of the
transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or nop.
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments ¢
receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each paymen
or receipt of advance consideration. The interprelation may be applied on a fully retrospsctive
basis. Enfities may apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in
its scope that are initially recogpized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in whig
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the entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented
as comparative information in the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity
first applies the interpretation,

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2019

a

PERS 16, Leases

Under thenew standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either operating or finance
leases in accordance with PAS 17, Leases. Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset model.
Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and refated liabilities for most leases on their
balance sheets, and subsequently, will depreciate the Jease assets and recognize interest on the
lease liabilitics mn their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months or less or for which the
underlying assct is of low value are exempted from these requirements.

The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward fhe

- principles of lessor acconnting under PAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose

more nformation in their financial statements, partiowlarly on the risk exposre o residual
value.

Entities may early adopt PFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted PFRS 15. When adopting
PFRS 16, an entity 1s permitied to use either a full retrospective or a modificd reirospective

approach, with opticns to use certain transition reliefs.

The Club is currently assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16.

Deferred effectiviiy

@

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Coniribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PERS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer {0 an associate or joint
venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or loss
resulting from the sele or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is
recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture,

On Jamuary 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council postponed the original
effective date of January I, 2016 of the said amendments until the Infernational Acconnting
Standards Board has completed its broader review of the research project on equity accounting
that may result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of
accounting for associates and. joint ventures.

Summeary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Fquivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly Hauid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months o
less from dates of acquisition and that are subject to insignificant risk of changes i value,




Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Date of recognition

The Club recognizes a financial asset or & financial liability in the staterent of financial position
when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions or the instrument. Purchases or sales of

financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place are recognized on the setflement date.

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instrigments

Financial assets in the scope of PAS 39, are classified as either financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HITM) investments or available-for-
sale (AFS) financial assets, as appropriate, while financial lizbilities are classified as either financial
liabilities at FVPL or other financial Labilities. When financial assets and financial labilities are
recogmzed mitially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of vestments not at FVPL,
directly attributable transaction costs. The Club determines the classification of its financial assets

and financial liabilities upon initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
this designation at each year-end date.

Fmancial instruments are classified as Lability or equity in accordance with the substance of the

comiractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses refating to a financial instrument or a
component that is a financia! liability, are reported as.expense or income.

The Club’s finarcial investmenis are of the nature of loans and receivables and other financial
liabilities.

The Club does not have financial assets at ¥VPL, AFS financial assets, and HTM investments as at
June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables :

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments #hat
arenot quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effeciive interest rate (BIR) method, less any allowance for
impairment. Amortized cost is caloulated taking into account any discount or premium og
acquisition and includes fees that are integral part of the BEIR and transaction costs. Gains and losses
are recognized in the statement of income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or
tmpaired, as well as through the amortization process. Loans and receivables are classificd as curreny
assets when it is expected to be realized within twelve months afier the reporting date or within the
normal operating cycle whichever is longer. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

This accounting policy applies to the Club’s ‘cash and cash equivalents’, ‘trade and othe
receivables’ and ‘trust fund’.

Other financial liabilities (including interest bearing loans and borrowings) _

This category pertains to issued financial liabilities or their components that are neither held Tor
trading nor designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability and contain confractuy]
obligatiens to deliver cash or another financial assef to #he holder or ¢ settle the obligation othe
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of oWy
equity shares.
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All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received less
directly attributable debt issuance costs. Debt issuance costs are amortized using the EIR method

and unamortized debt issuance costs are included and offset against the related carrying value of the
loan in the statement of financial position.

The componeats of issved {Inancial insiruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residval amount afier

deducting from the mstrument, as a whole, the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of issue.

Adfter initial recognition, other financial ligbilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premim on
the issue and fees that are integral part of the EIR,

When a loan is paid, the related unamortized debtissuance costs at the date of repayment are charged

against current operations, Gains or losses are recognized in statement of income when the lizbilities
are derecognized as well as through the amortization process.

Thas accounting policy applies primarily {o the Club’s “trade and other payables’, ‘members” deposit
and others’ and ‘short ferm loans’. '

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial assets

A finencial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of 2 group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized when:

s the rights o receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

o the Club retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material detay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

o the Club bas transferred its vights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) bes
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor

retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Club has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an assei and has neithe
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Club’s continuing involvement in the asset,
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured a
the lower of the original cagrying amonnt of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Club could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a
cash-settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Club’s continuing
involvernent is the amoumnt of the trans{erred asset that the Club may repurchase, except that in the
case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset
measured at fair value, the extent of the Club’s continuing involvement is Hmited to the lower of the
fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price,

Financial liabilities ‘
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the lishility is discharged o
cancelled or has expired.
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Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the ierms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new

liabitity and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
income.

Fair Value

The Club measures financial instruments and non-financial assets at fair value at each financial
reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
Yability in an orderty transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair

value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
fability

The principal or the most advantageous market nust be accessible to by the Chub.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Club uses valuation techniques that are appropriate In the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable ingputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable mputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level Input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: ‘

o Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets o
Liabilities
e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

Tair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
o Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the  fajr

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and Liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Club
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing

categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement asg
whole) at the end of sach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosuves, the Club has determined classes of assets and liabilities a
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair valye
hierarchy as explained above.




Impajrment of Financial Assets

The Club assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is itapaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to
be 1mpaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred efter the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event®) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the finaneial assei or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in nterest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bazrkruptey or other
financial reorganization and where observable data indicaie that there is measurable decrease in the

estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaulis,

Assets carried ar amortized cost

The Club assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial asseis
that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is inclnded in a group of
financiel assets with similar credit risk characteristios and that group of financial assefs is
collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for

which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an imapairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated furture cash flows (exchiding future credit losses
that have not been mncurred) disconnted at the financial asset’s original EIR. (Le., the EIR computed
at initial recognition). The camrying amount of the assst shall be reduced either directly or through
the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the statement of

income. The asset, together with associated allowance accounts, is written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event ocowrring after the impairment was recognized, the previcusly
recognized- impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an jmpairment loss i
recognized in the statement of income to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrwment that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that
is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrimoent has been incured,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return fir 4
similar financial asset.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial Labilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a uet basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liabiljt
simmltaneously, The Club assesses that it has currently enforceable right of offset if the 1i ght is not
contingent on a fiture event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
default, and event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Club and ali of the counterparties.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except for land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, if any. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

The initial cost of property end equipment comprises its purchase price, meinding frmport duties,
non-refundable taxes, estimated costs of dismantlement or restoration and any directly attribuigble
costs of bringing the asset fo its working condition end location for its intended use. Such cost
meludes the cost of replacing part of such property and equipment when the recognition criteria are
met. Expenditures incurred afier the property and equipment have been put into operations, such as

repairs and maintenance and overhav! costs, are normally charged to the statement of income in the
period when the costs are incurred.

In situations where 1t can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resnlied in am increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and
equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expendituzes are capitalized
as additional costs of property and equipment. The carrying amount of the replaced part regardless
of whether the replaced part had been depreciated separately is derecognized if an entity recognizes
in the carrying amount of an item of property and equipment the cost of a replacement for part of
the item. I3t s not practicable for an entity to determine the carrying amount of the replaced pat,

it may use the cost of the replacement as an indication of what the cost of the replaced part was at
the time it wag acquired or constructed.

‘When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrylng amount of the item
of property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Bach part of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the {otal
cost of the item shall be depreciated separately.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the
assets:

Category ~ Number of Years
Land improvements 3-50
Building and structures _ 5.50
Ground tools and services machinery and equipment 3-10
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10
Transportation equipment 5

Construction in progress is stated at cost. Depreciation is computed when the construction s
commpleted.

The remaining useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from items of property and equipment.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciatiog
and any allowance for impairment loss are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or logs
iz credited to or charged against current operations. Ipairment losses of items of property and
equipment, related claires for or payments of compensation from third parties and any subsequey
purchase or construction of replacement assets are separate economic events and are accounted fop
separately.
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An ttem of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Amy gain or loss arising from derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statemsnt of income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Investment Properties

Investment property, which consists of land and building held for rentals or capital appreciation or
both. Bxcept for land, investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment in value for building. The cost of the tnvestment property comprises its purchase price
and other direct costs. Depreciation on the building is computed on a straight-line basis over the
estimated nseful life of 20 years. Land is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment.”

Transfers are mads to fnvestment property when there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of
owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction
of development. Transfers are made from investmeni property when there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of owner-oceupation or commencement of development with a view

to sale, These transfers are recorded using the carrying amount of the investment property at the
date of the change in use.

Gains or losses resulting from: the sale of an investment property are recognized in statement of
income.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or

disposal of an investment property is recognized in the statement of incomne in the year of retirement
or disposal.

Computer Software
Computer software, included as part of “Other noncurrent assets’ is initially recognized at cosi.

Following initial recognition, computer software is carried at cost, less accumulated amortization
and any accunmlated impairment in value,

Computer soflware is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated usefi1l economic life of
three (3) years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortization commences when the computer sofiware is available for use,
The period and method of amortization for the computer software are reviewed at each end of the
reporting period. Changes in the estimated useful life is accounted for by changing the amortization
period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accouating estimates. The amortization
expense is recoguized in the statement of income in the expense category consistent with the
function of the computer software.

Trust Fund
Trust fund pertains to short-term deposits for which the use is restricted to the daily operations of
the Club.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The Club assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a nonfinancial agset may

be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for a nonfinaneiy]
asset is required, the Club makes a formal estimate of recoverablie amount. A nonfinancial agset’s
estimated recoverable amount is the higher of 2 nonfinancial asset’s or cash-generating unit’s faj;
value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual nonfinancial assel,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from othe
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noufinencial assets or group of nonfinancial assets, in which case the recoverable amount is assessed
as part of the cash pencrating unit to which it belongs. Where the carrying amount of a nonfinancial
asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, the nonfinancial asset is considered impaired and i
written down 1o ils estimated recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to fheir present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the nonfinancial asset, Fair
value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of & nonfinancial asset or cash-
generating unit in an arm’s-length transaction, adjusted for incremental costs that would be direcily
attributable to the disposal of the nonfinancial asset.

Impairment losses of contirming operations are recognized in the statements of income in those
expense caiegories consistent with the finction of the fmpaired nonfinancial asset, except for any
property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to ofher comprehensive izcome. In

this case, the impairment is also recognized in other comprehensive income to the amount of any
previous revaluation,

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whather there is ary indication that previounsly
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the nonfinancial asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to its estimated recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed fhe
carrying amount that would have been determined had no fmpairment loss been reco gnized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statements of income.

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to, directly or mdirectly, control or
exercise significant influence over the other party in malking financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subjsct to common control or common significant
influence. Related parties include members of key management personnel mchding directors and
officers of the Club and close members of the family and companics associated with these
indjviduals. I considering each possible related entity relationship, atteation is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form.

Payable to Confractor
Payable to contractor are services rendered for the Club but not et paid.

Capital Stock

Capital stock is determined using the nominal value shares that have been issued. When the Club
issues more than one class of stock, a separate account is majntained for each class of stock and
nurnber of shares issued.

Contribution in Excess of Par Value
Amount of contribution in excess of par value is accounted for as an additional paid-in capita|,
Additional paid-in capital also arises from additional capital contribution from the members.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recogrized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow o fe
Club and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being mads,
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into accoup
coniractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty,
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The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revemie is reco gnized:

Membership Dues

Members™ dues are recognized monthly as the fecs. become due. Any advance payments for

membership dues are recognized as a liability and credited to “Memb ership dues paid in advance”
account in the staterent of financial position.

Green Fees

Green fees are income generated from use of the golf course by member’s guest and walk-in
customers,

Assessment for Road Muaintenance

Assessment for road mainfenance is income generated from the use of the Club’s main road, Don

Celso 8. Tuason Avenue. Revenues from toll fee is recognized upon the sale of car stickers and toll
tickets.

Reputals and Concessionaires’ Fees

Rentals and concessionaires’ fees ars recognized when the service is tendered in accordance with
the terms of the agreements entered into by the Club.

Transfer Fees
Transfer fees are recognized when the shares of stocks have been transferred.

Faironage Fees

Patronage fecs are consumables that members are entitled to for the consumption of food provided
by the Club’s concessionaire. These are recoguized monthly as the fees expire.

Service Charge on Playing Guests

Service charges on playing guests are transaction fees or cash requirements in order to process tae
Club’s playing rights to outside individuals. These are recognized when the service is rendersd.

Golf Cart Storage
Golf cart storage is income generated from the safekeeping and storage of member’s golf carts.

Interest Income
Literest is recognized as meome when it accrues, taking into aceount the effective yield on the asset.

Miscellaneous Income

Miscellaneous income are recognized as the earning process occurs and collection is reasonably
assured.

Cost and Expenses
Cost and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or decreases of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, othe

than those relating to distributions to equity participants. Cost and expenses are recognized whey
incurred.

Cast of Services
Costs of services are recoguized when related services have been rendered,




—
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General and Administration

Expenses incurred in the direction and gensral administration of day-to-day operation of the Club
are generally recognized when the service is used or the expense arises.

Taxes

Current income fax

Curreat income tax assets and Habilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expecied to be recovered from or paid {o the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that atve enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences at the

reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. :

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss; and

e inrespect of taxeble temporary differences associated with investments in foreign subsidiaries
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the texaporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused
tax credits in the form of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and unused tax Josses in the form
of net operating loss carryover (INCLCO), to the extent thet it is probable that taxable incoms will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward benefit of
MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except:

o where the deferred tax assel relaiing to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
injtial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or fosg;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in foreign
subsidiaries and interests in joint veniures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient tazable income will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that fiuture taxable income
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liebilities ave ineasured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is setiled, based on fax rates (and tax laws) that have beep
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to fhe
same taxable entity and the same taxation anthority. Income tax relating to items recognized directly
1n equity is recognized directly in other comprehensive income and not in the statements of income.

Value-added Tax (VAT)

Input VAT represents VAT imposed on the Club by its suppliers and contractors for the acquisition
of goods and services required under Philippine taxation laws and regnlations. Oulput VAT
represents indirect taxes passed on to the Club’s customers resuliing from sale of goods and services
and other income, as applicable, and as required by the Philippine taxation laws and regulations.

The current portion of nput VAT is applied against output VAT within iwelve (12) months
otherwise, it shall be considered as noncurrent asset.

Output VAT is presented net if input VAT and the resulting payable is included as part of “Trade
and other payables’ account to be remitted to applicable taxation authorities. When the resulting

outcome is a net input VAT, it is included as pari of ‘Other current assets’ account, which can be
recovered as tax credit against future tax liability of the Club.

Deferred mput VAT represents input VAT on purchase of capital goods exceeding one million

pesos. Therelated input VAT is recognized over five (5) years or the useful life of the capital goods,
whichever is shorfer. '

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the filfilment of fhe
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets even if that right is not explicitly specified in an amrangement,

Chub as a Lessor

Leases where the Club does not transfer substantiaily all the risk and bensfits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating leases s recognized as income
on & straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating
Iease are added to the carrying arount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revennes in the period in which they
are earned. '

Retirement Benefit Obligation

Defined Benefit Plan

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the financial reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if
any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset
ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refonds from the plan
or reductions in future coniribuiions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method. '

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

e  Service cost

o Net interest on the net defined benefit lHability or asset

e Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability or asset
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service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in statement of income. Past service costs are

recognized when plan amendment or curiailment occurs. These amousts are caleulated periodically
by independert qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change dering the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that ariges from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset, Net interest

on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in statement of
income.

Re-measurements cormprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit Hability) are recognized

immediately in CCI in the period in which they arise. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
statement of income in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee bewefit fund or qualifying jnsurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Club, nor can they be paid directly to
the Club. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. Whea ne market price is
available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows vsing
a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected
dispogal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlemsnt
of the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the
defined benefit obligation, the measnrement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the

present valuc of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan,

The Club’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined

benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset af fair value when and only when reimbursement
is virtually certain.

Provisiong

Provisions are recoguized when the Club has 2 present obligation (legal and constructive) as a resylt
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will he
vequired to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
If'the effect of the time value of money 1s material, provisions are made by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of mongy
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Where the Club expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset but only when the receipt of the reibursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to
any provision is presented in the statement of income, net of any reimbursement.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the nofeg
to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economie
benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recoguized in the financial statements but are disclogeqd
in the notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Evenis After the Reporiing Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Club’s position at the reporting
date (adjusting events} are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events thaf are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Tstinates

The preparation and fair presentation of the accompanying financial statements in compliance with
PFRS requires management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements and the accompanying notes. The judgments and estimates used in the
accompanying {inancial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Future event may ocour which will cause
the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in estimate

are reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable. Actual results
could differ from such estimates,

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstance.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Club’s accounting policies, management has made the following

judgments which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the fnancial
statements:

Going concern assessment

The management has made an assessment on the Club’s ability to continue s a going concern and
is satisfied that the Club has the resources to continue their business for the foreseeable future
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt

about the Club’s ability o continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue
to be prepared on the going concern basis,

Classification of Financial Instruments

The Club exercises judgment in classifying a financial instrument, or ifs component parts, on initial
recognition either as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial assei, a financia)

liability or an equity instrament. The substence of a financial instreruent, rather then its legal form,
governs its classification in the statement of financial position.

In addition, the Club classifies financial asgets by evaluating, among others, whsther the asset i
quoted or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted
in an active market is the determination on whether the quoted prices are readily and regularly
available, and whether those prices represent actual and regularly ocowrring market transactions o
an arm’s length basis.

Operating Lease - Club as Lessor

The Club has entered into comumercial property lease on its investment property. The Clu
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retain
all the significant risks and rewerds of ownership of the investment property, thus the lease i
accounted for as an operating lease.
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Estimations

The key assumptions conceining the fiuture and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounis
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimation of allowance for impairment losses

The Club mamiains an aliowance for impairment losses on receivables at a level considered
adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The fevel of this allowance is evaluated
by the Club on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the acoounis. These factors inchude,
but are not limited to, the length of the Club’s relationship with members and debiors, their payment
behavior and known market factors. The Club reviews the age and status of receivables, and
identifies accounts that are to be provided with allowance on 2 continuous basis.

Provisions for impairment losses on trade and other receivables amounted to nil,
it and 20.4 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Trade and other reccivables, net of

allowance for impairment losses as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, amounted to 213.7 million and
210.7 million, respectively (see Note 5).

Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties

The Club estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties based on
the period over which the Club’s property and equipment and investment properties are expected to
be available for use. The estimated useful lives of property aud equivment and investment properties
are reviewed periodically and npdated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical
wear and teer, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of these
assefs. In addition, the Club’s cstimetion of the useful lives of property and equipment and
investment properiies are based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical
evaluation and experience with sirular assets. It is possible that the future results of operations could
be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above,

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, there were no changes made in the estimated usefil lives of the
Ciub’s property and equipment and investment properties.

The net carrying amount of property and equipment as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
$£225.0 million and £221.4 million, respectively (see Note 7).

The net carrying amount of investment properties as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
8.3 million and £11.1 million, respectively (see Note 8).

Estimation of useful life of computer software

The estimated useful life used as a basis for amortizing the computer software costs was determined
on the basis of management’s assessment of the period within which the beasfits of the asset are
expected to be realized by the Club.

There were no changes made in the estimated useful life of the Club’s computer software in 2017,

The net carrying amount of computer software as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
20.4 miltion and 20.4 million, respectively (see Note 10).

Estimation of impairment losses of nonfinancial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each end of the reporting period tg
identify indications that property and equipment, investment properties, and computer sofiware may
be impaired or an impairment loss previcusly recognized no longer exists or may be decreased,
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If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An Impairment loss
1s recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ifs estimated recoverable amount.
‘The Club assesses the impairment of assels whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset-may not be recoverable. The factors that the Club considers
important which could trigger an impairment review inchide the following:

(2) Significant nnderperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results;

(b} Sigrificant changes in the mamner of use of the acquired assels or the strategy for overall
business; and
(c) Significant negative industry or economic trends.

Asg of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Club has no accumulaied mmpairment losses on property and
equipment, investment properties, computer sofiware. The ageregate carrying vaiue of these

nonfinancial assets ag of June 30, 2017 and 2016 amounted to 2233.8 million and 82329 million,
respectively (see Notes 7, 8, and 10). :

Determining retirement benefit expense

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and the present value of the pension obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions.
These include the determination of the discount rates, future salary increases, turnover rate and
future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underfying assumptions and its
long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
Al assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rafe,
management considers the market yields on Philippine government bonds with terms consistent
with the expected employee benefit payout as at end of the reporting periods.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables and is modified accordingly with

estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary ncreases and pension increases are based on
expected future inflation rates for the Philippines.

Retirement benefit expense amounted to 1.8 million, 21.7 million and 25.2 million in 2017, 2016
and 2015, respectively (sce Note 23). Retirement benefit obligation amounted to 5.7 million and
212.2 million as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 26),

Estimation of realizability of deferred tax assets

The Club reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date and reduced the
amounts to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utitized.

However, there is no assurance that the Club can generate sufficient taxable profit to allow all or
patt of its deferred taxable assets to be utilized.

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Club’s dsferred tax essets amounted to 2.1 million ang
£3.4 million, respectively (see Note 24).

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Club’s deferred tax liability amounted to £1.0 rmillion and
234.0 thousand, respeciively (see Note 24).

Temporary deductible differences for which no deferred tax asset was recognized amounted to
£23.3 million and £18.9 miflion as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 24).
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Provision and Contingencies

The Club 1s currently involved in varions legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable costs for
the resolution of these claims has been developed in consaltation with its counsel handling the
defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potentiai results. In the opinion of
management and ifs legal counsel, the eventual liability under these lawsuits or claiws, if any, will
not have a material or adverse effect on the Club’s financial position and results of operations. It is
possible, however, that the future resulis of operations could be materially affecied by changes in
the estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings.

"The Club has accrued provision for probable claims amounting to 21.0 million as of June 30, 2017
and 2016 (see Note 15).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

2017 2010
Cash on hand ROE. 000 £95.000
Cash in banlks 20,200,716 20,280,229
Shori-term investments 1,675,465 1,653,955

221,971,181 $22,029,184

Cash m banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term investments have varying
maturities of up to 90 days and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned amoﬁnted to 0.2 million, 0.2 million and 20.1 million in 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively (see Note 20).

Trade and Other Receivables

2017 2016

Members B11,792,742 211,488,331
GOthers 3,736,073 1,386,745
15,528,915 12,875,076

Less allowance for impairment losses 1,793,966 2,178,690

213,734,949 210,696,986

Receivables from members, which are due 30 days after billing date, are noninterest-bearing and
constitute a lien on the members’ shares.

Other receivables consist mainly of the share of the homeowners for the security services ang
electricity of the access roads around the Club, advances made to officers and employees

and
receivables from concessionaires and various organizations.
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As of June 30, 2017, the aging analysis of trade and other receivables aie as follows:

. 20817 2016
Not more than 30 days outstanding £3,410,459 21,463,709
Beyond 30 days outstanding:

31-60 days 6,567,009 3,628,586

61-90 days 1,356,725 1,947,612

Over 20 days 4,194,722 5,835,769

£15,528915  P12,875,076

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the movements in the allowance for impairment losses are as follows:

2017 2016

Balances at beginning of year #32,178,690 2,368,171
Less write-off 384,124 190,081
Balances at end of vear : 21,793,986 £2,178,090

Other Current Assets

Z017 2016

Prepayments £2,302,494 £2,306,767
Supplies inventory - net _ 1,613,101 1,321,305
Creditable withholding tax (CWT) 757,336 905,395
Others 1,054,640 1,121,141
$5,127,571 5,654,608

Prepayments pertain to prepaid taxes and licenses, prepaid medical expenses and prepaid insurance
premivins.

supplies inventory include gasoline and oil stocks, grounds materials, office, shop and maintenance
supplies and construction materials,

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the balance of supplies inventories are as follows:

2017 2016
Supplies inventory 21,151,997 1,321,305
Less allowance for inventory obsclescence 138,8%6 -
Supplies inventory - net ?1i,013,101 21,321,305

CWT is the tax withheld by the withholding agents from payments to the Club which can be applied
against the income tax payable.

Others pertain to advances on purchases and deferred input VAT,
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Property and Equipment

2047
Ground Tools
ngd Service Turniture,
Land  Building and Machinery Fixtares and Transportation  Consiruction

Land Iinprovemnenis Structares und Bquipment Tauipment Bruipment In Progress Total

Cost:

Balances at begiviing of year BOAILSIL  $275422431 P56,045487 $23,859,153 25,891,709 P12,186,769 BI0991,730 $393,809,169

Additions - 192,938 225,000 574,554 - 5,392,857 11,332,730 17,725,128

Disposals - (636,480) - (668,392 @z1839)  {1,419,118) @8902) (3,194,740}

Trans fers . - - 5,720,679 600,317 616,272 - - (6,937.265) -

Balance at end of yeay 9,417,841 280,706,605 56,870,804 24,381,627 5,469,870 16,160,508 15,338,290 405,339,558
Accumulated depreciation:

Balances at beginning of year - 107,691,218 32,523,893 17,004,870 5,746,671 2,368,766 - 172,336,418

Depreciation (Notes 21 and 22) - 6,336,118 4,085,553 2,174,431 50,570 1,398,137 - 14,045,509

Disposals - (536,489) - {606,233) (421,823)  (1419,110) - (3,083,655

Bajances ai end of vear - 113,320,847 36,609446 18,573,068 5375418 9,349,793 — 183,205,572
MNethaol: values 20411841  P167,315,762 £20,261358 #5,508,555 204 455 #6,510,715 15,338,209  $225,040,986

2016
Ground Taols
and Service Fueniture,
Land  Building and Machirety Fixtwes and  Teansporlation  Conslruction
Land  Improvements Suuctures  and Equipment Equipment Eguipment 1n Progress Total

Cosl:

Balances al beginning of year POA2LITZ B275201,03) R55,816,380 £23,055,790 85956,037 £12,186,76% B1,262410  PI84,002,457

Additions - - - 641,624 - - 9,194,420 9,836,044

Disposals {11,331 - - (852,8035) (65,228) - - (929,364)

Transfers - 221400 220,107 1,014,584 — - (1,463,001} —

Balance atead of year 0.411,84) 275,422,431 56,045487 23,850,193 5891,709 12,186,769 10,991,739 393,809,169
Accumulated depreciation:

Balances al beginning of year - 101,466,397 28,373,399 15,657,429 5,761,327 8,396,552 - 159,655,104

Depyscialion (Noles 2] and 22) - 6,224,821 4,150,494 7,149,847 50,572 973,214 - 13,548,948

Disposals - - - (802,406) (63,228) = - (867,634}

Balauces at end of year - 107,691,218 32,523,803 17,004,870 5,746,671 9,369,766 - 172,336,418
Net book values 411,841 RI7,731,213 23,521,594 £6,354,323 £145,038 22,817,003 PI0,091,730  $221472,75]

Fully depreciated equipment still used in operations amounted to B68.4 million and B72.3 miliion
as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

On November 2014, the Club entered a maintenance service agreement with MJ Carr Golf
Management, Inc. (MICARR) which resulted to a sale of ground tools and service machinery and
equipment with a book value of 1.7 million. Proceeds from sale of equipmient amounted #o
£2.4 million resulting to a gain on sale of 0.4 million (see Note 20).

On April 2017, the Club sold various property and equipment such as transportation equipment and
furniture & fixture to its members, employees and Anix’s House of Kare-kare with & book vaiue of
211 thousand. Proceeds from sale amovnted to P405 thousand resulting to a gain on sale of

2361 thousand (see Note 20).

8.

Investment Properties

2017
Nerth
Clubhouse Land Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning and
end of year P53,718,366 P88,237 B53,806,603
Accumulated amortization:
Balances at beginning of year 42,725,323 - 427725,323
Amortization
(Notes 21 and 22) 2,758,040 - 2,758,940
Balances at end of year 45,484,263 — 45,484,263
Net book values 28,234,103 88,237 $8,322,340
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2016
North
Clubhouse Land Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning and
end of year 253,718,366 £88,237 £53,806,603
Accumulated amortization:
Balances at beginning of year 39,966,383 - 39,966,383
Amortization
{(Notes 21 and 22) - 2,758,940 - 2,758,940
Balances at end of year 42,725,323 - 42,725 323
Net book values 210,993,043 £88,237 211,081,280

Rental income earned from investment properiy amounted to #0.2 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015

(sce Note 18). Direct expenses related to investment properties consist mainly of amortization
amounting to 2.8 million in 2017 and 2016.

The aggregate fair value of the Club’s investment properties amounted o 290.6 million with six
thousand three hundred sixty six square meters (6,366 sqm.). The fair values of the Club’s properties
were determined on the valuation performed by TCI Top Consuif, Inc. on June 7, 2017. The TCI
Top Consult is an industry specialist in valuing these types of properties. The fair value represents

the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

Trust Fund
Pursuant to the resolution passed by the members on September 12, 1982 and as provided for in the
Club’s by laws, the trust fund comumittee is empowered to invest the Valley Golf Trust Fond, which

in no case shall be less than the original amount of 23,5 million, in leading universal banks in the
country.

The mezabers’ resolution further states that all proceeds from future sale of sharcs and real property,
includimg all arnortizations due on the sale of shares previonsly sold, shall acerue to the trust fund
and that 85% of the interest income of the fund shall be made available for the maintenance and
repair of the golf course. The remaining 15% of said interest income shall acerue to and form pat
of the fund.

On May 21, 1989, the members’ resolution was amended stating that, “the proceeds of the sal of
any real property of the Club or shares of stock to be used for capital expenditure and ofher
infrastructure project shall not form paxt of the Valley Golf Trust Fund. However, any excess thereof
shall form part of the Valley Golf Trust Fund”.

The trust fund account was reported as part of the “noncurent asset” portion in the statement of
financial position.

Trust fund balance amounted to P4.3 million as at June 30, 2017 and 2016. Interest income
recognized for the trust fund amounted to #38 thousand, 38 thousand and 237 thousand fo the
years 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 20).
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10. Other Noncurrent Assets

20617 2016

Refundable deposit 23,060,359 23,079,306
Computer software - net 445405 387,637
Others — 154,179
23,505,764 23,621,122

Retfundable deposit pertains to deposits from utility companies and MJ Carr. The carrying amounts
of the deposits are regarded as its amortized cost since the timing of the refund or seftlement of the

deposits could not be reasonably estimated.

The movement of computer software is as follows:

2017 2016

Cost: '
Balance at beginning and end of year P2,181,437 22,181,437
Additions 321,115 —
Balance at end of year . 2,502,552 2,181,437

Accumulated Amortization:
Balance at beginming of year 1,793,800 1,594,467
Amortization (Note 22) 263,347 199,333
Balance at end of year 2,057,147 1,793,809
Net Book Value 445,405 $387,637
11. Trade and Other Payables

2017 2016
Trade P4,877,025 22.078,170
Accrued expenses 3,791,412 2,336,748
Organizations and cooperative 2,960,628 3,272,824
Concessionaires 437,977 1,105,016
VAT payable 201,694 251,634
Cthers 1,116,656 604,830
®13,385,397, £9,649,272

Trade payables are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are payable to suppliers within 30 days.

Accrued expenses are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest. These
pertain to accruals mede for outside services, utilities and other various accruals. These are normally
settled throughout the next financial year.

Organizations and cooperative are loans and advances by the employees from the association.

Payable to concessionaires and other organizations pertains to collections received by the Clab fyr
and on behalf of the concessionaires and other organizations.

Other payables mainly consist of tournament deposits and withholding tax payable.
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12. Members® Deposits and Others

2017 2016

Cash deposit 24,945 000 24,525,000
Due to former members 4,593,014 2,875,493
Security deposit 170,000 170,000
' 22,708,014 £7.570,493

Cash deposit pertains to deposits made by playing guests. Any nnpaid liabilities will be deducted
from this account and the axcess will be refunded upon resignation of the playing guest.

Due to former members consist mainly of proceeds from auction sale of shares, payable to former
members and ofher advance payments made by them.

Security deposit pertains to various deposits received by the Club from its concessiopaires and lessee
and is to be refunded at the end of their respeciive agreements.

13, Membership Dues Paid in Advance
This account represenis advance collection of tmonthly membership dues which are applied in the
next financial year.
As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, membership dues paid in advence amounted to B5 9 million and
4.8 million, respectively.

14, Payable to a Contractor
This pertains to the payable for the construction of the Chib’s main road, Don Celso S. Tuazon
Avenue with a total amount of 4.5 ruillion as of June 30, 2017 and 2016,
On Januvary 3, 2012, the parties agreed in principle to seftle the debt in exchange of 985 square
meters of land belonging 1o the Club. The market value of the land amounted to 24.9 million.

15. Acerued Provision for Probable Claims

Accrued provision for probable claitns pertains to the estimated liability to resolve various probable
olaams against the Club. Any payment of actual claims against the Club_ requires the approval of fhe
BOD.

The information vsuvally required by PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingeny
Assets, 13 not disclosed on the grounds that it can be expected to prejudice the outcome of thege

lawsuits, claims, arbitration and assessments.

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, accrued provision for payable claims amounted to 21.0 million.
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16. Member’s Equity

Capital Stocle
Shares Amount
: 2017 2016 2917 2016
Common shares - 29,000 par valug
Authorized - 1,800 shares
Issmed
Balance &t beginning of year 1,593 1,588 B14,337,600  P14,292.000
Additions dwring the year - 5 - 45,000
Balance at end of year 1,583 1,593 14,337,000 14,337,000
Subscribed
Balance at beginning of year - 5 - 45,000
Additions during the year - - - -
Issuance of shares during the year - {5) - (45,000)

1,583 1,393 P14,337,000 14,337,000

The selling price per share of installment gales is 23 50,000 for 2016, payable with a down payment
of £30,000 and the balance in 11 equal monthly installments of £30,000 and one final instailment
of £20,000, without interest if paid on or before due date, Penalty interest of 2% per month is
charged on any default in installment payment,

Accuminiaied Excess of Revenues Over Expenses

2017 2016
Accurmlated excess of revenues over expenses £25,531,205 $27,188,005
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Item not to be reclossified fo profit or Joss in
subsequent periods:
Begmning balance (3,033,062) {2,658,861)
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined
benefit obligation 5,330,962, (374,201)
2,257,900 {3,033,062)

#27,829,105 £24,154,943

17. Green Fees

Green fees are generated from the use of the Chib’s golf courses. The Club has two golf courses:
the North and South course. The North course is open to its members, their guests, and walk-iy
customers while the South course is open to its members and their guests only.

On Fuly 1, 2013, the Club entered inio an agreement with Kores Golf & Members Leisure, Ing
(Korea Golf) for the nse of the Club’s North course. The Club also grants Korea Golf the use of it
North Clubhouse office space. The agresment is for a minitoum of 24.0 million worth of green fee
coupons a year. Payments from this agreement would be earned and included in the Club’s green
fees upon usage of the Club’s facilities. The agreement is valid uniil July 1, 2018.
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During 2015, there was a default to the contract by Korea Golf. They bad failed to purchase the
minimum green fees coupons as stated in the contract. The Club rescinded the contract and forfeited
all the payments made by Xorea Golf The green fees from Korea golf amounted io
nil, £0.2 millicn and ®1.3 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

On September 30, 2016, the Club entered into agreement with Freeport Elite Resort, Tne.fo puichase
one thousand (1,000) coupons and another ope thousand (1,000) coupons upon consumption of all

coupons previously purchased. The green fees from Freeport Elite Resort, Inc, amounted to
20.86 million in 2017. '

18. Rentals
2017 2016 2015
Golf carts and lockers 26,669,366 £6,600,453 86,100,627
Communication cell site 231,883 221,898 212,343
P6,901,279 £6,822,351 6,312,970

Rentals of golf carts are for the use of the golf carts provided by the club for its members, Rentals
of lockers are for the use of the Club’s locker rooms.,

The Club leases the north clubhouse’s rooftop to a local telecommunications company to be used as
a cell site under certain conditions. Monthly rental amounts to B1 5,000, subject to a 4.5% escalation
starting on the fowrth (4) vyear. The lease period is from October 1, 2007 to
Septeraber 30, 2017, renewable for a period to be mutvally agresd upon by the parties.

Mininmum rentals to be collected from the long-term lease are as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Within one year 261,239 8242318 $231,883

After one year but more than five - 61,239 487,273

B61,239 2303,557 £719,156

19. Concessionaires’ Fees

2017 2016 2015

Foed and beverage services £2,287,195 £2,022,949 $2,112,254

Retail services 975,454 821,766 776,966
Driving range operations - 278,571 257,143

£3,262,649 £3,123 286 £3,146,363
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Concession agreements entered into by the Club are shown below:

Food and Beverage Services

a) Jay-’s Food Management, Tnc. (JEMI), a local food concessionaire and the Club entered mio a
concession agreement whereby JEMI manages the food and beverage operations of the Chib
located at the North Clubhouse, The agreement also provides that the concessionaire shall pay
a fee of 7% plus VAT of the monthly gross sales including special functions contracted for the
members and guest and to purchase one (1) share of stock. The share of stock is pledged to the
Club which serves as a security deposit to answer for any damages or expenses incurred. The
agresment 1s for a period of three (3) years from August 1, 2016 up to July 31, 2019, subject to
renewal at the option of the Club under such terms and conditions to be mutually agreed by the
parties. The concession income recognized from JFMI amounted to 21 million in 2017,

b) Anix’s House of Kare-kare (AHK), a local food concessionaire and the Club entered info a
concession agreement whereby ATTK manages the food and beverage operations of the Club at
the Main Clubhouse. The agreement also provides that the concessionaire shall pay a fee of 7%
plus VAT of the monthly gross sales for the first six (6) moaths of operations and 10% plus
VAT of the monthly gross sales for the succeeding months or £100,000 whichever is highey
including catering services coniracted for the members and guest and to purchase one (1) share
of stock. The share of stock is pledged to the Club which serves as a security deposit to answer
for any damages or expenses incurred. The agreement is {or a period of three (3) years from
Jammary 20, 2017 up to Janwary 19, 2020, subject to renewal at the option of the Club under such
terms and conditions to be mutually agreed by the parties. The concession income recognized
from AKX amounted to 20.68 million in 2017.

- Retail Sho
Pacsport Phils, Tnc. was awarded the concession to Operate a refail sales outlet, inside the Clubhouse

to serve the members, guests and dependents, exclusively. In consideration for operating the Shop,
the Club charges a basic minimum monthly renta] of £65,000 or 15% of their gross sales per tmonth
wmchusive of value added tax, whichever ig higher. The agreement is for a period of two vears from
March 15,2016 up to May 14, 2018. The concessionaire fees from Pacsport Phils, Inc. amounted to
£0.98 million in 2017 ’

20, Miscellaneous Incems

2017 2016 2015
Service fee 21,014,707 £038,691 21,002,360
Surcharge 864,995 810,920 858,117
Pull carts 454,580 366,589 300,682
Gain on sale of properties (Note 7) 361,202 8,728,634 418,290
Interest ' - 186,938 157,225 142,797
Others 4,278,964 3,031,687 5,451,260

P7,161,386 214,133,825 28,173,506

Others mainly consist of fees frora venue and room, rental, tournaiment, swimming pool, spa and
barber shop, and from bingo session net proceeds.
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21. Cost of Services
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2017 2016 2015
Outside services 230,160,464 £31,849392 £25,110,709
Personne! cost (Note 23) 19,925,636 21,156,946 31,418,436
Depreciation and amortization I
(Notes 7, &, 10) 16,687,503 16,156,146 15,851,358
Utilities 8,258,372 2,019,029 8,907,168
Supplies 5,356,042 5,901,187 8,936,376
Repairs and maintenance 3,121,313 2,278,176 5,845,463
Loss on write-off of mventory 12,720 1,435,341 -
Others 8,026,272 8,898,332 7,461,079
P91,548,412 296,695,169 103,530,589

Others pertain to provision for tournament cxpenses, Insurance,

and industrial expenses, parking fee, and ofher miscellaneons expenses,

22. General and Administrative
2017 2016 2015
Personne] costs (Note 23) 27,802,814 £6,505,505 $8,732,275
Taxes and licenses 3,788,406 3,953,221 3,860,497
Outside services 2,033,379 1,730,766 836,294
Bank charges 967,945 §62,321 772,533
Supplies 799,316 589,473 717,647
Board members’ msetings 686,899 1,223,876 1,195926
Utilities 617,389 584,081 621,292
Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 7, 8, 10} 380,503 351,075 368,522
Interest 213,869 133,083 810,814
Loss on write-off of property and
equipment 87,448 17,066 58,729
Provision for impairment losses
on receivables (Note 5) - - 393,607
Others 776,031 342,438 690,580
18,145,003 £16,792,905 210,164,716

ads and publication, promotional

Other expenses consist mainly of advertisin

net expenses incurred during tournarments,

£ CXpenses, prompt payment discounts, insurance and
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23. Personnel Costs

2017 2016 2015
Cost of services (Note 21
Salaries and wages 14,854,818 215,600,187 216,061,650
Ermployee benefits 3,651,802 4,224,270 11,055,514
Refirement benefits- :
sxpense (Note 26) 1,419,816 1,332,500 4,301,272
19,925,636 21,156,966 31,418,436
General and administrative
(Note 22):
Salaries and wages 6,097,309 4,969,836 4,195,362
Employee benefits 1,346,808 1,210,183 3,680,843
Retirement benefits
expense (Note 26) 358,697 325,486 856,070
7,802,814 6,505,505 8,732,275
P27,728,450 P27,662,47 240,150,711
Z4. Personnel Income Taxes
The Club’s provision for current income tax in 2017 and 2016 pertains to MCIT,
The compositions of provision for (bensfit from) income taxes wers:
2017 2016 2015
Current F395,935 B397,068 2145 758
Deferred 1,271,801 153,321 {235,805)
21,667,736 £550,389 (#90,047)

The reconciliation of income computed at the statuto

shown in the statements of income is as follows:

1y tax rates to provision for income tax as

2015

2017 2016
Income tax computed at
statutory rate £3,281 - B530,551 (24,282,490}
Tncome tax effects of:
Expired MCIT 464,384 494,185 -
Nondeductible expenses 6,250 43,618 140,313
Interest income subjected to ‘
final tax (32,365) (24,242) (31,571)
Movement of unrecognized
deferred tax assets 1,226,186 (493,723} 4,083,701
1,667,736 £8550,389 (®90,047)




P

-31-

The components of the Club’s net deferred tax asset (liability) are as follows:

2017 2016
Deferred tax assets:
Advanced payments of membership dues and
others 21,566,240 21,443,866
Allowance for impairment losses 538,158 653,427
MCIT - 1,007,210
Accrued provision for probable claims — 305,922
$2,104,430 £3.410,425
. 2017 2016
Deferred tax liabilities:
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit -
obligation (E984,814) 2.
Interest income from accretion . — (34,194
(P984,814) (®34,194)

No deferred tex assets from the following deductible temporary difference were recognized as it is
not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow the benefit of the deferred tax
assets to be utilized: ,

2017 2016

Retirement benefit obligation B8.96%,644 20,189,785
NOLCO 8,705,098 0,148,565
Accrued provision for probable claims 1,619,740 R
MCIT 638,761 -
Unrecogrized PSC 601,952 —
£20,235,195 #18,338,350

As of JTume 30, 2017, the Club has NOLCG that can be claimed as deduction from fiture taxable
income ag follows:

Year incurred Available up to Amoumnt Applied Dxpired Balance
2015 20162018 £0,148.565 2443 467 B- PB705,098

The Club has available MCIT which can be applied to the Club’s future tax Habilities as follows:

Year incurred Available up to MCIT Applied Expired Balance
2014 2015-2017 £464,384 B P464,384 P
2015 . 2016-2018 145,758 - - 145,758
2016 2017-2019 397,068 - - 397,068
2017 2018-2020 395,935 - —~ 395,935

21,403,145 P P464384 PU3R.761
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25. Related Party Transaciions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly, the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence, Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

A summary of major account balances with related parties follows:

Amount/
Year Velume  Receivable Liability Terms Conditions
Short term loans from 2017 $2,500,000 P P 1 year terin, Unsecured
Members 2016 $£3,000,000 P #2,500,000 interest
bearing
Interest expense on short 2617 20,833 - - 3% -
term loans from 2016 208,854 - - 3%
Members
2017 22,520,833 P B
2016 3,208,854 - 2,500,000

Shori-term Loans

These represent one-year loans obtamed from Club members, renewable on a yeatly basis upon
mutual agreement of the parties. The Club however has the option to preterminate the loan, These
loans bear annual interests of 3% in 2017 and 2016. The loans are secured by unissued shares of
stock of the Club. The Club fulty settled the short-term loan in 2017,

Interest incurred on the short-term loan amounted to 220 thousand, 2.21 million and 80.16 million
in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Key Management Personnel Compensation :
Compensation of key managemeni personnel amounted to 21.3 million, 21.3 million aed
£1.2 milion in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, which represent short-term benefits.

Complimentary Club Coupons and House Guests Privileres

Complimentary green. foe coupons are given to the BOD and certain officers for distribution ig
prospective members and certain guests and friends of the Club. The outstanding ereen fee coupons
for each fiscal year are as follows:

2017 2016 2015
Beginning balance 550 388 439
Additions during the year 2,794 3,208 3,138
Issuances during the year (2,813) (3,136) (3,239)
Ending balance 531 550 388

The amount of green fees charged to playing guest ranges from 2625 to 22,536. Green fee cOupang
expire after six months.

The Club afse anthorizes certain Club officers to entertain houseguests and use the Club’s facilitisg
free-ofcharge,
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Non-Paying Members and their Dependents
Certain members of the Club and their dependents are exempt from paying monthly dues,

Retirement Fund

The Club’s retirement fund is being held in trust by a trustee bank. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016,

the fair value of plan assets amounted to 215.0 million and B13.1 million, respectively
(see Note 26).

26. Retirement Benefit Obligation

The Club has a funded, non-contributory, defined benefit retirement plan covering all its qualified
officers and employees. Under the plan, qualified officers and employees arc entitled to receive
pension benefits on a lump sum basis when they reach the retirement age of 60, With the consent of
the Club, an employee may elect to retire early provided he has rendered at least 20 vears of credited
service or at least 15 years of credited service and at least 50 years old. The projected unit credit
cost method was used to determine the retirement benefit costs and obligation.

The following tables summarize the components of the retirement benefit cost recognized in the

statement of income and the retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of financial
position for the retirement plan.

Retirement benefits expense recognized in the statements of incoms:

2017 2016 2015

Service cost ’ 1,344,762 £1,174,909 21,841,312
Settlemendt loss - - 2,388,480
Net interest cost:
Interest cost on benefit -
obligation 055,155 973,524 1,641,728
Interest income on plan assets (521,404) {490,438) {714,178)
Retirement benefit expense 1,778,513 21,657,995 £5,157,342

Re-measurement losses (gains) on defined benefit obligation recognized under OCI it the
statements of comprehensive income:

2017 2016

Actuarial losses (gains):
Changes in demographic assumptions (83,139,027} =
Changes in financial assumptions (2,472,914) 2,027,017
Experience adjustments (793,571) 2,848,282
{6,405,512) 4,875,299

Return on plan assets excluding the amount

included in net interest cost 89,736 (2,387,531)
Re-measurement 1osses (gains) on defined benefit '

obligation (B6,315,776) __ $2.487,768
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Cumulative re-measurement effect recognized in OCI included in the accumulated excess of

TEVENes OVelr eXpenses:

' . 2017 2016
Balances at beginning of year £3,033,062 £2.658,861
Actuarial loss (gain) {6,405,512) 4,875,299
Return on assets excluding amount included in net

mterest cost 89,736 (2,387,531)
Income tax effect 984,814 (2,113,567
Total amount recogmized in GCI (#2,297,908) 23,033,062

Movements in retirement benefit obligation in 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
2017 2016
Balances at beginning of year B12,222 8347 210,075,738
Retirement benefit expense 1,778,513 1,657,995
Coatributions paid (1,998,654) {1,998,654)
Total amount recogrized in OCI (6,315,776} 2,487,768
Balance at end of year B5,686,930 212,222 847
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation as follows:
2017 2016
Balances at beginning of year 225,335,682 $21,071,950
Cuirent service cost ' 1,344,762 1,174,509
Interest cost 955,155 973,524
Net actuarial loss (gain) due to:
BExperience adjustments on plan liabilities (793,571) 2,848,282
Changes in financial assumptions (2,472,914 2,027,017
Changes in demographic assumptions (3,139,027 -
Benefits paid from plan assets (563,658) (2,760,000)
Balances at end of year B20,666,429 £25,335,682
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
2017 2016
Balances at beginning of vear R13,112,835 £10,996,212
Interest income on retivement plan assets 521,404 490,438
Actual contributions 1,298,654 1,998,654
Actual return excluding amount included in net
interest cost (89,73¢6) 2,387,531
Benefits paid (563,658) (2,760,000)
Balances at end of year $14,979,499 213,112,835
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Retirement obligation as reported in the statement of financial position:

2017 2016
Present value of benefit obligation £20,666,429 275,335,682
Fair value of retirement plan assets at end of year (14.979,499) (13,112,835)
£5,686,930 212,222 847
The major categories of plan assets are as follows:
2017 2016
Deposit in banks 212,318 £12,143
Investment in government securities 0,956,511 7,009,549
Other securitics and debt instruments 3,255,391 2,986,000
Shares of stock 2,409,850 2,677,718
Accrued interest receivable 134,837 113,657
Miscellaneous receivable - 329,902
Accrued trust fees and other payables {789,408) (16,134)
#14,979.499 £13,112,835

Deposit in banks includes regular savings.

Investments in government securities consist of retail treasury bonds that bear interest ranging from
5.0% to 11.1% and will mature on various dates starting July 2013 to October 2037,

Other securities and debt instruments pertains to “due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas® and “time

certificate of dsposit’.

Miscellaneous receivable pertains to ‘dividends receivable’ and ‘dve from brokers’,

The principal actuazial assumptions used in determining retirement benefit obligations for the Club’s

retirement plan are as follows:

2017 2016

Discount rate 5.28% 3.77%
Future salary increases 3.50% 3.00%
Turnover rate 10% at age 19 to 14% atage 19 to
6% at age 45 1% atage 45

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefi obligation as of the ead of the reporting periog,

assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Effect on

Increase  defined benefit

(decrease) obligation
Discount rates +1% (21,414,769)
-1% 1,587,581

Salary increase rate +1% 21,608,317
-1% (1,457,672)
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Shown below 15 the maturity profile of the undiscounted benefit payments:

Expected benefit

payments

2018 B796,351
2019 . 1,609,416
2020 1,776,938
2021 1,563,180
2022 4,652,259
20232027 15,673,742

Retirement benefit expense from defined benefit retirement plan is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

The Club’s latest actuarial valuation report was on June 30, 2017. It also expects to contribute
£2.0 millionin 2018.

27.

Financial Instruments

Financial Rigk Management Objectives and Policies

The Club’s principal finencial liabilities comprise of trade and other payables, members’ deposit
and others, and short term loans. The main purpose of these financial Habilities is to raise finance
for the Club’s operations. The Club has various financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents,
trade end other receivables and trust fond, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Club’s financial instruments are credit risk and lquidity risk.

The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are
sumimarized below.

Credit risk

The Ciub establishes credit Tinaits at the level of the individual borrower, corporate relationship and
industry sector. Also, the Club transacts only with recognized third parties, with no required
collateral.

Loans and other receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Chib’s
expostre to bad debts is not significant. Provision for impairment losses on receivables will also be

made if the situation so warrants subject to the BOD''s review and approval.

The following table represents the Club’s maxirmm exposure to credit risk:

2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents™ P21,876,181 £21.934,184
Trade and other receivables 13,719,200 10,681,543
Trust fund 4,292 05 4262495

238,887,431 236,878,222

*Excludes cash on hand
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Credit quality per class of financial asset
The credit quality of financial assets is being managed by the Club using internal credit ratings.

High grade financial assets are those that are current and collectible. Standard grade financial assats
need to be consistently followed up but are still collectible.

The tables below show the credit quality by class of financial asset based on the Club’s credit rating
syster: s

As of June 30, 2017
Nejther past due nox impaired Past due Past dus and
Standarad but mdividually
High grade orade not impajred imypaired Total
Cash and cash eguivalenis™ $21,876,181 2- B 2 221,576,181
Trade and other receivables: '
Trade receivables 1,511,325 - 8,487,451 1,793,966 13,792,142
QOthers - 3,720,424 Co- - 3,720,424
Trust fund 4,283,050 - - - 4,292,650
¥27,679,556 P3,720,4%4 £8,487.451 £1,793,966 243,681,397
*Exeludes cash on hand
As of June 30, 2016
Neither past due nor impaired Past due Past due and
Standard but individually
High grade grade not impaired unpaired Total
Cash and cash equivalenis® $£21,934,184 B B P £21,934,184
Trade and cther receivables:
Trade receivables 1,111,545 - 8,198,696 2,178,090 11,488,331
Others - 1,371,302 - - 1,371,302
Trust fund C 4262495 — : - ’ - 4,262,495
£27,308,224 . £1,371,302 P§,198,696 £2.178,090 £39,056,312

*Excludes cash on hand

A financial asset is considered past due when the counterparty failed to make payment when
contractually due. The Club has past due amounting to 8.5 million and B8.2 million as of
June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Impaired financial assets are those accounts identified by the Club that needs to be provided with
allowance. The level of this allowance is evalnated by management on the basis of Factors that affect
the collectability of the accounts such as but not limited to the length of the Club’s Ielationsllip with
the member, the member’s payment behavior and known market factors.

The Club has impaired financial assets amownting to 1.8 million and £2.2 million as of
June 30, 2017 and 2016 (see Note 5).

Liguidity visk : :

Licuidity risk is defined as the risk that the Chib may not be able to settle or meet its obligations as
they fall due. The Club monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Club’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Chib’s financial liabilities as of
June 30, 2017 and 2016, based on contractual undiscounted cash flows. The table also analyses the
maturity profile of the Club’s financial assets in order to provide a complete view of the Clubg
contractual cormmmitments. The analysis into relevant maturity groupings is based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporfing period to the contractual maturity dates.
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Ag of June 30, 2017
Less than More
On demand 30 Days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days than 81 Days Total
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Trade payables 4,485,951 263,240 P 2149421 180,413 24,877,025
Accmed. SXpenses 1,627,355 692,273 622,602 - 305,100 3,337,328
Others™* 1,683,779 217,721 - 118,659 2,187,373 4,207,532
Members deposits and others 9,708,014 —~ - - - 5,708,014
17,565,007 2071,234 $622,602 P268,080 £2.762 586 £32,129,899
Financial assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents £21,971,183 2 2 2- i £23,971,181
Trade and other recejvable:
Trade receivables 1,511,325 3,748,222 2,401,523 970,373 1,367,333 9,998,776
Others 1,183,857 088,854 364,502 319,321 1,163,769 3,720,424
Trost fupd 4,292,050 - - — = 4.392,050
. $28,058,413 24,437,106 2,766,125 £1,280,604 $2,531,093 239,982,431
=+ Excludes statutory Hobilife
As of Tune 30, 2016
. Less than More
On demand 30 Days 31 1o 60 days 6] to 90 days than 91 Days Total
Financial liabilities ’
Other financial liabilities
Trade payables £1,205,588 B47,313 P P £617,413 1,960,314
Aceried expenses : 1,487,459 274,105 154,105 164,452 256,627 2,336,748
Others®® 2,551,250 114,618 103,540 - 35,440 1,824,626 4,629474
Members depesits and others 7,570,493 — - - - 7,.570493
Shart term loans including interest
expenss 2,510,415 — - - - 2,510415
815,415,205 P436,036 B257,643 $199,892 R2,608,566 £19,007,444
Financial assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents £22,029,184 fa P P e 22,029,184
Trade and other recaivable: :
Tiade receivables 1,111,545 3,628,586 1,947,011 801,218 1,731,880 9,310,240
Others 352,164 - - - 1,019,137 1,371,301
Trust fimd 4,202,495 - - - - 4262495
27,755,388 £3,628,586 R1,947,011 £§91,218 2,751,017 $36,973,210

*¥Eychides statutory licbilitim

Fair Values
Fair value is the mmount for which an asset conld be exchanged, or liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transactions, '

The following meihods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instromenf for which it 1s practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and cash eguivalents, irade and other receivables, trust fund, trade and other payables,
members’ deposit and others, and short term loans.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trust fund, trade apd
other payables, members’ deposit and others, and short term loans; approximate their fair values due
1o the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The Club uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of finangy]
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1:  Quoted (tmadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 Those mvolving inputs other than quoted prices incloded in Level 1 that are observah|e
for the asset or Hability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices)
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Tevel 3:  Those inpuls for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Club does not have any financial instrueents to be presented
under the fair value hierarchy required by PFRS 7.

Capital Management : ,

The primary objective of the Club’s capital management policy is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize members’ value.
The club manages its capital structure and mekes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Club is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for the years ended June 30, 2017
and 2016.

. Subsequent Events

On July 10, 2017, the Club entered into a contract to sell with Friend at Work Corporation certain
lands with approximate land area of nine hundred twelve (912sqm) square meters as described in
the TCT Nos. 693612-693619. The vendee shall pay for the property a total consideration of
£5.3 million based on the minimum saleable area,

29,

Supplementary Information under Revenue Repulations (RB) 15-2010
The Club reported and/or paid the foilowing types of taxes in 2017:

VAT

The Club’s sales are subject to output VAT while its purchases from other VAT-registered
individuals or corporations ave subject to input VAT, The VAT rate is 12.0%.

The NIRC of 1997 provides for the imposition of VAT on sales of goods and services. Accordingly,
the Club’s sales are subject to outpot VAT  while its purchases from other
VAT-registered individuals or corporations are subject to input VAT. R.A. No. 9337 increased the
VAT rate from 10.0% to 12.0%, effective February 1, 2006,

Details of the Club’s net sales/receipts, output VAT and input VAT accounts are as follows:

a. Net Sales/Receipts and Output VAT declared in the Ciub’s VAT returns

Net Sales/
Receipts Output VAT

Taxable sales:

Sales of services 287,167,408 210,460,089
Membership dues collected in advance 8,025,000 963,000
Exempt sales 25,940,385 -
Exempt membership dues collected in advance 2,831,424 —

2127964217 211,423,089
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Input VAT
Balance at July 1, 2016 P
Current year’s domestic purchases/payments for:
Goods other than for resale or manufacture 2,654,081
Capital goods exceeding 21,000,000 139,286
Domestic purchases of services 5,431,001
8,224,368
Applied against output tax (8,224,368)
Balance at June 30, 2017 : P
Withholding Taxes
Withholding taxes on compensation and benefits 21,607,754
Expanded withholding faxes : 1,566,658
Final withholding taxes 460,000
$3,634,412

Other Taxes and Licenses
This includes all other taxes, local and national, including real estate taxes, licenses and permit fees

lodged under “Taxes and Licenses” account under “General and Administrative” section in the
statement of mcome:

Real estate taxes ‘ 23,107,150
Business taxes (local business tax) 657,760
Documentary stamp fax ‘ 23,496

23,788,406

Tax Assessments _
The Club did not receive amy final tax assessmenis in 2017, nor did it have tax cases under

preliminary investigation, litigation and/or prosecution in courts or bodies outside the administration
of BIR.
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ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENT WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

For the Fiscal years ended June 30, 1998 up to June 30, 2003, the Club’s
external auditor was Joaguin Cunanan & Co.. The handling pariner was Miss Irene
Vallestero. The engagement of Joaquin Cunanan & Co. was terminated last May 2004
upon approval of the Board on April 28, 2004 on the hiring of Punongbayan & Araullo.
The hiring was in compliance with the Manual of Corporate Governance to rotate the
external auditor every five ( 5 ) years.

For the years ended June 30, 2004 up o 2007, the financial statements of Valley
Golf & Country Club was audited by Punongbayan & Araullo. The handling partner is
Ms. Mailene Sigue-Bisnar. Punongbayan & Araullo was hired to audit the 2004 books of
account by the Board of Directors, in compliance with the resolution approved during the
Stockholders’ Meeting of September 28, 2003 to leave the decision on the hiring of the
new external auditors to the sound discretion of the Board subject to the observance of
SEC Regulations on Good Corporate Governance. The election of Punongbayan and
Araullo as the Club’s External Auditors was approved during the September 26, 2004
Stockholders' Meeting.

For the years ended June 30, 2008 up to 2012, the financial statements of Valley
Golf & Country Club, Inc. were audited by Uy Singson Abella & Co. The handling
partner is Ms. Milagros F. Padernal. The change in external auditor was approved by
the Board of Directors on their regular meeting last June 14, 2008. The recent change in
external auditor is in compliance with SEC Memo Circular No. 8 (Series of 2003)/SRC
Rule 68 (4){b)(iv) on Rotation of external auditors at least every five (5) years, and has
been reflected in a current report submitted to the SEC.

For the years ended June 30, 2013 up to 2017, the financial statements of Valley
Golf & Country Club, Inc. were audited by Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. The handling
partnar is Mr. Jose Pepito E. Zabat Il from 2013 to 2016 and for fiscal year 2017 the
handling partner is Mr. Alexis Benjamin C. Zaragoza Ill. The change in external auditor
was approved by the Board of Directors on their regutar meeting last May 19, 2012 and
the appoiniment was approved during Regular Stockholdsrs’ Mesting on September 22,
2013. The change in external auditor is in compliance with SEC Memo Circular No. 8
(Series of 2003)/SRC Rule 68 (4)(b)(iv} on Rotation of external auditors at least every
five (5) years, and has been reflected in a current report submiited to the SEC.

There are no disagreements with Joaguin Cunanan & Co, Punongbayan &

Arauilo, Uy Singson Abella and Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure.

PART Ill - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ITEM 9. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE ISSUER

incumbent Board of Directors, Execttive Officers and Significant Employees of
Vailey Golf & Country Club, Inc.
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Term of
Office as
Name Age | Citizenship Position Directoy/
Period
Served
Isauro V. San Pedro, Jr. 63 Filipino President Sgrsé ig;f
Luis Manuel S. Polintan 69 Filipino Vice-President 3 ypr?égg,:f )
Abraham C. dela Cruz 63 Filipino Treasurer 3 yprfégggf i
Alexander S. Marquez 61 Filipino Asst. Treasurer Bgfefggf
Lakan D. Fonacier * 63 Filipino Director Sgrséiggf_
Luis G. Quiogue * 52 Filipino Director ’ y;?ésggf _
Virgilio C. Bucat 58 Filipino Director 3 yprf’észggf )
Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. 63 |  Filipino Director S yrs. 2016+
Jaime Victor J. Santos * A5 Filipino Director 3 y;fésgrjte )
Rio Sesinando E. ' o Corporate
Venturanza ‘ 59 Filipino Secretary N.A.

* Independent Director

Mr. [sauro ¥. San Pedro, Jr. has been a member of the Club since

2003 as Playing Guest and becarne a Proprietary Member in 2006. He was
elected to the Board in 2008 and held the following positions during his stint
as Director: Chairman, Real Estate Committee (2008-2011) and Vice
Chairman of the House and Construction Commitiee (2010-2011). Mr. Isauro
V. San Pedro, Jr. is a graduate of B.S. in Industrial Engineering - National
University. He completed post graduate studies at Dela Salle University -
Master of Business Mdnageméant (MBM), Asian Insiitute of Management — Basic
Management Program (BMP), University of Asia and Paclfic — Master in
Strategic Business Economics (SBEP). Concurrently, he is the President
& Corporate Operations Director of B-MIRK Group of Companies.

Mr. Luis Manuel $. Polintan has been a member of the Club since June,
1999 as Playing Guests and became a Proprietary Member in September, 2010.
He is the PresidenifOwner of Interworld Security Agency and Emples
Commercial. He is currently the Chairman of the House Commities

Mr. Abraham C. Dela Cruz has been a member of the Club since March,

2006. He is currently the President/General Manager of Triple "A” Commercial
and Trading Corp., Chairman of Candaba Water District (2007- Present),
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Chairman of Multi System Const. Dev. Corp. (2012-Present). He is currently the
Chairman of the Finance Commitiee and Membership Commitiee.

Mr. Alexander S. Marquez has been a member since 1894. He was elected
to the Board in 2000. A year after his election, he was elected Vice-President
and became the Club’s President in 2002-03. He held the following positions
during his tenure as Director: Chairman of House Committee (2001-02),
Chairman of Purchasing Commitiee (2001-02}, Chairman of Sports & Games

Committee (2000-01), Chairman of Housskeeping Commitiee (2000-01).
He also served the Club as a member of  various committees, He was
elected as City Councilor of Antipolo to full three-year term for three times.
Presently, he is the Managing Director of Qur Lady of Peace Memorial

Park and Services. He is currently the Chairman of the Real Estaie Committee
and Ad-hoc Committee on Special Projects.

Rfr. l.akan D. Fonacisr has been a member of the Club  since  2008.
He is a retired business executive and former financial gonsultant of several
Local Government Units (LGUs). He was the Chairman  of the 12™ Don Celso
Tuason Cup Committee in 2012. At present, he is actively serving the  Club
as Chairman of the Audit Committee,

Mr. Luis G. Quiogue has been a member of the Club as playing guest
since 2002 and became a proprietary member on April 2013. He is currently the
General Manager of Presidential Commission on Good Governance from March
2011 to present. He is the Chairman of the Trust Fund Commitiee.

Mr. Virgilio C. Bugat is a Club member since Oct. 2005 as Playing Guest
and became a Proprietary Member on Nov. 19, 2005. He is the President of
SAGADA Builders. A member of the Real Estate Commitiee in 2014-2015 and
currently the Chairman of the Grounds and Engineering Committee and Security
Committee.

Mr. Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. is a Club Member since Feb. 1987 and became
a Proprietary member on April 2007. He is a Sales Agent of Pioneer Life, Inc.
and Account officer of PCI Leasing & Finance, Inc. He is currently the Chairman
of the Administration Committee.

Mr. Jaime Victor J. Santoes is a Club Member as Proprietary Member
since Nov. 10, 2007. He is the Managing Pirecior of Jamar Development and
Realty Corporation, Dahilayan Agri Development Corporation and Belen & Sqns
Comrmodities Inc. He is also a Director of Association of Fresh Fish Traders of
the Philippines, Inc. He is currently the Chairman of the Sports & Games

Committes.

Atty. Rio Sesinando E. Venturanza is a Club Member as Proprietary
Member since March 19, 2011, Aity. Venturanza is a Pariner at Tan Venturanza
Valdez Law Offices. He is a graduate of Bachelor of Laws in the University of the
Phifippines. He is currently a member of the Rea! Estate Committee.
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The directors are independent of management and free from any business or
other relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere
with their exercise of independent judgment in carrying out their responsibilities as
directors. There are no other directors other than the above mentioned names.

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by
consanguinity or affinity among directors, executive officers or persons nominated or
chosen by the registrant to become directors or executive officers.

During the past five (5) years there was no bankruptey petition filed by or against
any business of which the directors, any nominee for election as director and executive
officers is a general partner or executive officer either at the time of bankruptey or within
two years ptior to that time.

There is no conviction by final judgment, in a ¢riminal proceeding, domestic or
foreign, or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding
traffic violations and other minor offenses against the directors, any nominee for election
as director and executive officers.

None of the directors, any nominee for election as director and executive officers
are subject to any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or
vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or
temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any
type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities.

None of the directors, any nominee for election as director and executive officers
were found by a domestic or foreign court of compstent jurisdiction, the Commission of
comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign Exchange or other organized trading
market or self regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law
or regulation and the judgment has not been reversed, suspsnded or vacated.

SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

Ms. Rosanna R. Arguelles was born on October 9, 1963 in Antipolo City
and is now 53 years old; She is a CPA and a graduate of BSC with a major in
Accounting at University of Santo Tomas. She was previously Chief Accountant
of the Municipality of Antipolo. She started her employment at Valley Golf in 1988
and is now the Division Manager of the Controller's Division. |

Ms. Elda C. Jugo was born on Sepiember 9, 1862 in Binangonan, Rizal
and is now 54 years old. She graduated from Far Eastern University with a
degree of Bachelor of Science in Accounting. She was initialty hired as typist-
filing clerk in 1986 and is now the Finance and Accounting Manager of the Club.

Mr. Sigfried Arguelies was born on January 5, 1962 and is now 54 years
old. He started working at Valley Golf in 1990 and now the Clubhouse and

External Affairs Manager of the Club.
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These are the Division Manager and Department Managers and are
considered the key personns! of the Club. The division and department
managers as well as supervisors were previously given a yearly increase in
salaries at a maximum of 3%. But in 2010, instead of giving annual increases,
managers and supervisors were given performance bonuses - perceniage from
the audited net income. They also receive Christimias bonuses. All duties and
responsibilities are ensured to be rotated to other supervisors within the
department so there will be no monopoly of knowledge. The friendly atmosphere
between management and supervisors and the benefits that the employees
receive are factors that contribute to the sense of loyalty of the employees.

ITER 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Executive Compensation
General

The President, Vice-President, Treasurer, Asst. Treasurer and all members of
the Board are not paid any compensation of whatever kind since election to the Board
up to the present.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name Position Fiscal Salary/month 13" month  Bonus
Year Retainer

Rosanna R. Arguelles  Division Ménager

Contralier .
2012 71,890.00 71,890.00 23,385.90
2013 76,3900  76,390.00 24 780.90
2014 80,8900  80,880.00 26,175.90
2015 80,890.00  80,890.00 26,175.90
2016 83,317.00  83,317.00 30,288.27
2017  83,317.00 83,317.00 30,288.27.
Elda C. Jugo F & A Mngr.

2012 38,840.00 38,840.00 13,140.40
2013 43,34000 43,340.00 14,535.40
2014 47,840.00 47,840.00 15,830.40
2015 47,840,060  47,840.00 15,930.40
2016 49,275.00 4927500 19,745.25
2017 4927500 4927500 18,745.25

Sigfried C. Arguelles  Clubhouse and
External Aff. Manager
2014  30,000.00 30,000.00 10,400.00
2015 30,000.00 30,000.00 10,400.00
2016 30,800.00 30,900.00 14,049.00
2017  30,90C.00 30,900.00 14,049.00
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GCompensation of Directors

Valley Goli & Country Club’s direciors have not been and still are not
compensated, directly or indirectly for any services provided as such pursuant to Article
IV, Section 2 of the By-laws.

Employment contracts and termination of employment and change-in-control
arrangements

The Board of Directors is composed of nine (9) members. Every year at the
annual stockholders’ meeting, three (3) directors are elected for a term of three (3)
years. No director can serve consecutively for more than three {3} years.

The Club has no compensatory plan or arrangement with its directors and
General Manager resulting from resignation, retirement or any other termination of their
relationship with the company, or from a change in control of the company or a change
of responsibilities following a change in control.

Warrants and Options Outstanding: Repricing

There are no warranis or options held by the company’s CEO, the executive
officers, and all officers and directors as a group.

Family Relationships

As of the filing of this report, management is not aware of any relationship (up to
the fourth civil degree), either by consanguinity or affinity among the directors, executive
officers or members nominaied o be directors.

ITEM 14. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

1. There is no person or any group of persons who is the owner on record or
the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly of more than five percent (5%)
of the Club’s voting securities.

2. All members of the Board are the owners on record of one share gach
which qualifies them for directorship, there is no dlrector who is the
heneficial owner of other shares of stocks.

48




Title of Name of Beneficial Amount/Nature | Citizenship | Percent of
Class Owner of Beneficial Class
Ownership
Common | Isauro V. San Pedro, Jr. 1 share Filipinb Negligible
Common | Luis Manuel 5. Polintan 1 share Filipino Negligihle
Common | Abraham C. Dela Cruz 1 share Filipino Negligible
Common | Alexander S. Marquez 1 share Filipino Negligible
Comamon | Lakan D, Fonacier 1 share Filipino Negligible
Common | Luis G. Quiogue 1 share Filipino Negligible
Common | Virgiltio C. Bucat 1 share Filipino Negligible
Common | Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. 1 share Filipino Negligible
Common_| Jaime Victor J. Santos 1share Filipino | Negligible
Common | Rio Sesinando E. 1 share Filipino Negligible
Venturanza
2. The Club is not aware of the existence of any voting trust holders of any

proportion of the existing authorized capital stock.

3. There is no arrangement, which may result in a change in management
control of registrant since the beginning of the last fiscal year.

iTEM 12 - CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

In line with the policy of Valley Golf of transparency and avoidance of conflict of
interest situations by its directors/officers as provided in the By-Laws, Valley Golf does
not have any transactions with or involving a company or any of its subsidiaries in which
a director, executive officer, or stockholder owns ten percent (10%) or more of the total
outstanding shares and members of their immediate family had or is {o have a direct or
indirect material interest.

Valley Golf did not have transactions with promoters.

Valley Golf does not have a parent company or a subsidiary company.

PART IV — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ITEM 13 — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PLEASE REFER TO ATTACHED ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPCRT (ACGR)
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ITEM 14.

PARTV - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON SEC FORM 17-C

Exhibits

A Amended Articles of Incorporation — 15 pages

B. Amended By-Laws ~ 15 pages

C. Annual Report to Security Holders — 64 pages

D. Minutes of the September 25, 2016 Stockholders’ Meeting

Valley Golf does not have Plan of Acquisition, Reorganization,
Arrangement, Liquidation or Succession, Instrumenis defining rights of
security holders, voting trust agreement, subsidiaries, power of attorney
or other reports mentionad.

Reports on SEC Form 17 — C and Form 17 - Q

a. On Sept. 28, 2016, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the Disclosure Statemenis of the Board of Directors.

b. On Sept. 28, 2016, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the Resignation of Corporate Secretary, Atty. Ronald O. Solis.

c. On Sept. 28, 2016, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the election of the Board of Directors, Board Members who ceased to
hold their positions and new officers elected by the Board of Directors
in the organizational meeting on Sept. 25, 2016.

d. On Sept. 28, 20186, Valley Golf submitted the Current Repoit 17-C on
the 'appointment of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. as Valley Golf's
External Auditors or Independent Accountants during the Sept. 25,
2016 Stockholders’ mesiing.

e. On Sept. 28, 20186, Valley Golf submitted the Curreni Report 17-C on
the results of the voting on the proposed Amendments of the By-laws
during the Sept. 25, 2016 Stockholders’ meeting.

f On Sept. 28, 2016, Valley Golf submitied the General Form for
Financial Statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 20186.

g. On Oct, 12, 20186, Valley Golf submitied the Current Report 17-C on
the appointment of Dir. Alexander S. Marquez as Asst. Treasurer, Dir.
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Lakan D. Fonacier as Chairman of the Audit Committee and Dir.
Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
On Oct. 12, 2016, Valley Golf submitied the Form 17-A, Annual
Report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.

On Oct. 13, 2016, Valley Golf submitied the Current Report 17-C on
the appointment of Atty. Rio Sesinando E. Venturanza as Corporate
Secretary.

On Oct. 19, 2016, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the appointment of Independent Directors.

On October 19, 2016, Valley Golf submitted the General Information
Sheat for 2016.

On Nov. 2, 20186, Valley Golf submitted 17-Q for the quarterly report
for the first quarter.

. On Nov. 2, 2016, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the appointment of the members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and the Committee on Elections.

. On Jan. 4, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the current report 17-C on the
renewal of the contract of Cafirma, Ong & Co. CPA’s as internal
Auditor of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. effective January 2017.

. On Jan. 4, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the current report 17-C on
compliance with the Manual of Corporate Governance for the year
ended December 31, 2016.

. OnFeb. 7, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the current report 17-C on the
attendance of Dir. Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. and General Manager Antonio
Carlos S. Ocampo on the seminar on Good Corporate Governance.

. OnFeb 7, 2017, Valley Golf submitted 17-Q for the quarterly report for
the second quarter.

On May 10, 2017, Valley Golf submitied 17-Q for the quarterly report
for the third quarter. .

On June 2, 2017 Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the resignation of Cafirma, Ong & Co. CPA’s as Internal Auditor of
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. effective June 30, 2017.

On June 2, 2017, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the attendance of Dif. Virgilio C. Bugat and Dir. Jaime Victor J. Santos
on the seminar on Good Corporate Governance.

. On June 2, 2017 Valley Golf submitied the Current Report 17-C on
the resignation of Antonio Carlos S. Ocampo as General Manager of
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. effective June 30, 2017.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the
Corporation Code, this repoit is signed on hehalf of the issue%;bby the undersigned,

thereunto duly author[zed in the Cltysp.&ég@m%rh%e\to?e‘{ 1

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

pat-ExXec Prmmpaﬂ F nﬂncual] ncefrl
Presndem Treasurer

RIO SESINANDO E. YVENTURANZA
Corporate Secrgtary/Compliance Officer

ELD T JUGO
Principal Accounting Officer/
Finance & Accounting Manager

ROSANMNA R. ARGUELLES
Comptrollerfiiead Controllers’

Division

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me QA:ST M 2%11-5 of , 2017
affiants exhibiting to me their valid 1D’s, as follows:
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Name

Isauro V. San Pedro, Jr.
Abraham C. Dela Cruz

Rio Sesinando E. Venturanza
Rosanna R. Arguelles

Elda C. Jugo

Doc. No. 09 .
Page No. L% ;
Book No. v

Series of 2017

cimy filesisonny\annrepisec2017.doc

TIN No. 115-968-382
TIN No. 108-571-989
TIN No. 100-899-738
PRC ID No. 0690865

TIN No. 102-778-591

NOTARY PUBLIC

Qo
ARLA MAE E. BADI

Notary Public for Cities of Pasig and San Juan
and in the Municipality of Pateros
Appointment No. 157 (2018-2017)

Comreission Expires on December 31, 2017
2704 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road,
Oirtinas Center, 1605 Pasig City
PTR Mo, 25530221 01.09.2047 1 Mandaluyong
IBP No. 1055710 1 01.03.2017 ¢ R3M
Roll of Attorneys No, §3373
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, EDSA, Graenhills
City of Mandaluyong, Mefro Manila

Company Reg. No. 13951

CERTIFICATE OF FILING
oF
AMENDED ARTECLES OF INCORPORATION

ENOW 4LL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

HHIS IS TO CERTIFY that the amended articles of mcorporation of the

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY'CLUB, INC.-
[Amending Article IV by extending the fern of Hs existence thereof]

copy ammnexed, adopted om July 28, 2006 by a majority vote of the Board of
Directass aud on November 18, 2007 by 4he vote of ihe stoclholders owning or
representing at least two-thirds of - the onistanding eapital stock, and cerfified under
oath bythe Secretary and'a majority of the Board of Directoxs of the corporation was
approved by the Commission ‘on this-date purgnant to the provision of Section 16 of the
Corporgtion Code of the Philippines, Batss Pambansa Blg. 68, approved on-May 1, 1980

and coplkes thereof are filed wih the Commission.

Tnless this corporation obfiins or already has oblained fhe approprinte
Secondary License from this Commission, this Certifieate does noi auiborize I to
undertake business activities vequiring a Secondary License from this Commission snch
28, but 20t lited to acting as: broler or dealer in securifics, government securities
eligible dealer. (GSED), fuvestment adviser of an investment comipany, close-end or
open-enl investment company, investment house, trausfer agent, econimodity/financial
fotures exchange/broker/merchant, financing company, pre-need plan issuer, general
agent in pre-need plans and time shares/clud sharvesimembership certificates fssviers or
selling zgenis thereof. Neither does this Certificsle constitute as permit o undeviake
activities for which other government agencies require a license or permmit.

IN WITNESS WHEREOFR, I have herewnto set my hand and cansed the seal of
Clommission to be affived at Mandaluyeng City, Metro Manila, Philippines, this

gy of April, Two Thousand Eight. ‘

. Lo C
jrorzmtyd
: *g@&% et
L BENITO A. CATARAN

M Dixecior

Company Régistraﬁon and Monitoring Departoent




AMENDED
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
' OF
VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY GLUR;

(Amended.as of September 10, 1989)
(Formerly Vallay Golf Club, Inc.)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That we, all of whom are of legal age and residents of the Fhilippines, have
this day voluntarily associated ourselves fogether for the purpcs'e of forming a

corporation under the laws of the Philippines. .
AND WE HEREBY CERTIFY:

FIRST. That the name of said corporation shall be “YALLEY GOLF &
‘COUNTRY CLUB, ING.” (As amentied on September 10, 1988},

SEGOND.  That fhe purposes for which the said corporation is formed are:

PRINARY PURPOSE

To foster and promote the gameé of golf and operate and maintain a goif course

and couniry club.

SECONDARY PURPOSE

To buy, lease or otherwise acquire, own, hoid and dispose of, such real and
pe|sonai property as may- be necessary, advantageous or convenient in ihe c:onduc:t
of its business; o develop, improve, and subdivide any properties owned by the

corporation; and, .geheraliy, to do and perform all such acts and things, and o




exercise such powers as are ordinarily done, performed and exercised by social and

athletic clubs and associgtions,

THEHD. That the place where the principal office of the corporation is o

be established or locatad is Anﬁipolo, Rizal, Philippines.

- FOURTH. That the term for which said corporation is to exist for another

'IFIHF_TY {50) YEARS from May 15, 2008. (as amended on November 18, 2007).

FIFTH. _ That the names, residence and natfonality of the incarporators

of said corporation are as follows:

MName | Nationality Residence
Celso Tuason . , Filipino Wilson St., San Juan, Rizal
| Aurelio Montinola, Sr. Filipino Mahogany Rd:, F-Qi;bes Park Makéti,

Ernest I<ahn | Filiping Russell Ave., PE&‘IZ?]CIW
Henry Belden American 13% 3{, New Manila, Q. C.
. Antonio Aransta ‘ Filipino Mckinley Rd., Forbes Park Makati,

' SIS R Rizal

M_{ That the number of Directors of said corporation shali be nine

(9) and the names and residences of the Directars of the corporation who are to

serve il their successors are elected and qualified as provided by the By-Laws are

as follows:
Name * Nationality Residence _
GCelso Tuason -Filipino Wilso|1 St.,, San Juan, Rizal
Aurelio Montinola, Sr. ‘ Filipine Mahogany Rd. Forbes Park, Makali,
' Rizal
Ermest Kahn - Filipino Russell Ave., Pasay Gity

Henry Belden Ametican 13" St New Manila, Q. C.




J4. Antonio Aransta Filipino Mckinley Rd., Forbes Fark, Makati,

Rizal
Francisco Ortigas, Jr. Filipino R. Alunan St., Manila
Jaime Velasauez Filipino

Easy St, San Juan, Rizal

SEVENTH.  That the capital stock of said. corporation .is Sixteen Million Two
Hundred Thousand Pesos (PhP16,200,000.00) -divided into One Thousand Eight
Hundred (1,800) shares of the pér vaiue of Nine Thousand Pesos {PhP8,000) each.

(as amended on Saptember 13, 1981).

Said shares of stock shall be ownsd by and the inferest .ther_eof accrue only to
the registered OWHEI.‘ thereof,'Who, a;side_frbm his righte as shareholder, may in
éddition, and subject to such rules and regulations as':ﬁay be pr‘omulgated by, and to
screeniné and approval of the Board of Directors, be issued a regular mermbership
card that would entitle him to all the rights.and privieges that afe extendad to all
hol:%lérs of. regular membership cards ~'fo‘ruthe; use and enjoyri?,ent.o'f the facilities and

premises of the Club.

Any person ‘who owns or buys a share in the company must apply for
membership within thirty {(30) days from date of registration of sals. This condition

shalt appear in the stock certificates.

EIGHTH. That the amount of said capital stock _Whibh_has been actually
subscribed is ONE MILLION PESOS (PhP1,000,000.00) and the Tollowing persons

fave subscribed for the number of shares and amount of qapital stock set out after

o

their respective names.




L~

Name

Aguinallo, Francisco R,

Aguirre, Tomas B. -
Alafris, Arturo A.
Araneta J. Antonio
Aranets {.uis M.
Babat, Chester

- Balcoff, Charles 1.

Barredo, Manuel
Bautista, Constantino
Belden, Henry

" Bennett, Henry E.

Brias, Birigus
Brias,.Jaime

Cacha, francisco
Cacho, Jose A.
Chua, Antonio.Roxas
Cojuangeo, Padro
Consugj, Ricardo
Cortes, Jose Ma.
Cortes, Felix

“Cruz, Benvenido

Cu thafieng, Benito
Dampers, Alfonso R. de
Diaz, Pampeyo |

. Feria, Jise -

Fernandsz, Jose

"Friede, Robart

-(Gabaldan, Isauro
Gambai, Regino D.
Gonzdlgs, Antonio
Gonzsies, Rafael
Guerrem, Oscar E.-
Hallng;F. R.
Huang, Frank.:
Jalbnerm, L.P.
Kahg, Ernest

Klar, dese

Liboro, Andres
ticaros, Gregoric, Sr.

_ Licarpa,,_G[egbrio, B

Lim, P.L.

Lim, Peter

Locsin, Jose
Lopa,Manuel
Lopez, Honrado G.
Lovell, &, H.

Luz, Afredo J.
Madfigal, Antonio P.
Madiigel, Jose P.

Manahsn, Cohstantino P.

Manglapus, Raul
Manatss, Ricardoe 3.

Residence

Quezon Gity
Pasay City

© Pasay Cily

Malkati, Rizal
Manila
Quezon City
Manila

Manila

Quezon Gity-
Quezon City
San Juan, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
lanila
Mandaluyong, Rizal
Maniia

Manila

Manila o

Mandaluyong, Rizal
Quezon Gity
Quezon City

Pasay City

Manita .

Manila

Manila
. ‘Manila

Manila

* ‘Quezon City

Manila
Manila

Quezon City

Quezon City
3. Juan, Rizal
Makali, Rizal

. 8. Juan, Rizal -

Pasay City
Pasay City
Quezon City -

- Quezon City

Manila

 Manila

3. Juan, Rizal -

. Malkati, Rizal A

Manila
Pasay GCity

" Menila

Pasig, Rizal
Manila =~
Quezon City
Quezon Gity
Querzon City
San Juan, Riza!
Quezon City

No. of
Shares

Amaount
Subscribed

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
(
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1 .
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
9
1
:
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

P10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.0C

©10,000.00

10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
40,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
40,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10:000.00
40,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000:00
10,000.00

- 10,000.00

10,000.00

-10,000.00

10,000.00

*10,000.00

10,000.00
“£0,000:00
10,000.00
40,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00




e

Matilla, Faustino
Miranda, Antonio
Montinola, Aurelio Sr.
Montinela, Aurelio Jr.
Montinola, Sergio
Nathan, Kart
Norton, J. E.

Olives, Sebastian
Orfigas, Eduardo
Ortigas, Francisco
Ortigas, Rafasl
Perez Rubio, Miguel
Picazo, Evarisio
Picornell, Santiago
Preysler, J. B.
Quiirino, Carlos
Recto, Alfonso
Reyeas, Narciso Jr.
Reyes, Victor

Roca, Fernando S.
Roxas, Antonio
Roxas, Fduardo
Rufino;.Ernesto D.

-Santayana, Luis S.

Soriano; Andres

' Soriano, Andres Jr.

Sorianoe, Jose Maria
Sycip, Washington
Tuason, Celso A
Tuason, Juan E.
Tuason;. Severo A,
Unson, Miguel R.

Uy, James
Velasguez, Jaime
Velayo, Alfredo
Vellguih, Alfred C.
Villa-Abrille, Aliredo
Viillareal, Fernando Sr.
Wilkinson, Gerald
Wilsen, Calude M., Jr.
Young, Walter Au
Ysmael, Carlos
Yamael, Felipe

Yu Kho Siong -

Yu ¥ho Thai
Yujuico, Algjandre S.
Yujuico, Jesus S.
Zulueta, Gesar de

Quezon City
Pasay City

Makati, Rizal

Makati, Rizal
Bacolod City
Quezon City
Quezon City
Quezon City
Quezon City
Manila
Manifa
Makati, Rizat
Malkatl, Rizal
Manila
Makati, Rizal
Manila
Makati, Rizal
Manita
Maniia
Chiezon.Gity

Pasay City. .-
Malati, Rizal

Pasay City .
[Viakati, Rizal
Pasay City" -

- Makati; Rizal

Pasay Glty.
Makati, Rizal

San Juan, Rizal

Manila
Manila

Pasay City .
Malkati, Rizal .

San Juan, Rizal

Makafi, Rizal

Parafiague, Rizal
Makati, Rizal |

Quezon City
Quezon Gity

Mandaluyong City
San Juan,-Rizal

Quezon City
Quezon City
Manila- .
Pasay City
Quezon City
Quezon.City
Makati City

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
9
1
1
1
1

10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00

10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,600.00
10,000.00 -

~10,000.00
10,000:00
10,000.60
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,300.00
10,000.00
10,600.00
10,000.60
10,600.00

40,000:00
10,000.00

10,000.00
10,000.00
40,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,009.00

10,000.00

10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
-10,000.00

" 0,080.00

10,000.00
10,000.00
110,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00

~40,000.00

10,000.00
10,000.00
10,060.00
10,000.00
10,000,00

100

1
1
1
1
1
1.
1
1
1
0

1,000,000




. NINTH. That the foliowing persons have pai | i
: AL . paid on the shares of capital
stock for which they have subscribed the amounts set out after their |‘especptive

names, -
.N.@m Residencs Amount
Subscribed
Agui‘naido, Francisco R. Quezon City F 3,500,60
Aguirre, Tomas B. Pasay City 3,600.00
Aiafris,_Artur;a A, Pasay City 3,500.00
Araneta, J. Antonio Makati, Rizal 3,500.00
Aransta;, Luls Ma, Manila 3,500.00
Balcoff, Chesfer Quezon City 3,500.00
Blacoff, Charles 7. Manila 3,500.00
Barredo, Manusl Manila 3,500.00
Bautista, Constantino Quezon City 3,500.00
Belden, Henry Quezon City 3,500.00
Bennetl, Henry E. San Juan; Rizal 3,500.00 -
Brias, Enrigue Makati, Rizal 3,500.00
Brias, Jaime’ Manila : 3,500.00
Cache, Francisco Mandaluyong, Rizal 3,500.00
Cacho, JoseiA: Manila "3,500.00
Chua, Antonio Roxas Manila 3,500.00
Gojuangeo, Pedro Manila 3,560.00
- Consunji; Rigardo Mandaluyong, Rizsl 3,500.00
Cortes, Jose Ma. Quezon Gity 3,500.00
Cortes, Felix Quezon' City - 3,500.00
- Cruz, Blenveride Pasay Gity . 3,500.00
Cu Unifeng, Benito Manila - 3.500.00
Dampeire, Alfongo R.de Manila 3,500,060
Diaz, Pompeyo Manila 3,500.00°
Feria, Jose Maiila 3,500.00-
Ferandez, Jose ~Mahila 3,500.00
Friedef, Robert . QuisZon City 3,500.00
Gabaldon, lsaure - Manila’ 3,500.00
Gamhoa, Regina D. Manila 3,500:00
Gonzales, Rafzel Quigzon City 3,560.00
Guerrero, Cscar E. S.-Juan, Rizal 3,500.00
Halling, F-R. Makati, Rizal 3,500:00 .
Huang, Frank 8. Judn, Rizal 3,500.00 " .
Jalbuens, L.P. Pasay City 3:500.00
Kahn, Ernest Pasay City’ a,500.00
Klar, Jose Quezon-City 3,500.00
Liboro, Andras Quezon City 3,500.80
Licaros, Gregotio, 5r. Manila -~ ©3,600.00
Licaros, Gregario, B. Jr. Manila 3,600.00
Lim, P L. 8. Juzn, Rizal 3,500.00
Lim, Peter Makati, Rizal 3,500.00
tocsin, Jose Meariila 3,500.00
Lopa, Manuel Pasay City 3,500.00
Lopez, Honrado G. Manila 3,500.00
Lovell, G, H. Pasig, Rizal 3,600.00
Luz, Alfreda J. Maniia- 3,500.00
Madrigal, Antonio P. Quezaon City 3,500.0C




Madirigai, Jose P.

Manahan, Constantinc P,

Manglapus, Raul
Manotfoc, Ricardo S.
Matilia, Faustino
Miranda, Antonio
Montinola, Aurelio Sr.
Mantinola, Aurelic Jr,
Mordinola, Sergio
Nathan, Karl

Norton, J. E.

Qlives, Sebastian
Ortigas, Eduardo
Ortigas, Francisco
Ortigas, Rafael
Parez Rubio, Migue!
Picazo, Evaristo
Pirconell, Santiago

Preysler, J. B,

Quirino, Carlos .
Alfense, Recto
Reyes, Narciso Jr.
Reyes, Victor
Roco, Fermando 3.
Roxas,-Antonio
Roxas, Eduarde
Rufino, Ermesio D.
Santayana, Luis S.
Sortano, Andres
Sorjano, Andres Jr.
Soriano, Jose Maria
Sycip, Washington-
Tuason, Gelsc A
Tuason, Juan E.
Tuason, Severo A.
Unson, Miguel R, .
Uy, James
Velasgquez, Jaime
Velayo, Alfredo
Vellguth, Alfred C.
Villa-Abzilie, Alfredo

Villareal, Femando 3r.

Wilkinson, Gerald

Wilson, Caluds M., Jr.

Young, Walter Au
Ysmael, Carlos
Yemael, Felipé
Siong, Yu Khe

Tai, Yu Khe

Yujuico, Alejandro S.
Yujuico, Jesus S.
Zulueta, Cesar de

Quezon City
Quezon City

San Juan, Riza

Quezon City
Quezon City
Pasay City
Makatj, Rizal
Makatl, Rizal
Bacolod City
Quézon City
Quezen City
Quezon City
Quiezon City
Manila -
Manila

" Makati, Rizal

Makati, Rizal
Manilg
Makatl, Rizal
Manila
Makati, Rizal
Manila
Manila-
Quezon City
Pasay City -
Malkati, Rizal
Pasay Gity
Malkati, Rizal

Pasay City

Malati,.Rizal.
Pasay City
Makati, Rizal

San Juarn, Rizal

Manila -
Manita
Pasay Gity
Makati, Rizal

. San Juan, Rizal

Makati, Rizal

Parafiaque, Rizal

Makati, Rizal

‘Quezon City

.. .Quezon City .
- Mandaluyong City
San Juan, Rizal”

Quezon City
Quezon Ciiy
flanila
Pasay City
Quezon Gity
Quezon City
Wakati City

3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00

. 3,500.00

3,500.00
3,500.00
3.500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500:00
3.500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3/600.00

" 3.500,00

3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00.

. 3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3.500.00
3,500,00
8,500.00
3,500,00
3,500.00
3,500.00

© 3500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00°
'3 50000
.3,500:00

P 350:000




TENTH.

That ERNEST KAHN has been elected by the subscribers as _

Treasurer of the Corporation to act as such unti! his successor is duly elected and

qualified in accordance with the By Laws, and that no such Treasurer he has baen

authorized to receive for the corporation and to receipt in its name for all

subscriptions paid in by said subscribers.

IN WITNESS WHEREO{F, we have hereurto sef bur hards in the City of

Manila, Philippines, this 14 day of May, 1958,

{Sgd.} Celso Tuason . {Sgd.} Aurelio Moitinela
CELSO TUASON AURELIO MONTINOLA
: (Sqe“f:‘.p Ernest Kahn ' . {(8gd.} Henry T, Beﬂdén
ERMEST KAHN HENRY T, BELDEN

. {Sod.Y 4 Antonio Aranela
4 ANTCONIO ARANETA

Signad in'th'e presence of:
{Sgd.) Illegible . {Sud.}.llegible

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
CITY OF MANILA ) §.8.

Befora me, a Notary Public in 4nd for the City of Manila, Philippines, this 1_4‘“
day of May,- 1958, personally appedred the following ‘persons with thelr respective

residence certificates, to wit .

T Nzme " Residence Date and Place
" Cerl. No, . . - oflssue
| A ' Jan. 22, 1958 — Manila
Celscn Tuason A:0204962 en. 22, .
Aurelio Moentinola, Sr. A-QD23051 Jain. 6; 1958 —Manila
Ernast Xahn A-0008403 Jan. 2, 1058 — l\z‘lan!la
Henry Beldan A-0067620 Jan. 13, 1958 — Manila

Jd. Antanio Araneta A0120887 Jan. 17, 1658 —’Mgnila




all known to me and tc me known to be the same persons who executed the
foregeing Articles of Incorporation of Valley Golf Club, Inc., and acknowledged to me
that the same is of their free and voluritary act and deed.

- WITNESS my hand and ssal atthe place and an the date first above written.

(Sgd.) Mariane B. Pineda, Jr,
MARIANG.B. PINEDA, JR.
Notary Public
Until December 31, 1958

Doc. No. 186
Page No. 52
Book No,

Series of 1958.




DIRECTOR’S CERTIEICATE

WE, the Ghairman, Secretary and majority of the elected and qualified
members of the Board of Directors of Directors of VALLEY GOLF CLUB, INC., g

storﬂf corporalion organized and existing under the laws of the Philippines do hereby
cartify: : :

_ That as an Annual Meeting of the Stockholders and members of the Board of
Directors held on September 10, 1889 at 4:20 p.m. at the principal office of the

oqrpgraﬁon and following resolution was duly approved, adopted and recorded in the
minutes:

"RESOLVED, as # s hersby
received that Arficle | of the Aricles.of
Incarparation of VALLEY GOLF CLUB, INC.
be amended by changing: the corporate
name to VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY
CLUB, ING.” '

That the above resolution was confirmed, approved and ratified by the vote of
the stockholders owning/represeniing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the entire

outstanding capital stock at a spécial stoékholders and directors mesting held on the
same date and place;

That the attached articles of Incorporation is a true and correct copy of the
present Articles of Incorporafion, as amended, reflecting its new corporate name.

EN WITNESS WHEREQF, we have hereuntd subscribed our names this 25%
day of September 1989 at Makati, Metro Manila.

, (Sgd.)
FEDRO H. YAP ROMEQC . LIAMZON
[Hrector Director

Ree. Cert. No. 764301-A
Issued at: Manila
Ton: Feb. 2, 1989

(Sgd)
WMARCELING L. GO
Director )
Res. Cert. No. 000006435
Issued at: Manila

on: 1-31-1988

{Sgd.)
LUIS SICAT
Director .
Res. Geri, No. 214630-E
Issued ai; Q. C.

T-on 3-21-1989

.

Res. Cert. No.

jssued at; Antipolo

~ on: March 4, 1989

(Sgd.)

- EMIMANUEL CASTANEDA

Director
Res. Cort. No. 025367
Issued at: Antipole

cn: 1~18-89

(Bgd.)
JOHNNY SARMENTA
Director
Res. Cert. No, 0253855384
lssued at; Q. C.

. on: 3-20-8%




(Sgd.)
JOSE VILGHEZ, JR.
Director '
Res. Cert. No. 1158001G
Issued atr Antipolo

on: 4-1-1989

(Sgd.)
CRISMEL YERANDO
Director

Res. Cert. No, 4925502

Issued at: Q. C.
on; 2-23-198%

ATTESTED:

(Sgd.)
PEDRO H. YAP
President

FEDERICO CARANDANG
Director '
Res. Cert. No.
Issued af:
oM

{Sgd.y .
ORLANDD C, PARAY
Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 25" day of Seplember 1989,

affiants exhibiting to me their Res. Cert. No. printed below their respective name.

Sgd. .
EDGAR A. PACIS
NOTARY PUBLIC
Until December 31, 1990
PTR 'No: 566129, Makati
Jan. 3, 1989

Doc. No. 438;
— Page No. ‘8%,

BookNo. [

Series of 1889,




DIRECTORS' CERTIFICATE

- We, the undersignsd majority of the Directors a
GOLF & COUNTRY CLUR, INC,, do hereby cetti

e

TVING AND
,UL BN

y of VALLEY ~~
fy that the Articles of Incorporation of

Sy

said corporation was emended by a majority vote of the directors on July 29, 2006 and the

vote of stocldiolders representing at least two
meeting held on November, 18, 2007

<thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock at a
at-the principal office of the corporation.

The amended pgovisions of the attached Amended Artisles of Incorporation refer to

Article 4 “Thai, the Ter
years from May 15, 2008.

Res. Cert. No. 12450200
Issued at Autipolo City
on January 4, 2008

7
UMBILLA.

Treasurss

1 Dgi?;ct{jl‘_ _
THN No: 150£146-618
Res. Cert. No, 14723842
Issued at Cainta, Rizal

on Jamuary 3, 2008

Res. Cert. No. 23742105
Issued at Pasig City
an TFebruary 23, 2008

BE O P. CRUZ

Director

TIN No. 128-282-687

Res. Cert. No. 11562615

Tesued at- Marildna City
on. Janvary 3, 2008

for which said corporation is o exist

LINO TOPACIO
Vice President/Director
TIN No. 110-062-048
Res. Cert. No. 07594500
Issued at Quezon City

on January 3, 2008

)

" WIN No. 11135924-493

es, Cert. No., 24199012
lesued et Quezon City
on April 4, 2008

N - —
E CISCOBEN REYES
Director

TINNe. 115-808-073
Res. Cert. Wo. 07649077
Issued at Quezon City

on Jamnary 10, 2008

ROBERTO ROXAS
Dirsctor
TIN No. 106-207-376
Res. Cert. No. 16475836
Jesued at Makati City

on Japmary i1, 2008

i J 15




D11e<3101

TIN No. 125-972-748

Res. Cert. No. 12465301

Issued at  Antipolo City
on January 2, 2008

(@1 gned: %

T HD)JFELO C.. AEEJI@
Carporate Secretary
TIN No. 119-832-828

Res. Cert. No. 11875770
Issued at Mandaluyong City

on January 4, 2008

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN fo before
2008 at CITY BEPASK by

exhibited to me their Community Tax Certificates.

Doc. No. N‘l’f’ ;

—

Page No. %L&, ;

Book No. A
Series of 2008.
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
SE@URU'EI“HES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SE0 Building, EDSA, Greenhills
City of Mandaluyongy, Metro Manila

Company Reg. Na. 13951

CERTIFICATE OF FILING
AMENDED BY-LAWS

ENOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

- TEIS 15 TO CHRYTEY that the Amended By-Laws of

v

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC:

» copy-annexed, adopted on August 27, 2010 by a majority vote of the Board of
Divectors and on September 26, 2010 by the vote of the stockholders owning or
fepresenting at least majority of the sutstanding capital stock, and~ certified’

.. under cath by the Corporate Secretary and majority of the said Board was
.. approved by the Commission on, this date pursuant to the provisions .of

- Seetion 48 of the Corporation Cods of the Philippines Batas Pambansa Blg. 68,

approved on May 1, 1980, and coples thereof ave filed with the Commission. ‘ '

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I-have set my hand and caused the seal of
- this: Comumiséion to be affixed fo ﬁﬂs Certificate at Mandaluyong City, Mekro
- Sy of November, Twenty Ten, -

“Wranila, Philippines, this'

Director
Registration and Meonltoring Department

i




AMENDED BY-LAWS OF
VALLEYGOLF & G@UNTR’Y CLUB

ARTICLE | o OFFICE

The Principal office of the Club shall be iocated at Antipolo City, Rizal
Philippines.

ARTICLE N = SEMN -

The Board of Diractors is au thorlzed 0 da&agn and to adopt a sesl for
the Club.

ARTICLE Il - MEETING

Section 1. Annusl Nie-eimgs — The annual meefings of stockholders
ghall be hald aithé:Clubhoties & the Four"th Suriday a? Sepiember of each
year at 4:00 o'clock e the affefhooni -

Section 2. Spedial. Nleetmgs - Spedial meetmgs of stockholders may
. be called at anytime by resolution of the Board of directors or by order of the
President, ur itoon vwiitlen fequést-of témiparcant {10%) of stockhotders. No
action will bas takenat such speclal meetmg except for the purpose(s)
aDSCined inthecall: oL s Sl .

Section %, Notite of- Meeimgs e Wratten notice of meetings for every
regular-er special: mesting of steektoiders. shall*bisgiven to stockholders at
least (10) days prior o the date ¥ ikie itiedting” - Any fallure or Iregularity of
notice of any meeting shall be aeemed cured whese the complaining
stockhaldersappear at: the meatmg .

Secfzmn 4,. Quorum -y quorum'at any meeimg shall consist of a
majonty of the stookhicldérs, represente jEs0n br: by-proxy, and a majority
of such quoriim-shall.déeids any qusston:ingt. may ‘chrme before the meating,
except in Cases where a dnfferen% number of votes is requ»red by law.

Section &, Prcmes - Every sceokholder I entlaled to voie af any
mesting of s‘cockholners and may sp vote by proxy, provided hat the proxy
shall have: beén: appcmﬁed “oy- Ahe-:stookhiolder. . himiself or by his duly
authorized. atkomey iiafact in i ioheisl numbérediproky for issuad by the.

Club. No other proxy ferm sha[l be recogmzedsb"'"the Club

Section 6. Etec’clon of Darectnrs = The'eiecnon of Directors shall be
held at the annual mesting of stockholders and -shall be conducted in the
manner provided fro In the Corporation Law, and with such formaliies as the
cfficer presiding at the meeting shall then and there determine and provided,




The external auditor or audiiors shall -likewise be elected by the
stockholders elther in ghe annual stockholders mesting or in a special
stockholders’ meeting called for the purpose,

Section 7. Order of Business ~ The-erder of the business of the

annual meeling and, as far as possible, at all other mesting of stockholders,
shail be as follows:

a) Calling ihe roll.

b) Secretary’s proof of due notice of the meeting.

¢} Reading and disposal of the unspproved minutes.
d) Report of officers, anhual and otherwise.

&) Unfinished business.

fi  New business.

g) Election of Diractors.

h) Adjournment.

Section 8, Eligibility to vole and be vcted

. a) Drﬂy stockho%ders in gaod stangding shal. hawe the right tovote and
be voted upon at any mesting of the stockholders,

by Gualifications. of Nominees for the Election of Directors; ’

- Hag-one-(1). share recorded in-hisfher name for-at least
-~ ihiee.{3) vests atidhesdime of.nominalion snd shall
continue to own-a shate duiing hisherderm of ofiice. |If

. the nomires hes bean g member of a standing cormmities

- for.atilesst.age (1Y Mesk- o -playing guestof corporale
representative for-atJeast two-(2). years,. the ihres-vear
.-reauirement aili:be. reduced ta ofie ('H Veart S

i, is an achve proprleiaw member who hasmm? ass;qned
the . playing right of hislher share of stock upon hisfher
pomination; has. ecommittec.inr . writing. not to-assion said
plaving tightduting. hisfherincumbency-if elected, and-Jg
h.gaod. standmcz wﬂh No delmuuent accountla.

iii.' 'oha!l have summ@n‘c tlme and w:lhnq to share h;sfher
--meessmai and. executwe ememse andd, :

Y .,=Has 0, efﬂcza! recoml fof qrave and- setious mssconduoi
. that meriled: Glub :membership .suspansion and-has not
been convicted An.Any ciimingl-cose. (As amendsd by
the siockholders on. Sepiember. 26, 9@?@ and [@y the

Board of Directors.on Augusi21;, -207G).




Section 9. Stockholder's Consent ~ The consent of 2/3 of the
ouisianding c.aprtal stock shali b required in the following instances:

a) A subsianﬂa? change In the present {ayout in tﬂe 3% holes golf
course,

by Any expsndlture of the funds of the Club for alieration covered by
the preceding paragraph. -

c) Ahy capital expepditure for new projects other than any those
approved at pravious stockholders! reeting which requires special
Basessmaent: against the:sfockholders, 6r an increase in the number

- of authorized shares of Club.

For the purpose of this 5ectlon the consent of stockholders fmay be
cbiained. by referandum, .

‘Section 10, Committee on Election — Members:of the Committes on
Election shall be appolmed by+the Board of Directors, composed :of three (3)
proprietary members in good standing, Such propristary members. shall be of
unguestionable integrity and oeeupy- the: highest esteem of his-peers. For
purposes_of the Comelec, a playing representative of a corporate propristary
membear may. he. appointed.as member of the :Comeles ‘previdad :that said
designated plaving representgtive’ shall be the: dnoumbent President. or
Chalrman of the Corporation and should own eguity in the said Corporation
and subjec't o such other requurements andfor hmitatlons lha'fc ihe- Boam may
impose.” -

'ﬂ he Club General Marager, Gomptro!!er anci lmemal Audltor shall form
part of the Comelet Secretariat, . }

ARTICLE IV . DIREGTORS

. Bection. 1, Board of- D regtors— The business anid.propeity of.the Club
shall be managed by 5. B@ard : _me £9) Directors. - Ai.the: next annual:
stockholoiers ~méeting, nine {2) Dmectors shall-he. ze!ec:ted the -first dhee. (B)
D1rectors regeiving the hrghest niimper.of: votes shall senve for  term of thres
(3) years; the’ 'three (3)-other-Difectors reaelving, thenext-highest:number of
votes shall- sepve. for.a derm: of. o :(2) ‘years: and the.rermaining three: (3)
Diractors shall: serve for a termeoof one (1) year Ever_y_yea_r thareatier, at the
annual stockholders’ fmeeting, there shall be three (3) elected Directors who
shall serve. for-aterm.of three:(3) years No Direcforscan-serve cansecutwe{y
for more than three (3) years.. . L

No more than sixty (80) days prior to the aﬂnual mseting of stockhoiders, the
President with the approval of the Board of Directors, shall .appoint. g
nominating Gommittes of five (B) stockholders, three (3} of whom ate not’
Diractors. The said nommatmg committee shail prepare, sign and post af least
fiftean (15) days before the annual mgetmg. a list of not less ‘lhﬂm four {4) nor
moré than-ix-(6) candzdates for the Board of Diretiors forthe’ énaliing’ year.
Any five (5) gteckhiolders may nominatsatdiflonal candidates férthe Board by
posting a signed list not later than ten (10} days before the Annusl Meeting.




L

The nominating Committee shall evaluate all candidates fo ensure compliance
with the required. gualificationis. A list of the gualified candidatos hominated
shall be intluded in the notice of the annual meetng that is sent out to each
stockholder. {(As amended by the siockholders on September 26, 2010
and by the Board of Directors on August 21, 207 )

Section 2. Directors to act as of Board ~ The Board of Diractors shatl
act-only as a board and ho powéiis vested in the individual director as such,
A majority of the - Board shall constitute & guorum . for the fransaction of
business, except forthe filing of vacandies in the Board, in which case

" majority of the remaining Directors shall constitiste & gquorum. [Hrectors shall

receive no salaties or fees ae such,

Section 3. . Board Meeting — The regilar meeting of the Board of
Directors shall be held once a month at such iime and place as shall be
determined by the Board: Spécial mestings of the Board may be called by the
President, or -upen witien-pefition- of thiee (3) members. Nofice of Board
Meetings shall be-served 'on-each-direstor at lsast three (3} days before the
mesting, uiless nofice'is waived by al the Directors present,

Seelion 4. Order of Busingss — The order of business at any regular
or specialinesting of the Board of Directors shall be: :

a)  Calling theyolii-. o

b)  Secretary’s proof of dus notide of the meeiing. :

) Reading and disposal of unapproved midUiss in the case of
- regular madtings of the Board,

&) Report of officers, ‘

g)  Uniinished business,

7 New business.

g Adjournment,

- Seslion 4. -Ardifectormusthave at'least one (1) share registered in his
Hame durbighis term of G1fice otherwise; he shall be automatically disqualifizd
from the pasition. Thé"stockholders holding 213 of the outstanding capitat
stock- in e’ books -of the corporation Wby émovéa diractor who has
absented fimssif for three’ (3} consectitNe: reguldr meetings of the Board
unless such-ghserices ts execuisd by redson-of sickness, physical ‘digability
oriotherjustifiable roasoli(s) acdeptable fb"?thef:Baa'rd_Qf"D‘ireb’;‘ors. : o

 Section 6. ‘The-immediatsly preceding-five (5) past President of the
Club shall bacome ex-officio members of the Board without the'flgfit 14 vote;

ARTIGLEY . . OFFICERE

© Seition 1. - Designation — Majofity of all the.Board of Direciors at iis
first megting shallslect as. Exeoutive Officers of the Glub a President, Vice-
President, a Treasurer, a Secrefary and such. other. administrative.officers-as it
niay déerrproper. o _ ‘ o







. Sectlon 2, Qualifleation — All Executive Officers of the Club must be
incumbent directors, with the exception on the Secretary who must, hiowsver,
be a resident and citizen of the Philippinas.

Section 3. Every execuiive officers shall be elected by the Board for a
term of one {1} year, unless sooner removed by.the Board of Directors, and all
vacancies ocourring among such officers however arising shall be filled by the
Board. , ‘

Section 4. Gompensation.— The compensation and working condifions
of officers of the Club who are not direcfors shall be fixed by.the Board,
Directors acting as.such, or .as efficers-of the Club including. members -of
standing or special committess; shall receive 110 salaries or fees; whaiscevar
for their services.

Sectlon 5 - D.utias- and - Responsiblliies - The duiies and
responsibifities of the. different officers of the Club-are as follows: -

a} The President ~ The President shall preside at alt mestings and
shall sign the.membership cerfificate-of the Ciub. He shall be e chief
execufive officer of the: Giub and have;.general-supetyision of the business
affairs and property ofthe-Glub-and.over jis several-agents and eniployees;
with authority tohire-said-employee; and:dispsnses with iheir services sibiect
o confirmation by the-Board.of Directors, -He:shaltsign:ceniracis ombshaif of
the Glub and shall:see-that-all-ordars: and:resolutions of the Board are carried
into effect. . In-addition g the abave-duties:expressly vested in him by these
By-l.aws, he shall do .and perform stich- acts: and duties as- from.the fime fo
fime may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors. :

b) The Vice-President - Indhe abserice or disakility of. the President,
the Vice-President shall.exercise all the:powers and: dissharge all-the dutias of
the President.. The Vice-President shall, in addition, have :such powears and
- duttes as'may, from time to fime be conferred on him by the Board.

c) The Treasurer ~ The Tredsurer, except.as otherwlse.provided by
the Board of Directors, shall have the custody of all moneys, sscurities and
values of .the Club. that come. info.his- possession, ang-shall keep. regular
books of accounts: . He shali-deposit said monsys;.seculitiesand valiies.in
such banking institutions as may be designated, from time o time by the
Board of Directors, subject to.withdrawa! therefror. on-the. signature of such
officers. of the: Club.: gs- the-Board-iay, by-resolution, designate. He shall-
perform il other duties-Incident fo:his.office andualkthat are: properly:regulired-
orv him by, the Board:of Directors; He:shall. furnishi;a. bend. eondifioned upon
the faithful performance: of-his dufigs, If and.when. reguired -se 1o do hy:the
Board of Directors; the amount of said bond to be determined and fixed by the -
sald Board. :

Y. The.éecratary — The Saéfefary-shali issue nolices of al-moetings, .
shall keep their minutes, shall have charge of the seal and .corporate bodis; -




shall countersign the cerifficate of stock and sign such other instruments as
required such signature, and shall make such reporis and perfurm such ofher
duties as are incident to his office or are properly required of him by the Board
of Diraciors,

ARTICLE W1 - COMMITTEES

Section 1. Standing Committes — The President with the approval of
the Board of Directors, shall appoint the chairman and members {who must
all be non-delingient members) of the different standing committees of the
Club and. prescribed their respective dufies and responsibilities, as well ag,
cregte new committees as may be necessary for the different handling of club
affairs: The standing commiltess are as folfows:

a) House e) Finance
by ‘Grounds “f) Adminigtration
o) Sports. and Games g Englneeting

d} - Membership

Section 2. Trust Fund Gofpmittee ~ The Trust Fund Commiftes,
censisting of five (5)umembers, created pursuant to the resolutions passed by
the-stockholders last-September 12, 1082, and smipowerad onty To (nvest the
‘THE VALLEY-GOLF- TRUST ‘FUND" in. actordarice with taw shall mest at
least-gnce a year of anytime Upon reguest:ofthe Board of Directors. -Three
(3) members:shall ‘constitute ‘a -quorum anid:the ‘Urianirous consent of three
(8} meimbers shall-Be nacessary to constitute:a dédision of the Commiltizes.
Ay vacaney-inthe-Commitiee for-any réason whatasever shali be filad by the
Board of Directors. C : .

* The Board of Birectors shall slso géterming-the amount of the fund fo
be adminisiered by ‘e Trust Comimitted which shall not be less than the

. BRTICREVN - .- ,"MEMBERSHEP

40 Bectioh . -’Ci:assifi.ssati'on‘wM‘esﬁb‘ershib‘-in‘i‘h_e Clyb shill be classifie
into:{a) Proprietavy:{by Playing Guest!(s)y Honoraryand ) Bodial. - :
w0 E) *=r#\e,:p'roprieta?ry_'-"-Mémbé'r'-i's'-"f’a:'lff:y"‘?pe_rs_orz “who is the" registered
stockholder oféat'least one’(1) -chare of stock: ofthe Glub whiose meibstship
had. een iprevidusly “approved: ‘s hefeinalter provided. 16 case: the
propestary “iefnber+is:a-juridical person:it shall-be entitled to désignate its
representative Wwho shallexercise-all the Hghts and*privileges: bffméifﬁk’)"éréh‘ip
including the Fightforvate. -7 7 T e e

) An Honorary Meiriber s any person whe has been conferred
playing rights’ by the Board of Eiirectﬁf's=—?uhdér'fcéifms and: conditions speclfied
for stich membgtship: = . - :




c) A playing Guest is any person who is the assignee of the playing
rights of a share of stock registeradin the name of another person.

) A Social Member s a néfuraf person who has been granted the
privilege of using the facilities of fhe Club, excapt the goif course.

Section 2. Membership in the Club shall be subjsct for approval by the
Board of Directors upon the favorable recommendstion of the. Merbearship
GCommittee:  All membsre shall pay-the stiptilaied monthly dues and other.
assessinents of the Club, - ‘ s

Section 3. A stockholder, whether a member or not shall nevertheless
be obligated o pay the regular monthly dues and sopecial assessments
effective from the date-of issuance:of theif respecive cerfificate of stock:.

Section 4. Stockdiolders whe subseribed to the additional. incresse in
capital stook of P81 WMillion last August 1981 shall be excluded from -paying
the regular monthly dues and -special sésessmeits corresponding -{o. suéh
additional shares uniil they decids to sell the same, or to assign the playing
tights corresponding thereto. BT

ARTICLEVIl - CLUB ACCOUNTS

Section 1. -Lien ~ The Club hes the first flen an the share of the
stockhelder who -has, in hs/harfiis.name;, of.In the name of ‘an assignes,
outstanding acecounts and fiabilities in favor of the Club to securs-the-paymant
thereof. S T

Section 2. Nosale, or tiansfer of a shave of stock, shall be Fogisterad
in the Books of the Club:until and-Unless the Jien established-under Section 7
and the requiremenis. of Article VIl, Section 2, shall have been first fully
satisfied. Co : ‘ S

~ Sectlon 3. The-atcount of any member shall be presenied to stieh-
member every month, | If any ‘ststement of accounts remained unpaid for @
pericd of forty-five: (45) days aftdr.cut-off date, said member may be posted.gs
delinquent. No delinguent member shall be entitled to enjoy the privileges.of
such membarship for the durationof the delinguency. After the mermber shall
have been posted ag elinguent, the Board may order his/herlits share sold to
satisfy the cldiing ofthe Club; puiduant to such rules and_procedurés which
the Board of Directors: may promulgate to govern the sonduct ofsale/auction
of shares. of definquent mémbeys, after which the membst. joses; hisheilits
rights and privileges permanently..-No Member tan be indebled fo.theClub.at.
any time any amountin excess of the credit limit set by the Board of Direciors
from tima to time. . The unpsid account referred to hare includes nen=payment”
of dues, charges and otherassessments and non-payment for subscriptions:
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ARTIDLE [X - FISCAL. YE[?R

The Fiscal Year of the Club 'shaél commence on the first day of July of
eachyear and shall ciose on the 30™ day of June of the following year.

ARTIGLE X - AMENDMENT

Sectien:1. These By-Laws may be altered, amended or rensaled at
any meeting of stockholders: by, & majority. of the subscribed capital stock.
The Beerd of Directors, by resolution, may likewise amend these By-Laws, as

-hovigver, shall be cirollarized to ail stockholders.

ARTICLE X1 . TRANSITORY FROVISIONS

These By-Laws shall be desmed tobe complete and shall repeal the
By-Laws, including amsndrients adopled priorio this date,
Adgpied Jins 8, 1958, at-Manils, Rhilippines.

(Sgd} Francisco R. Aguinaldo (Sgd.)  Tomas B. Agulire
(Sgd} Arduro A Alafriz {Sgd.} .J. Anionio Araneta
Bgd}y Luis Ma, Aranefa {8gd.) ChestBabst

(8gd} Charles T. Blacoff . {Bgd). Manuel Bariado
{Sgdl§ Constantiio Bautiste (8dd.) Henry Beiden

{8gd} Henry E, Benneil (8gd.) Enrlque Bilgs

{Sod) - JaimeBrids - “(8gg.y  Frandseo Cacho
{Sgdy - JoseAsCacho- T .. ¢ (Bgd)? Arftonio Roxas Chua . .
(Gady- Pedro.Cojuamgeo . . {Bgd.): -Ricardo Consunji
(8gd} Jose Ma, Cottes {Sgd.) [Felix Corea

{Sgd} Bienvenido Cruz {8gd.} Benito Cu Unjieng
(Sgdd _.{8gd.) . Pompeyo Diaz

(Sgd} _(Bd) " Jose Fernandez
{Sgu - i ) “(Sgdl)' Isauro-Cabalkion
Sy}  Réginoidd, Gamboa - - S0l SiBgd.) DAntorio Gonzales
{Sgd} Rafesl Gonzales {8gd.) OscarE Guerrero
(8gdd F.R. Halling ’ (8gd.} Frank Huang

(Sgd} .. < {Sud) ErnpstiKahn

(854} {8gd4) ‘Andres Liboro

(Sgd} ' (8ad) _ PetorLim

(Sgit) o ~{8gd) " Manust Lopa”

(Sgd) <-Honrado G. Lopéz (Sid). G.H. kovel .

(Sgdty - Alfredo’luz - . © (B - Anfonit: P Madrigal -
{Sgd) - JoseP.: Madrigal: - Co L (Byd) = Gonistanting £.Manahan -
(Sgdy - Raul:May <. iBgd) Ricardo . Manetoc
(Sgd) . Fa 99d,) - Anfonio Miranda -
(8gd), . B¢ ' rello lanfinola, Jr.

H Nathan

4 - (sgdy - Sebastizh Otiveros
(S T o (gAY - Francise Ontigas’
(Sudy- : RafaelOtidais” - ©o e - (Sady dliguel Pefgz
(Sgd). - Evatista Picaze .- - - -y (8edy)  Sanfiago Pirconslf
{Sgd)  J.B. Preysler (8gd)  Carlos Quirino
{Sgt)  Alfonso Resto {8gd) Narciso Reyes, Jr.

(Sgd)  Viclor Reyes (Sgd.) Fernando 8, Roco
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(Sgd.;
(Sgd.)
{Bgd.)
(8gd.)
{Sod.)
{Sgd.)

(Sgd.) -

(Sgd.)
(Bgd.)
{Sgd.)
(Sgd.)
(Sgd.)

{8gd)

Antonio Roxas
FErmesto [, Rufino
Andres Soriaho
Jose Mariza Sorianc

_Celso A Tuason
CJames Uy

Alfredo Velayo
Alfredo Vilia Abrite
GeraldWikinson
Felipe Ysmael
Walter Euyang

Y Khe Tai
Jesus-8. Yujuico

{8gd.)
(Sgd.)
(Sgd.)
(Sgd)

{Sgd)-.

{Sgd.)

" (Bgd)

{8gd.)
(8gd.)
{Byd.)
{Sgd.)
{Sgd.)

(Sgd)

Eduardo Roxas

Luis 3. Santayana
Andras Sorfano, Jr.
Washington Syeip
Juan E. Tuason
Miguel K: Unson
Jéime Vélasquaz
Alired C. Valleuth
Fornahde Yilldreal, Sr.
Claucds M. Wilson, Jr.
Yu Khe Siong
Alejandro 8. Yujuico
Cesar te Zuluels




We, the undersigned representing the majority mombers of h@,:%z\? o, -
Directors aid the Corporate Secretary of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRW ARy g
INC. do hereby certify that the attached By-Laws of said cerporation was amhnded by
the vote of the stockholders tepresgnting at least 2 majority of the outstanding 34 it
stock at a mesting held on September 26, 2010, at the principal office of the
corporation. :

The améndment was lkewise approved by majority of the directors at a
meeting held at the principal office of the cotporation, on August 21, 2010,

The amended provisiens of the attached Amended By-laws refer to Article
I0L, Section 8 and Article IV of the By-Laws, to wit:

Article ITX, Seetion 8. Rligibility to vote and be voted —

) Only steckhelders in good sianding shall havs the right to vots and be
vbted upen at any meeting of the stockholders,

b) Qualifications of Nominees for the Election of Directors:

i Hag one (1) share recorded in histher nams for at least thees (3)
years at_the time of nomingtion and shall contimue to own 2
share during his/her ferm of offics. IT the nominee has heen a
. member of & standing committee for ai least one (1) vear, or a
playing pusst or corporate yepresentative for at least two 23]
vouss, the three-yoar requirement will be reduced to ome (1)

BAL:

1. It an active propreiary member who has not assigned the
playing vight of his/her share of stock wpon hisfher nomination,
Las cominiifed in weiting not to assion seid plaving right during
his/her incumbency if slectad, and is in good standing. with no
delinguent acoount/s:

i, Shall have sufficient time and willing to share hisfher
professional and executive expertise: and. .

iv. Has no_official. record of grave end serious imisconduct that
merited  Club_mewbership suspension and  has oot _heen
convicted in any oriminal case. (As mmended by fhe
stockholders on September 26, 2010 awd by the Board of
Directors on Augnst 21, 2610),




Artiele IV -Direclors

Section 1. Board of Directors — The business and. property of the Club shall be

managed bya Board of nine (9) Directors. At the next anmial stockholders’ meeting,
nine {9} Disgctors shall be elented, the first three (3) Directors receiving the highest
number of wies shall serve for a lerm of thres (3) years; the thrse (3) other Dircctors
receiving the next highest number of votes shall serve for a term of two {2) years; and
the remainizg three (3) Directors shall serve for a term’ of one (1) year. Every year
thereafter, # the annual stockholders’ meeting, there shall be tiwee (3} elecied
Directors who shall serve for a texm of threo (3} vears. No Directors can servs
conseoutivey for more then thres (3) yeass,

No more tlan sixty (60) days prior to the annual mesting of stockbolders, the
President wih the approval of fhe Board of Directors, shall appoint & nominating
Committes of five (5) stockholders, three (3) of whom ate not Diractors. The said
rominating Commiites shall prepare, sign and post at least fifieen (15) days before the
atnuzl mestng, a Hst of not less than four (4) nor mors then six (6} candidates for the
Board of Diectors for the ensuing year. Any five (5) siogkholders may nominae
additional emdidates for the Board by posting d'signed list not later than ten (10) days
before the #mmual Meeting, The nominating Commiftes shall evaluate all candidates
to_cnsure womphiance with the required -qualifications A list of the qualified
candidates:ominated shall be included in the nofice of fhe annual meeting that is sent
out io eashstockholder. {4s amended by ihe stockholders on Saptember 26, 2010
and by theboard of Direciors on dugust 21, 2019)

. . i o - ‘ _-\{ |mlf\& R

: D . . BV
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we héreby set owr hande fhig *a day of
2010, at “’jﬁa}hm 0355. , Philippines.

BEhpee, CRUZ ROBERTO ROXAS
Fresident/Direcior Vice President/Director
U EIN: 128-282-G87 ‘ TIN No. 186-207-375
R&MH{U R. REGALAD™ GEN, ROMED T, RICARDD
Treasurer/Director Asst. Treadirer/Divector
TIN: 103-550-996 TIN: 146-
A Q
i .
JOSE FERLU SUDARR ANUEL P. QUIOGYE

Ditector . Direcior
FIN: 125-972-748 TIN:' 115-945-032
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ALF Rﬁi E1 ]RAS

Direotos
TIN: 113- TIN: 106-169-744

vISATURO SAN PEDRO, JR.
Dirsctor
CTIN: 115-068-382

Certified Corgot by:

Conr)oréttB,SeCretﬁry ‘
TIN: 130-488-850

N , -
SUBSCRIRED AND SWORN 1,0 Before me tis1® ' gay o

2010, at_Malgli » by the sbove-named persons who
exhibited to me their Co:alpeLé1lt _Iﬁentlﬁcan c{jf

Doe. No. %_,

Pape No. .
Boolk No._jif

Series qf 2010,

-t:@mn.._w\g@ '
{ Moty Puilis for Makati Oy
mml Dogamber 31, 2090
5t b, 47340 D1/0BI08: Rizal
w‘" l\f‘ P ‘733 J'],;{JF@ fhakes £ s,,i’]
\. Jl E e '-‘\:(BIJ
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MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS REETING
OF VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB, NC.
Held at the Main Clubhouse, Valley Golf and Couniry Club
Antipolo City on 25 Septeriber 2616

I Call to Qrder

Valley Golf and Country Club’s Chairman, Jaime F. Panganiban {Chairman Paﬁganiban), cailed
the meeting to order at 4:10 p.m., and presided over the same. The Corparate Secretary, Atty. Ronald
G. Solis {Atty. Solis), recorded the minutes of the meeting. .

s Determination of Quorum

Chairman Panganiban inquired from the Secretary of the Meeting whether a guorum was
present. Atty. Solis replied in the affirmative. According to Atty. Solis, the total attendance was Fight
Hundred Seventy Four {874) members/shares, which were either personally present or represented by
velid proxies. Hence, a quorum existed since the number already exceeded Seven Hundred Ninety Five
(795] shares, which was only needed for purposes of having a guorurn,

Upon inquiry as to how many shares were represented by proxies vis g vis the members who
were personally present it was determined that Eight Hundred Thirty Nine {838) shares were
represented by proxies, and Thirty Five {35) members were parsonally present.

11e. ‘Proof of Due Notice of the Meeting

Chairman Panganiban asked whether there was pro6f of due notice of the meeting. Atty. Solis
replied in the affirmative. The pertinent registry return cards and/or delivery receipts are on file with
the Club’s secretariat 2s evidence of transmission.and receipt of the said notices and ot;he’r necessary
documents to all stockholders of record. The said documents are present and available for inspection
by any member wito might wish to do so.

. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting Held on 27 September 2045

“Chairman Panganiban proceeded with the next item on the agenda, which was the approval of
the previous year’'s minutes. The stockholders were also provided with copies of the minutes of the
previous year's annual stockhoiders” meeting and were given sufficient time to read the same. lose B.

- Tayawa moved for the approval of the minuites of the annua! stockholders’ meeting held on 27
Septembear 2015, whi‘c!‘} motion was duly secanded by lose Ferlu 0. Sudario. There were ho ohjections.
Hence: :

RESOLVED, that the minuies of the annual stockholders’ mesting held
on 27 September 2015 are hereby approved and adopted..

V.. Matters Arising Froms the Minutes

Chairman Panganiban opened the floor for any inquiries refative to the previous year's minutes.
After a moment, considering that there were no questions relative thereto, the Chairman proceeded
with the next item on the agenda. _




Wi, Chairman’ and Treasurer's Beport

Chsirman Panganibar manifesied that all stockholders wers provided coples of the Club’s
Annual Report. He ingeired whether there were any questions relative therato. Considering that there
were no questions, Mr. Tayawa moved for the approval of the Chairman’s and Treasurer's Report for

the fiscal year 2015-2016, which motion was duiy seconded by Mr. Sudario. There were no objections.
Hence: .

RESOLVED, that the Chalrman’s Report, as well as the Tressurer's

_ Report, for the fiscal year 2015 to 2016, as presented, gre b@th hershy
approved andadopted.,

Likewise, Mr. Sudario comreended the Board of Directors especiaily the President for the positive
. tesults of the Financid Statement as compared to last year. '

Yil.  Ratification of Pior Acts of the Board of Direciors and Managemennt

Chairman Panganiban stated that all stockholders were similarly furnished with capies of ail the
resolutions of the Board of Birectars, and had more than sufficient time to peruse the same. Thus, M.
Tayawa moved for the ratification of the prior acts of the Board of Directars and Management for the
period 01 July 2015t 30 June 2016, including the disposal of non- performing assets and settlement
of cases which involve disposal of some proparties of the Club, which motion was duly seconded 1o by
M. Miarcelo, There were 6o eb;ectsons Hence:

" RESOLYED, that the acts of the Board of Directors and Management for
the pedod O3 July 2015 up to 30 june 2016, including the dispasal of
non:pesformieg assets and seitlement of cases which Tnvolve disposal

- of some proparties of the Club, are hereby ratified.

Vilt.  Appointmeent of Bdernal Auditor

Chairman Pamganiban openead the fiaor Yor the election of the Club’s externaliauditor. Mr.
Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. moved # retain the services of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. as the Club’s external
auditor, which mation wis: daty seconded to by Mr. Sudario. There were no abjections. Henice:
RESCHYED, that Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. Is hereby retained as the
independent exiernal auditor of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

. = Election ofDirecinrs

Chairman Panganibas celled on the Chairman of the Commission on Elections {Comelec), Atty,
Plaridel J. Bohol I}, topresideover the election of the new Directors and the canvassing of votes for the
amendment of the By-laws. The ather members of the Comelec were Alty. Francisco B. Figura and
Atty, Ben A. Delos Reyes. The following were the cafﬁc:a! nominees:

Virgilio C. Bucat
Augusto A. Cruz, Ir.
Gerardo B. Marcelo
laime Victor L Santos

GM Antonio farles 'S Ocampo thenh proceeded with the canvassing of the votes. After the
cah\fassﬁng, Atty. Bohel annamced the resulis of the elections:
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Candidates for Election: .

. Virgilia C. Bucat — 19 in person / 622 by proxy, total of 641 votes
Augusto A. Cruz, Jr: — 15 in person / 612 by proxy, totatof 627 votes

Ge.rardo. 8. Marcelo ~ 53 in persan / 538 by proxy, total of 591 votes
daime Victor 1. Santes - 24 in person / 607 by proxy, total of 631 votes

- As regard§ the referendum on the amendment of Articie 1], Sec. 1, Article IV Sec. 1, Article Ifl
Sec. 5, the following are the results of the voting: T LT

Amendment to By-Laws: - ) L

Article 1), Sec. 1 - not approved - - - B

In Favar - 524 . . .
Not In Favor = 216 e S
Abstain - 119 ) C .

Article IV, Sec. 1 ~ not approved.

In Favor - 522
Notin Favar - 217
Abstain - 120

Article lIl, Sec. 5 ~ not approved

In Favor - 462
Not In Favar - 273

Abstain - 124

For fallure to reach the two-thirds vate required bythe Corporation Code for amendment of
the By-Laws, proposed amendment of Article HL, Sec. 1, Article IV Sec, 1 and Article It Sec, 5 are not
approved. L

Thereafter, Atty, Bohol, together with the members of the Comelec, proclaimed the following
as the newly elected Directors of Valley Galf & Country Club:

Virgilio €. Bucat

Augusto A, Cruz, Jr.
Jaime Victor 1. Santos

°  Messrs. Bucat, Cruz and Santos were called upon, and all of them gave a short acceptance
message 1o their fellow members.

" Chatrman Panganiban thereafter congratuléted thelenning Directors.
X Adjournment
There heing no other mat’cerﬁ to be discussed, upon motion by Mr. Tayawa and duly seconded
by Mr. Sudario the meeting was adjourned at 6:05 p.m.

Prepared by:

ATTY. RONALD O. SDLIS
Corporate Secretary
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